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INFO ' s
STEWART L. BELL Flirr
DISTRICT ATTORNEY ) . T
Nevada Bar #000477 PR 26 2 0
200 S. Third Street O gy
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 _ S
(702) 455-4711 Rl
Attorney for Plaintiff CLERy P
LA. 5/2/01 DISTRICT COURT
8:45 A.M. CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
P.D.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-vs- CaseNo. C / 75/757
: Dept. No. XVI
JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka Jug Capri Porter, Docket U
#1682627 :
Defendant.
INFORMATION
STATE OF NEVADA
$s:
COUNTY OF CLARK

STEWART L. BELL, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka Jug Capri Porter, the Defendant(s) above named, having
committed the crimes of BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON
(Felony - NRS 205.060, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165), SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH
USE OF ADEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366, 193.165), ROBBERY WITH
USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.380, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE
KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODILY
HARM (Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165), SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Felony - NRS 200.364,
200.366, 193.165), ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony -
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NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE ARSON WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 205.010, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony -
NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165, 193.167), SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY
WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366,
193.165, 193.167), ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS
OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony - NRS 200.380, 193.165, 193.167), BATTERY WITH INTENT
TO COMMIT A CRIME, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony - NRS 200.400,
193.167), ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS
200.380, 193.165, 193.330), MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN
MURDER), (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.1635) and BATTERY WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.481), on or between, February 1, 2000 and June 9,
2000, within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of
statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of
Nevada,
COUNT I -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by TERESA TYLER, located at 2895 East Charleston Boulevard, Apartment
No. 1016 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT II - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away TERESA
TYLER, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said TERESA TYLER, against her
will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.

1
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COUNT IIT - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said TERESA TYLER, against
her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT IV - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said TERESA TYLER, against
her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT YV - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the said TERESA TYLER, against her will,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT VI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the said TERESA TYLER, against her will,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT VII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of TERESA
TYLER, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without the
consent and against the will of the said TERESA TYLER, said Defendant using a deadly

weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
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COUNT VIII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: scissors and/or a knife, with intent to
commit larceny, and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony,
that certain building occupied by LEONA CASE, located at 2900 East Charleston Boulevard,
Apartment No. 50 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT IX - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH |
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away LEONA
CASE, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime, resulting
in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.

COUNT X - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject LEONA CASE, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime,
resulting in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.

COUNT XI- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there, without authority of law, and with
premeditation and deliberation, and with malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt
to kill LEONA CASE, a human being, by stabbing at or into the body of the said LEONA CASE
with a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, and by choking the said LEONA CASE around the neck
with a phone cord, and/or by the Defendant thereafter locking LEONA CASE in her bathroom
and setting her apartment on fire, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: knife, during

the commission of said crime.
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COUNT XII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject LEONA CASE, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime, resulting in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.
COUNT XIII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or food stamps,
from the person of LEONA CASE, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of
injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said LEONA CASE, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XIV- FIRST DEGREE ARSON WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there willfully, unlawfully, maliciously and
feloniously set fire to, and thereby cause to be burned, a certain apartment, located at 2900 East
Charleston Boulevard, Apartment No. 50 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, said
property being then and there the property of LEONA CASE, by use of open flame and
flammable and/or combustible materials, and/or by manner or means unknown, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XV -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by RAMONA LEY VA, located at 600 East Bonanza Avenue, Apartment No.
114 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XVI - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority

-5- PAWPDOCS\INFW13\W01390101. WPD

AA 0005




[N=TE " BN B~ NV B S T &

| T N T N N T N R N R N R e e T T R ]
00 ~] O h B W N = DO e N N R W N —= O

of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away RAMONA
LEYVA, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said RAMONA LEYVA, against
her will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XVII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject RAMONA LEYVA, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said RAMONA LEY VA, against
her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT XVHI - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: car keys and/or a 1980 Buick, bearing Nevada license no. 657 KMC,
from the person of RAMONA LEYVA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear
of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said RAMONA LEY VA, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XIX -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or
a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain butlding
occupied by MARLENE LIVINGSTON, located at 2301 Clifford, Las Vegas, Clark County,
Nevada.
COUNT XX - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON,

VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 4, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away
MARLENE LIVINGSTON, a human being 65 years of age or older, with the intent to hold or
detain the said MARLENE LIVINGSTON, against her will, and without her consent, for the

-6- PAWPDOCSANFO13401390101. WPD
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purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to
wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65
YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject MARLENE LIVINGSTON, a female person being 65 years of age
or older, to sexual penetration, to-wit: fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the
said MARLENE LIVINGSTON, against her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit:
a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXII- ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF

AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or car keys
and/or a 1991 Dodge, bearing Nevada license no. 728 ENB, from the person of MARLENE
LIVINGSTON, a person 65 years of age or older, or in her presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said MARLENE
LIVINGSTON, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission
of said crime.
COUNT XXIII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by CLARENCE AND FRANCIS RUMBAUGH, located at 436 North 12th
Street, Apartment No. B therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XXIV - BATTERY WITH INTENT TO COMMIT A CRIME, VICTIM 65 YEARS

OF AGE OR OLDER ,

did, on or about April 12, 2000, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously

use force or violence upon the person of another, to-wit: CLARENCE RUMBAUGH, a human

-7- PAWPDOCS\INFG13W01390101. WPD
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being 65 years of age or older, with intent to commit robbery and/or sexual assault, by grabbing
and/or pushing and/or throwing the said CLARENCE RUMBAUGH.
COUNT XXV - BATTERY WITH INTENT TO COMMIT A CRIME, VICTIM 65 YEARS
OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
use force or violence upon the person of another, to-wit: FRANCIS RUMBAUGH, a human
being 65 years of age or older, with intent to commit robbery and/or sexual assault, by grabbing
and/or pushing and/or throwing the said FRANCIS RUMBAUGH.
COUNT XXVI - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF

AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfully, ﬁnlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of CLARENCE
RUMBAUGH, a person 65 years of age or older, or in his presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said
CLARENCE RUMBAUGH, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the
commission of satd crime,
COUNT XXVII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS

OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of FRANCIS
RUMBAUGH, a person 65 years of age or older, or in her presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the ‘will of the said FRANCIS
RUMBAUGH, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission
of said crime.
COUNT XXVIII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 6, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or

a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building

-8- PAWPDOCSMNFO13\¢1390101. WPD
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occupied by LEROY FOWLER, located at 1121 East Ogden, Apartment No. 9 therein, Las
Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XIX -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or
a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by JONI HALL, located at 624 North 13th Street, Apartment No. B therein, Las
Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XXX - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority of
law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away JONI HALL,
a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said JONI HALL, against her wili, and
without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXXI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject JONI HALL, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: sexual
intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said JONI HALL, against her will, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXXII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take

personal property, to wit: a Westinghouse color television and/or a Lenox portable CD player
and/or a baby stroller, from the person of JONI HALL, or in her presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said JONI
HALL, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT XXXIII - BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 8, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
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while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, with intent to commit larceny, and/or a
felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by GYALTSO LUNGTOK, located at 415 South 10th Street, Apartment No. H
therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
CQUNT XXXIV - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 8, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of GYALTSO LUNGTOK, from the person of GYALTSO LUNGTOK, or in his
presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against
the will of the said GYALTSO LUNGTOK, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a
gun, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXXV - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER)

did, on or about June 8, 2000, then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of
law, and with premeditation and deliberation and malice aforethought, kill GYALTSO
LUNGTOK, a human being, by shooting at and into the body of the said GYALTSO
LUNGTOK with use of a deadly weapon, to-wit: a gun, the Defendant being responsible under
one or more of the following theories of criminal liability, to-wit: 1)Premeditation and
deliberation: by the Defendant directly committing said felony offense as the perpetrator, and/or
2) Felony murder: by the Defendant committing said felony offense during the perpetration or
attempted perpetration of the crime(s) of burglary and/or robbery.

COUNT XXXVI -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, with intent to commit larceny, and/or a
felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and BEATRIZ ZAZUETA, located
at 2830 East Cedar, Apartment No. 229 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XXXVII - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority of
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law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away LAURA
ZAZUETA, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said LAURA ZAZUETA,
against her will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual
assault, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said

crime.

COUNT XXXVIII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of LAURA
ZAZUETA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without
the consent and against the will of the said LAURA ZAZUETA, said Defendant using a deadly
weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXXIX - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and/or BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
from the person of GUADALUPE LOPEZ, or in his presence, by means of force or violence or
fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said GUADALUPE LLOPEZ,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT X1 - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and/or BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
from the person of BEATRIZ ZAZUETA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or
fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commuission of said crime.
COUNT XLI- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there, without authority of law, and with

premeditation and deliberation, and with malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt
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to kill GUADALUPE 1.OPEZ, a human being, by pointing a gun at the body of the said
GUADALUPE LOPEZ, the Defendant thereafter putting the gun to the forehead of the said
GUADALUPE LOPEZ and threatening to “start blasting” if he did not receive money, the
Defendant thereafter firing approximately three shots at the said GUADALUPE LOPEZ, striking
him once in the leg, the defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission
of said crime,
COUNT XLII - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there, wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously use
force and violence upon the person of another, to wit: GUADALUPE LOPEZ, with use of a
deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, by the Defendant shooting a gun at the said GUADALUPE
LOPEZ, striking him in the leg.

STEWART 1.. BELL

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

B B—

“DOUSLAS HERNDON
¢ Chief Peputy District Attorney
ada Bar #004286

Names of witnesses known to the District Attorney’s Office at the time of filing this
Information are as follows:

NAME ADDRESS
ADAMS, Marian UMC - S AN.E.

1800 W. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89102

ANDERSON, L. LVMPD #2780
ATKIN, M. LVMPD #5409
AWALOM, Alemayehu 415 S. 10th Street

Las Vegas, NV
BARNETT, Jean 624 N. 13th Street

Las Vegas, NV
BEAS, A. LVMPD #5208
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BERNSTEIN, Flossie

BOYD, F.
BREWSTER, Kent

BRISCOE, G.
BROTHERSON, D.
BUTLER, D.
CALARCO, M.
CARR, I.
CARSON, Maurice

CASE, Lecona

CASTANEDA, M.
CAVALIER], D.
CLEVELAND, Jay

CRICKET, L.

CUSTODIAN OF REOCORDS
or DESIGNEE

D’ANGELO, V.

DAQ, Hue

DELUCCHI, D.
DIAZ, FNU
DILLON, Regina

EMBRY, C.
FOOTE, Stacie

221 S. Bruce #110
Las Vegas, NV 89101

LVMPD #5216

Las Vegas Fire & Rescue
500 N. Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
LVMPD #3202

LVMPD #4931

LVMPD #6264

LVMPD #6473

LVMPD #4792

Bonanza Spring Apartments
600 E. Bonanza Road

Las Vegas, NV

2900 E. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #4394
LVMPD #3876

60 N. Pecos
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #3631

UMC

1800 W. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89102
LVMPD #5787

6201 Don Zarembo
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD
Address Unknown

417 S. 10th Street
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #6223

624 N. 13th Street
Las Vegas, NV
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FOWLER, Leroy

FLYNN, P.
FORD, D.P.
GELLER, J.
GIBSON, James

GOMEZ, FNU

GOOD, R.
GREEN, Dr.

GUNTHER, K.
HALL, Joni

HANSEL, R.
HEFNER, K.
HEVEL, Robert

JACKSON, George

JENSEN, B.
KIRBY, Susan

KISNER, J.
KUZMAK, J.
KYGER, T.
LAROCHELLE, J.
LEMASTER, D.
1"

112 E. Ogden
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #6463
LVMPD #4244
LVMPD #5892

518 E. Mesquite
Las Vegas, NV

AMR

1130 S. Martin Luther King Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89102

LVMPD #806
CORONER/MEDICAL EXAMINER
1704 Pinto Lane

Las Vegas, NV 89106

LVMPD #6109

624 N. 13th Street
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #5054

LVMPD #2185

Las Vegas Fire & Rescue
500 N. Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV

512 E. Mesquite
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #3662

UMC - S.A.N.E.

1800 W. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89102
LVMPD #4656

LVMPD #5967

LVMPD #4191

LVMPD #4353

LVMPD #4243
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LEYVA, Ramona
LIVINGSTON, Marlene
LOPEZ, Guadalupe

LOVE, D.

MAHON, Gerald Sgt.
MAIN, T.

MARTIN, T.
MATTHEWS, Chanel

MINOLETTIL G.
MISSIG, H.

MISURACA, M.
MITCHELL, J.
MONAHAN, T.
MONIOT, T.
O’CONNELL, D.
O’DONNELL, J.

PARENT/GUARDIAN OF

KURTIS RICHARDS
PARTIN, Dorothy

PETERSEN, W.
PORTER, Angela

PORTER, George

PORTER, Beverly

600 E. Bonanza Road

Las Vegas, NV

2301 Clifford Avenue

Las Vegas, NV

2850 Cedar
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #3748

CHICAGO POLICE DEPT.

Chicago, IL
LVMPD #5062

LVMPD #5946

209 N. 18th Street #B

Las Vegas, NV
LVMPD #6199

CORONER’S OFFICE

1704 Pinto Lane

Las Vegas, NV 89106

LVMPD #5825
LVMPD #5299
LVMPD #2936
LVMPD #4664
LVMPD #3434
LVMPD #5709
Address Unknown
50 N. 21st Street
Las Vegas, NV
LVMPD #1913

208 N. 13th Street
Las Vegas, NV

1251 Kildare Ave.
Chicago, IL

1251 Kildare Ave.
Chicago, IL
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PROVOST, Sergo

PULLIAM, F.R.
REED, G.
REGALADO-GONZALEZ, Rebecca

REGALADO-ORDONEZ, Dina
REYES, Laury

REYES, R.
RHODES, FNU

RICH, Lillie

RICHARDS, Kurtis
ROBERTS, V.
ROSENBERG, T.
RUMBAUGH, Clarence

RUMBAUGH, Francis

SAMS, J.
SCARBOROUGH, S.
SCHELLBERG, P.
SCHWARTZ, D.
SMINK, J.

STELK, J.
STERLING, Derrick
SULLIVAN, K.
SUTTON, Habibala

-16-

208 N. 13th Street
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #5412
LVMPD #3731

415 S. 10th Street
Las Vegas, NV

415 S.10th Street
Las Vegas,NV

600 E. Bonanza Road
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #4346
Las Vegas Fire & Rescue

500 N. Casino Center Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV

2300 Olive Street
Las Vegas, NV

Clark County Juvenile Hall
Las Vegas, NV
LVMPD #5714
LVMPD #3816

436 N. 12th Street
Las Vegas, NV

436 N. 12th Street
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #4793
LVMPD #2160
LVMPD #5413
LVMPD #6434
LVMPD #6556
LVMPD #2550
406 S. 11th Street
Las Vegas, NV
LVMPD #3400

4850 S. Boulder Hwy.
Las Vegas, NV
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SUTTON, A. LVMPD #5973
SZUKIEWICZ, J. LVMPD #5411
THOMAS, M. LVMPD #4032
THOMPSON, M. LVMPD #1988
THOWSEN, T. LVMPD #1467
TYLER, Teresa 2895 E. Charleston Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV
TYLER, Samantha 2895 E. Charleston Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV
WELCH, D. LVMPD #1418
WILLIAMS, R. LVMPD #5646
WILSON, Antwoyne 2601 Tuskegee

Las Vegas, NV
WINTERS, Nan 415 S. 10th Street

Las Vegas, NV
WORKMAN, R. LVMPD #4597
ZAZUETA, Beatrice 2850 Cedar #229

Las Vegas, NV
ZAZUETA, Laura 2850 Cedar #229

Las Vegas, NV

DA#00F13901X/gmr

LVMPD EV#0002012429/0003070141
0003252971/0004040324/0004122745/0004260197
0005090185/0006050305/0006-60165/0006070313
0006090140/0006101143/0007120766

BURGWDW; FIRST KID. WDW, SAWDW, ROBBWDW, ATT. MURDER WDW,
FIRST ARSON WDW, FIRST KID. WDW WSBH, SAWDWWSBH,

F IR%;F KID.WDWVO065, SAWDWVO0O65, ROBBWDWV0O65, MURDERWDW, BWDW
TK
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INFO F'ng}gN OPEN COURT

STEWART L. BELL 02 20p

DISTRICT ATTORNEY SHIR L S

Nevada Bar #000477 B. PARRAGUIR CLERK

200 \s/ Thircli\I Stregt 20155 BY. g%ka« oy

Las Vegas, Nevada B ;

(702) 4354711 ARBARA CKARREpTY

Attorney for Plaintiff ‘

LA, 5/2/01 DISTRICT COURT '

8:45 A M. CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

P.D.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
-Vs- Case No. (174954

Dept. No. XVI

JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka Jug Capri Porter, Docket U

#1682627

Defendant. AMENDED

INFORMATION

STATE OF NEVADA

Ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK

STEWART L. BELL, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka Jug Capri Porter, the Defendant(s) above named, having
committed the crimes of BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON
(Felony - NRS 205.060, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165), SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH
USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366, 193.165), ROBBERY WITH
USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.380, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE
KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODILY
HARM (Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165), SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Felony - NRS 200.364,
200.366, 193.165), ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony -
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NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE ARSON WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 205.010, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony -
NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165, 193.167), SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY
WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366,
193.165, 193.167), ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS
OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony - NRS 200.380, 193.165, 193.167), BATTERY WITH INTENT
TO COMMIT A CRIME, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony - NRS 200.400,
193.167), ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS
200.380, 193.165, 193.330), MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN
MURDER), (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165) and BATTERY WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.481), on or between February 1, 2000 and June 9,
2000, within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of
statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of
Nevada,
COUNT [ -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by TERESA TYLER, located at 2895 East Charleston Boulevard, Apartment
No. 1016 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COQUNT II - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away TERESA
TYLER, ahuman being, with the intent to hold or detain the said TERESA TYLER, against her
will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said

Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
1
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COUNT III - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said TERESA TYLER, against
her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT IV - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said TERESA TYLER, against
her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT V - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the said TERESA TYLER, against her will,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT VI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the said TERESA TYLER, against her will,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT VII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of TERESA
TYLER, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without the
consent and against the will of the said TERESA TYLER, said Defendant using a deadly

weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
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T VIII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, ﬁnlawﬁ.ﬂly, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: scissors and/or a knife, with intent to
commit larceny, and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony,
that certain building occupied by LEONA CASE, located at 2900 East Charleston Boulevard,
Apartment No. 50 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT IX - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or éarry away LEONA
CASE, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime, resulting
in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.

COUNT X - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject LEONA CASE, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime,
resulting in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.

COUNT XI- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there, without authority of law, and with
premeditation and deliberation, and with malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt
to kill LEONA CASE, a human being, by stabbing at or into the body of the said LEONA CASE
with a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, and by choking the said LEONA CASE around the neck
with a phone cord, and/or by the Defendant thereafter locking LEONA CASE in her bathroom
and setting her apartment on fire, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit; knife, during

the commission of said crime.
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COUNT XII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject LEONA CASE, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime, resulting in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.
COUNT XII1 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or food stamps,
from the person of LEONA CASE, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of
injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said LEONA CASE, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XIV- FIRST DEGREE ARSON WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there willfully, unlawfully, maliciously and
feloniously set fire to, and thereby cause to be burned, a certain apartment, located at 2900 East
Charleston Boulevard, Apartment No. 50 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, said
property being then and there the property of LEONA CASE, by use of open flame and
flammable and/or combustible materials, and/or by manner or means unknown, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XV -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by RAMONA LEY VA, located at 600 East Bonanza Avenue, Apartment No.
114 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XVI - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
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of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away RAMONA
LEYVA, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said RAMONA LEY VA, against
her will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XVII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject RAMONA LEYVA, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said RAMONA LEYVA, against
her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.

COUNT XVIII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: car keys and/or a 1980 Buick, bearing Nevada license no. 657 KMC,
from the person of RAMONA LEY VA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear
of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said RAMONA LEY VA, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XIX -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or
a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by MARLENE LIVINGSTON, located at 2301 Clifford, Las Vegas, Clark County,
Nevada.

COUNT XX - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON,
VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 4, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away
MARLENE LIVINGSTON, a human being 65 years of age or older, with the intent to hold or
detain the said MARLENE LIVINGSTON, against her will, and without her consent, for the
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purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to
wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65
YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject MARLENE LIVINGSTON, a female person being 65 years of age
or older, to sexual penetration, to-wit: fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the
said MARLENE LIVINGSTON, against her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit:
a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF

AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or car keys
and/or a 1991 Dodge, bearing Nevada license no. 728 ENB, from the person of MARLENE
LIVINGSTON, a person 65 years of age or older, or in her presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said MARLENE
LIVINGSTON, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission
of said crime.
COUNT XXTII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by CLARENCE AND FRANCIS RUMBAUGH, located at 436 North 12th
Street, Apartment No. B therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT XXIV - BATTERY WITH INTENT TO COMMIT A CRIME, VICTIM 65 YEARS
OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
use force or violence upon the person of another, to-wit: CLARENCE RUMBAUGH, a human

-7- PAWPDOCSANFO13W1390102. WPD

AA 0024




o 00 -~ N h R W N e

[ B N T O B O N D N R o L O L O L e e S
O ~1 & Wl W R = D Y00 ) N R W N = o

being 65 years of age or older, with intent to commit robbery and/or sexual assault, by grabbing
and/or pushing and/or throwing the said CLARENCE RUMBAUGH.
COUNT XXV - BATTERY WITH INTENT TO COMMIT A CRIME, VICTIM 65 YEARS
OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
use force or violence upon the person of another, to-wit: FRANCIS RUMBAUGH, a human
being 65 years of age or older, with intent to commit robbery and/or sexual assault, by grabbing
and/or pushing and/or throwing the said FRANCIS RUMBAUGH.

COUNT XXVI-ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF
AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfuily, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of CLARENCE
RUMBAUGH, a person 65 years of age or older, or in his presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said
CLARENCE RUMBAUGH, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the
commission of said crime.

COUNT XXVII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS
OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of FRANCIS
RUMBAUGH, a person 65 years of age or older, or in her presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said FRANCIS
RUMBAUGH, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission
of said crime.

COUNT XXVIII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 6, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,

while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or

a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
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occupied by LEROY FOWLER, located at 1121 East Ogden, Apartment No. 9 therein, Las
Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XXIX -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or
a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by JONI HALL, located at 624 North 13th Street, Apartment No. B therein, Las
Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT XXX - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority of
law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away JONI HALL,
a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said JONI HALL, against her will, and
without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXXI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject JONI HALL, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: sexual
intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said JONI HALL, against her will, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXXII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: a Westinghouse color television and/or a Lenox portable CD player
and/or a baby stroller, from the person of JONI HALL, or in her presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said JONI
HALL, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.

COUNT XXXIII - BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON
did, on or about June &, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
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while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, with intent to commit larceny, and/or a
felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by GYALTSO LUNGTOK, located at 415 South 10th Street, Apartment No. H
therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT XXXIV - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 8, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of GYALTSO LUNGTOK, from the person of GYALTSO LUNGTOK, or in his
presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against
the will of the said GYALTSO LUNGTOK, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a
gun, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXXV - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER})

did, on or about June 8, 2000, then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of
law, and with premeditation and deliberation and malice aforethought, kill GYALTSO
LUNGTOK, a human being, by shooting at and into the body of the said GYALTSO
LUNGTOK with use of a deadly weapon, to-wit: a gun, the Defendant being responsible under
one or more of the following theories of criminal liability, to-wit: 1)Premeditation and
deliberation: by the Defendant directly committing said felony offense as the perpetrator, and/or
2) Felony murder: by the Defendant committing said felony offense during the perpetration or
attempted perpetration of the crime(s) of burglary and/or robbery.

COUNT XXXVI -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, with intent to commit larceny, and/or a
felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and BEATRIZ ZAZUETA, located
at 2830 East Cedar, Apartment No. 229 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT XXXVII - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority of

-10- PAWPDOCS\INFY13Y01390102. WPD

AA 0027




o 00~ N P W N

N N NN RN RN N NN O e e e e em e e e e
R~ N bk W N = SO 0 ] N R W e O

law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away LAURA
ZAZUETA, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said LAURA ZAZUETA,
against her will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual

assault, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said

crime.
COUNT XXXVIII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of LAURA
ZAZUETA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without
the consent and against the will of the said LAURA ZAZUETA, said Defendant using a deadly
weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXXIX - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and/or BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
from the person of GUADALUPE LOPEZ, or in his presence, by means of force or violence or
fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said GUADALUPE LOPEZ,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XI, - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and/or BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
from the person of BEATRIZ ZAZUETA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or
fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XLI- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there, without authority of law, and with

premeditation and deliberation, and with malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt
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to kill GUADALUPE LOPEZ, a human being, by pointing a gun at the body of the said
GUADALUPE LOPEZ, the Defendant thereafter putting the gun to the forehead of the said
GUADALUPE LOPEZ and threatening to “start blasting” if he did not receive money, the
Defendant thereafter firing approximately three shots at the said GUADALUPE LOPEZ, striking
him once in the leg, the defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission
of said crime.
COUNT XLII - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there, wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously use
force and violence upon the person of another, to wit: GUADALUPE LOPEZ, with use of a
deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, by the Defendant shooting a gun at the said GUADALUPE
LOPEZ, striking him in the leg.

STEWART L. BELL

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

By

BY.
(rfOUGLA HERNDON
District Attorney
Nevada Bar #004286

Names of witnesses known to the District Attorney’s Office at the time of filing this

Informatior; are as follows:

NAME ADDRESS
ADAMS, Marian UMC - S.AN.E.

1800 W. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV §9102

ANDERSON, L. LVMPD #2780
ATKIN, M. LVMPD #5409
AWALQOM, Alemayehu 415 S. 10th Street

Las Vegas, NV
BARNETT, Jean 624 N. 13th Street

Las Vegas, NV
BEAS, A. LVMPD #5208
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BERNSTEIN, Flossie

BOYD, F.
BREWSTER, Kent

BRISCOE, G.
BROTHERSON, D.
BUTLER, D.
CALARCO, M.
CARR, J.
CARSON, Maurice

CASE, Leona

CASTANEDA, M.
CAVALIERIL, D.
CLEVELAND, Jay

CRICKET, L.

CUSTODIAN OF REQCORDS
or DESIGNEE

D’ANGELO, V.

DAOQO, Hue

DELUCCHI, D.
DIAZ, FNU
DILLON, Regina

EMBRY, C.
FOOTE, Stacie

221 S. Bruce #110
Las Vegas, NV 89101

LVMPD #5216

Las Vegas Fire & Rescue
500 N. Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
LVMPD #3202

LVMPD #4931

LVMPD #6264

LVMPD #6473

LVMPD #4792

Bonanza Spring Apartments
600 E. Bonanza Road

Las Vegas, NV

2900 E. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #4394
LVMPD #3876

60 N. Pecos
Las Vegas, NV

LVYMPD #3631

uMC

1800 W. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89102
LVMPD #5787

6201 Don Zarembo
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD
Address Unknown

417 S. 10th Street
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #6223

624 N. 13th Street
Las Vegas, NV
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FOWLER, Leroy

FLYNN, P.
FORD, D.P.
GELLER, J.
GIBSON, James

GOMEZ, FNU

GOOD, R.
GREEN, Dr.

GUNTHER, K.
HALL, Joni

HANSEL, R.
HEFNER, K.
HEVEL, Robert

JACKSON, George

JENSEN, B.
KIRBY, Susan

KISNER, J.
KUZMAK, J.
KYGER, T.

LAROCHELLE, J.

LEMASTER, D.
1

-14-

112 E. Ogden
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #6463
LVMPD #4244
LVMPD #5892

518 E. Mesquite
Las Vegas, NV

AMR

1130 S. Martin Luther King Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV §9102
LVMPD #806

CORONER/MEDICAL EXAMINER

1704 Pinto Lane
Las Vegas, NV 89106

LVMPD #6109

624 N. 13th Street
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #5054
LVMPD #2185
Las Vegas Fire & Rescue

500 N. Casino Center Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV

512 E. Mesquite
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #3662

UMC - S.AN.E.

1800 W, Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89102
LVMPD #4656

LVMPD #5967

LVMPD #4191

LVMPD #4353

LVMPD #4243
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LEYVA, Ramona
LIVINGSTON, Marlene
LOPEZ, Guadalupe

LOVE, D.

MAHON, Gerald Sgt.
MAIN, T.

MARTIN, T.
MATTHEWS, Chanel

MINOLETTI, G.
MISSIG, H.

MISURACA, M.
MITCHELL, J.
MONAHAN, T.
MONIOT, T.
O’CONNELL, D.
O’DONNELL, J.

PARENT/GUARDIAN OF
KURTIS RICHARDS
PARTIN, Dorothy

PETERSEN, W.
PORTER, Angela

PORTER, George

PORTER, Beverly

-15-

600 E. Bonanza Road
Las Vegas, NV

2301 Clifford Avenue
Las Vegas, NV

2850 Cedar
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #3748

CHICAGO POLICE DEPT.

Chicago, IL
LVMPD #5062

LVMPD #5946

209 N. 18th Street #B
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #6199
CORONER’S OFFICE
1704 Pinto Lane

Las Vegas, NV 89106
LVMPD #5825
LVMPD #5299
LVMPD #2936
LVMPD #4664
LVMPD #3434
LVMPD #5709
Address Unknown

50 N. 21st Street

Las Vegas, NV
LVMPD #1913

208 N. 13th Street
Las Vegas, NV

1251 Kildare Ave.
Chicago, IL

1251 Kildare Ave,
Chicago, IL
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PROVOST, Sergo

PULLIAM, F.R.
REED, G.
REGALADO-GONZALEZ, Rebecca

REGALADO-ORDONEZ, Dina
REYES, Laury

REYES, R.
RHODES, FNU

RICH, Lillie

RICHARDS, Kurtis
ROBERTS, V.
ROSENBERG, T.
RUMBAUGH, Clarence

RUMBAUGH, Francis

SAMS, J.
SCARBOROUGH, S.
SCHELLBERG, P.
SCHWARTZ, D.
SMINK, J.

STELK, J.
STERLING, Derrick
SULLIVAN, K.
SUTTON, Habibala

-16-

208 N. 13th Street
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #5412
LVMPD #3731

415 S. 10th Street
Las Vegas, NV

415 S.10th Street
Las Vegas,NV

600 E. Bonanza Road
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #4346
Las Vegas Fire & Rescue

500 N. Casino Center Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV

2300 Olive Street
Las Vegas, NV

Clark County Juvenile Hall
Las Vegas, NV
LVMPD #5714
LVMPD #3816

436 N. 12th Street
Las Vegas, NV

436 N. 12th Street
Las Vegas, NV

LVMPD #4793
LVMPD #2160
LVMPD #5413
LVMPD #6434
LVMPD #6556
LVMPD #2550
406 S. 11th Street
Las Vegas, NV
LVMPD #3400

4850 S. Boulder Hwy.
Las Vegas, NV
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SUTTON, A. LVMPD #5973

SZUKIEWICZ, J. LVMPD #5411
THOMAS, M. LVMPD #4032
THOMPSON, M. LVMPD #1988
THOWSEN, T. LVMPD #1467
TYLER, Teresa 2895 E. Charleston Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV
TYLER, Samantha 2895 E. Charleston Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV
WELCH, D. LVMPD #1418
WILLIAMS, R. LVMPD #5646
WILSON, Antwoyne 2601 Tuskegee

Las Vegas, NV
WINTERS, Nan 415 S. 10th Street

Las Vegas, NV
WORKMAN, R. LVMPD #4597
ZAZUETA, Beatrice 2850 Cedar #229

Las Vegas, NV
ZAZUETA, Laura 2850 Cedar #229

Las Vegas, NV

DA#00F13901X/gmr

LVMPD EV#0002012429/0003070141
0003252971/0004040324/0004122745/0004260197
0005090185/0006050305/0006-60165/0006070313
0006090140/0006101143/0007120766

BURGWDW; FIRST KID. WDW, SAWDW, ROBBWDW, ATT. MURDER WDW,

FIRST ARSON WDW, FIRST KID. WDW WSBH, SAWDWWSBH,

FIRST KID.WDWV065, SAWDWVO065, ROBBWDWVO65, MURDERWDW, BWDW

(TK6)
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STEWART L. BELL i g A -
DISTRICT ATTORNEY TR il
Nevada Bar #000477 cL

200 S. Third Street .
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

(702) 455-4711

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

-VS§- Case No. 174954
Dept. No.  XVI

JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka Judg Capri Porter,

#1682627
SECOND
Defendant. AMENDED
INFORMATION
STATE OF NEVADA

ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK

STEWART L. BELL, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka Judg Capri Porter, the Defendant(s) above named, having
committed the crimes of BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON
(Felony - NRS 205.060, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165), SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH
USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366, 193.165), ROBBERY WITH
USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.380, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE
KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODILY
HARM (Felony - NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165), SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON WITH SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Felony - NRS 200.364,
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200.366, 193.165), ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony -
NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165), FIRST DEGREE ARSON (Felony - NRS 205.010),
SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE
OR OLDER (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366, 193.165, 193.167), ROBBERY WITH USE OF
A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER (Felony - NRS 200.380,
193.165, 193.167), ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Felony -
NRS 200.380, 193.165, 193.330), MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN
MURDER), (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165) and BATTERY WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 200.481), on or between February 1, 2000 and June 9,
2000, within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of
statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of
Nevada,
COUNT I -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by TERESA TYLER, located at 2895 East Charleston Boulevard, Apartment
No. 1016 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT I - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away TERESA
TYLER, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said TERESA TYLER, against her
will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT 1II - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:

sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said TERESA TYLER, against
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her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT IV - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said TERESA TYLER, against
her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT V - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the said TERESA TYLER, against her will,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT VI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject TERESA TYLER, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the said TERESA TYLER, against her will,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT VII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about February 1, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of TERESA
TYLER, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without the
consent and against the will of the said TERESA TYLER, said Defendant using a deadly
weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT VIII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, uniawfully, and feleniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: scissors and/or a knife, with intent to

commit larceny, and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony,
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that certain building occupied by LEONA CASE, located at 2900 East Charleston Boulevard,
Apartment No. 50 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT IX - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away LEONA
CASE, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commussion of said crime, resulting
in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.
COUNT X - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH

SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject LEONA CASE, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime,
resulting in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.
COUNT XI- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there, without authority of law, and with
premeditation and deliberation, and with malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt
to kill LEONA CASE, a human being, by stabbing at or into the body of the said LEONA CASE
with a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, and by choking the said LEONA CASE around the neck
with a phone cord, and/or by the Defendant thereafter locking LEONA CASE in her bathroom
and setting her apartment on fire, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: knife, during

the commission of said crime.

COUNT XII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON WITH
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
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sexually assault and subject LEONA CASE, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said LEONA CASE, against her
will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime, resulting in substantial bodily harm to the said LEONA CASE.
COUNT XIII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or food stamps,
from the person of LEONA CASE, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of
injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said LEONA CASE, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XIV- FIRST DEGREE ARSON

did, on or about March 7, 2000, then and there willfully, unlawfully, maliciously and
feloniously set fire to, and thereby cause to be burned, a certain apartment, located at 2900 East
Charleston Boulevard, Apartment No. 50 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, said
property being then and there the property of LEONA CASE, by use of open flame and
flammable and/or combustible materials, and/or by manner or means unknown.
COUNT XV -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by RAMONA LEYVA, located at 600 East Bonanza Avenue, Apartment No.
114 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XVI - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority
of law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away RAMONA
LEYVA, a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said RAMONA LEY VA, against
her will, and without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault,

said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
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COUNT XVII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject RAMONA LEYVA, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said RAMONA LEY VA, against
her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said
crime.
COUNT XVIII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about March 25, 2000, then and there wilfuily, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: car keys and/or a 1980 Buick, bearing Nevada license no. 657 KMC,
from the person of RAMONA LEYVA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear
of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said RAMONA LEYVA, said
Detendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XIX -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or
a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by MARLENE LIVINGSTON, located at 2301 Clifford, Las Vegas, Clark County,
Nevada.
COUNT XX - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65

YEARS OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject MARLENE LIVINGSTON, a female person being 65 years of age
or older, to sexual penetration, to-wit: fellatio, by placing his penis in or on the mouth of the
said MARLENE LIVINGSTON, against her will, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit:

a knife, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXI - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF
AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 4, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and felonicusly take
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personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or car keys
and/or a 1991 Dodge, bearing Nevada license no. 728 ENB, from the person of MARLENE
LIVINGSTON, a person 65 years of age or older, or in her presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said MARLENE
LIVINGSTON, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission
of said crime.
COUNT XXII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
enter, while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny,
and/or a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain
building occupied by CLARENCE AND FRANCIS RUMBAUGH, located at 436 North 12th
Street, A}:;artment No. B therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XXIII - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS OF

AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of CLARENCE
RUMBAUGH, a person 635 years of age or older, or in his presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said
CLARENCE RUMBAUGH, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the
commission of said crime.

COUNT XXIV - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, VICTIM 65 YEARS
OF AGE OR OLDER

did, on or about April 12, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of FRANCIS
RUMBAUGH, a person 65 years of age or older, or in her presence, by means of force or
violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said FRANCIS
RUMBAUGH, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission

of said crime.
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COUNT XXV -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 6, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or
a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by LEROY FOWLER, located at 1121 East Ogden, Apartment No. 9 therein, Las
Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XXVI-BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, with intent to commit larceny, and/or
a felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by JONI HALL, located at 624 North 13th Street, Apartment No. B therein, Las
Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT XXVII - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously, and without authority of
law, seize, confine, inveigle, entice, decoy, abduct, conceal, kidnap, or carry away JONI HALL,
a human being, with the intent to hold or detain the said JONI HALL, against her will, and
without her consent, for the purpose of committing robbery and/or sexual assault, said Defendant
using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXVIII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously
sexually assault and subject JONI HALL, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: sexual
intercourse, by inserting his penis into the vagina of the said JONI HALL, against her will, said
Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXIX - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 7, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: a Westinghouse color television and/or a Lenox portable CD player
and/or a baby stroller, from the person of JONI HALL, or in her presence, by means of force or

violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said JONI
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HALL, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a knife, during the commission of said’
crime.
COUNT XXX - BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 8, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,
while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, with intent to commit larceny, and/or a
felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
occupied by GYALTSO LUNGTOK, located at 415 South 10th Street, Apartment No. H
therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XXXI - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 8, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of GYALTSO LUNGTOK, from the person of GYALTSO LUNGTOK, or in his
presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against
the will of the said GYALTSO LUNGTOK, said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a
gun, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXXII - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER)

did, on or about June §, 2000, then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of
law, and with premeditation and deliberation and malice aforethought, kill GYALTSO
LUNGTOK, a human being, by shooting at and into the body of the said GYALTSO
LUNGTOK with use of a deadly weapon, to-wit: a gun, the Defendant being responsible under
one or more of the following theories of criminal liability, to-wit: 1)Premeditation and
deliberation: by the Defendant directly committing said felony offense as the perpetrator, and/or
2) Felony murder: by the Defendant committing said felony offense during the perpetration or
attempted perpetration of the crime(s) of burglary and/or robbery.

COUNT XXXIII -BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter,

while in possession of a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, with intent to commit larceny, and/or a

felony, to wit: sexual assault and/or robbery and/or any other felony, that certain building
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occupied by LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and BEATRIZ ZAZUETA, located
at 2830 East Cedar, Apartment No. 229 therein, Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.
COUNT XXXIV - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously take
personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States, from the person of LAURA
ZAZUETA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without
the consent and against the will of the said LAURA ZAZUETA, said Defendant using a deadly
weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXXV - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and/or BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
from the person of GUADALUPE LOPEZ, or in his presence, by means of force or violence or
fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said GUADALUPE LOPEZ,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT XXXVI - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt
to take personal property, to wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any
other property of LAURA ZAZUETA, GUADALUPE LOPEZ and/or BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
from the person of BEATRIZ ZAZUETA, or in her presence, by means of force or violence or
fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the will of the said BEATRIZ ZAZUETA,
said Defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission of said crime.
COUNT XXXVII- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there, without authority of law, and with

premeditation and deliberation, and with malice aforethought, wilfully and feloniously attempt
to kill GUADALUPE LOPEZ, a human being, by pointing a gun at the body of the said
GUADALUPE LOPEZ, the Defendant thereafter putting the gun to the forehead of the said
GUADALUPE LOPEZ and threatening to “start blasting” if he did not receive money, the
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Defendant thereafter firing approximately three shots at the said GUADALUPE LOPEZ, striking
him once in the leg, the defendant using a deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, during the commission

of said crime.

COUNT XXXVIII - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did, on or about June 9, 2000, then and there, wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously use
force and violence upon the person of another, to wit: GUADALUPE LOPEZ, with use of a
deadly weapon, to wit: a gun, by the Defendant shooting a gun at the said GUADALUPE
LOPEZ, striking him in the leg.

STEWART L. BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

DOUGLAS HERNDON
Chief Deputy District Attorney
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Clark County District Attorney
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Chief Deputy District Attorney AIPRy
Nevada Bar 2004286 TR a/"‘é‘?ﬁ‘m
200 South Third Street CLERK

Las Vegas, NV 89155-2211
(702) 4354711
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, 3

_VS_
Case No. C174954

JUSTIN D. PORTER, DeptNo.  XVI
#1682627

Defendant.

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS NOTICE OF INTENT TO
SEEK DEATH PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF INTERNATIONAL TREATY AND
CUSTOMARY LAW

DATE OF HEARING: 12-17-02
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M.

; THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the
17th day of December, 2002, the Defendant being present, represented by JOSEPH
ABOOD, Deputy Public Defender, and CURTIS BROWN, Deputy Public Defender, the
Plaintiff being represented by STEWART L. BELL, District Attorney, through LISA
LUZAICH, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having heard the arguments of
counsel] and good cause appearing therefor,

"
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant's Motion to Dismiss Notice of Intent
to Seek Death Penalty for Violation of International Treaty and Customary Law, shall be,

and it is denied.

DATED this <307 day of December, 2002.

(ISTRICT JUDGE? 7

STEWART L. BELL

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar # A

LISA LUZAJCH
Chief D District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005056
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FILED iN OPEN COURT

Ease wo. 174954 CRIGINAL FEB 09 2005
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DOCKET U DEPUTY

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
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THE STATE OF NEVADA,

PLAINTIFF,
VS,
JUSTIN D.

PORTER, AKA JUG CAPRI PORTER,

DEFENDANT,

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT
OF

EVIDENTIARY HEARING

BEFCRE THE HONORABLE JUDGE JOHN
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

DATED TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 8,

FOR THE PLAINTIEF: LISA LUSAICH -AND-

FOR THE DEFENDANT: CURTIS BROWN -AND-

REPORTED BY: PEGGY ISOCM, RMR,

JENNIFER KIMMEL
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2005

BILL BERRETT
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-AND- 3 PROCEEDINGS
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6 | this is the time set for hearing in the matter of State
FOR THE DEFENDANT:  CURTIS BROWN, ESQUIRE 7 | versus Justin Porter. Let the record reflect the
JOSEPH ABOOD, ESQUIRE 8 | presence of the defendant, his counsel, the state's
PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE
309 SOUTH THIRD STREET #226 9 | attorneys.
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89155
s 10 Are you prepared?
11 MS. LUSAICH: State is ready.
12 MR. BROWN: Defense is ready, your Honor.
13 THE COURT: Allright. Go ahead.
14 MR. BROWN: Your Honor, this is a preliminary,
15| matter.
16| THE COURT: Yes.
17 MR. BROWN: Could we have the wrist restraints
18| removed from Mr. Porter?
19 THE COURT: He still has leg, leg irons?
20 MR. BROWN: Yes, he does.
21 THE COURT: Okay. Fine.
22 THE BAILIFF: Which hand do you write with?
23 MR. BROWN: He writes with his right.
24 THE BAILIFF: You want the right one removed.
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1 MR. BROWN: If you won't do both, at least the 1 THE COURT: Thank you. !
2 | right. 2

3 THE BAILIFF: It's up to the C.O. 3 DR. JOHN ANTHONY PAGLINI

4 THE CORRECTIONS OFFICER: Ckay. 4 Having been first duly sworn to tell the

5 THE COURT: Are we ready? 5 truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,

5 All right. Let the record reflect this is the 6 {estified as follows:

7 | time for the defendant's motion t0 remand to Juvenile 7 THE COURT CLERK: Would you state your full name
8 | Court. 8 | and spell your last name for the record, please.

9 MS. LUSAICH: No. 9 THE WITNESS: John Anthony Paglini,
10 THE COURT: Also the motion to suppress 10| P-a-g--i-n-i.
11| defendant's confessions. 11

12 MS. LUSAICH: My understanding it's only the 12 DIRECT EXAMINATION

13| motion to suppress. 13| BY MR. BROWN:

14 MR. ABOOD: It's the continuation of that motion. 14, Q. Good afternoon, Doctor.

15 THE COURT: Let the record reflect that the 15 A. Hello.

16| calendar is wrong. 18 Q. Could you explain to the judge what it is that

17 MS. LUSAICH: Oh 17| you are specialized in?

18 MR. BRCWN: The calendar is probably not wrong 18 A. I'maclinical psychologist. | have a doctorate

19| nearly as much as we are. But this is a continuation of 19| in clinical psychology. | went to college at Catholic

20| the suppression motion. 20| University in Washington, D.C. Graduate school was

21 THE COURT: Allright. Fine. Thank you. 21| Nlinois School of Professional Psychology. Internship

22 You may proceed. 22| was United States Air Force in Washington D.C. And

23 MR. BROWN: We start by calling Dr. Paglini. 23| received my doctorate from lllinois School of

24 THE COURT: Dr. Paglini. 24| Professional Psychology in Nineteen Ninety.

6 8

1 MR. BROWN: And just to give your Honor a little 1 Q. Are there any other education or seminar

2 | procedural catch up, the motion that Mr. Abood and myself 2 | programs that you've attended reference your specialty?

3 | filed in challenging the statement given by Mr. Porter 3 A.  Well, to lead up to that from that pointcn i

4| in, | believe it was -- 4 | worked on an inpatient unit at various mental hospitals

5 MS. LUSAICH; August of — 5 | for adolescents and adults. And in the mid Nineties, |

3] MR. BROWN: — August of Two Thousand, listed as 6 | started to work in the forensic area for family courts as

7 | a number of complaints that the statement was coerced, 7 | well as criminal. | attended seminars at the American |
8 | and in addition, that Mr. Porter did not understand the 8 | Board of Professional Forensic Psychology on a consistent
9 | waiver per Miranda of his rights to remain silent and 9 | basis in adolescent and adult matters.

10( have an attorney present with him at the time. And 10 Death penalty, sexual offender assessments,

11| that's basically the body of the motion. 11| ethics, just covered a whole gambit of responsibility

12 As you recall, your Honor, | believe it was last 12| evaluations.

13| April -- no, it wasn't that leng ago. 13 So the primary focus of all my C.E.U.s, likely,

14 MS. LUSAICH: --ish. 14| since Nineteen Ninety-Eight to Nineteen Ninety-Nine has
15 MR. BROWN: Where we started this hearing, where 15| been forensic psychology.

16{ we had the detectives from Chicago testify referencing 16 Q. Have you been certified as an expertin the

171 the coercive aspects as well as the detectives from Las 17| Eighth Judicial District in the past?

18{ Vegas discussing all aspects of both issues. 18 A. I'msorry. What?

19 Now we're continuing with the use of 18 Q. Have you been certified as an expert in the area

20| Dr. Paglini, initially, with respect to part two of that 20| of forensic psychology in the Eighth Judicial District?

21| motion. 21 A. Yes. I've testified at murder trials.

22 THE COURT: Let the recerd reflect that those 22 Q. Have you testified before this court before?

23! transcripts are in the file. 23 A. Yes. In competency-related issues. .
24 MR. BROWN: Thank you, your Honor. 24 Q. As an expert?
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A. Yes. 1 Q. And along those lines, you were asked to do "
Q. Ckay. Have you ever testified or been retained 2 | certain tests and examinations of Mr. Porter?
as an expert on behalf of the State of Nevada. 3 A. Correct.
A. The D.A. has retained me in several cases. The 4 Q. And one of those was an 1.Q. test?
last was on a criminal responsibility case, | think, 5 A. Correct.
sometime in mid Two Thousand and Four. |1estified on 6 Q. Now | believe you additionally indicated that
their behalf. 7 | you did some historical or some collateral background
Q. Okay? And that was a murder case? 8 | interviews and research on behalf of Mr. Porter as well?
A. That's a murder case, correct. 9 A. That's correct. I've talked to family members
MR. BROWN: Your Honor, | would offer 10} as well as Mr. Wilson -- Winston, who was a tutor to
Dr. Paglini to this court as an expert in the area of 11| Mr. Porter during his eighth grade year.
forensic psychology. 12 Q. Now there was a time where you actually traveled
MR, BERRETT: No objection. 13| to Chicage to interview and meet with these people?
THE COURT: Ckay. We'll so accept. 14 A. Yes. | met with the family members and
BY MR. BROWN: 15| Mr. Winston, and also went to his schools.
Q. Now, Doctor, did there come a time on - in or 16 Q. You went to a number of the elementary and high
around Two Thousand, Two Thousand and One, Two Thousand | 17| schools that Mr. Porter attended?
and Two, | know that's a wide range, where | asked you to 18 A. | think the only two | attended was Esmond and
consult on the State of Nevada versus Justin Porter? 19| Grisham which were his grammar schools.
A, Yes, 20 Q. Okay. And you obtained — did you obtain any
Q. Okay. If you have in your records the time of 21| records or documents from these schools?
that consult and initially what you were asked to consult 22 A, Yes, | did.
for? 23 Q. Okay. What was it that you were able to obtain
A. Initially consulted to do a death penalty 24| from that visit?

10 12
evaluation, mitigation evaluation. So the cognitive 1 A. Academic records, in regards to his academic
testing that was performed here actually was under the 2 | history while in Chicago from roughly kindergarten to
guise of the death penalty evaluation. | met with - I'm 3 | approximately ninth grade.
just trying fo find the report here. 4 Q. Okay. And we have those as weli?

THE COURT: Thank you. 5 A. Yes,wedo.

THE WITNESS: | met with Mr. Porter extensively 6 Q. Okay. Nowin response to the request to —
one time eight-hour interview on January Eighteenth, Two 7  well, why don't ycu explain to the court exactly the
Thousand and Tweo — actually, seven hours, 8 | nature of the tests that you did give Mr. Porter?

| met with him at Clark County Detention Center 9 A. Okay. | gave him an 1.Q. test. Actually, |
on February Thirteenth, April Thirteenth, April 10| gave him an 1.Q. test which called the W.AL.S. Three.
Twenty-Second, and June Seventh, Two Thousand and Two. 11| And | give additional tests, which is two achievement

In addition, | conducted approximately eleven to
twelve collateral interviews which includes when | was in
Chicago | interviewed his tutor and other individuals,
hig family members.

| also administered numercus testings.

Q. Okay. So as aresponse to my request, you were
initially retained, as this was going to be a death
penalty case?

A. Correct.

Q. And you were retained for purposes of
establishing some mitigation for the potential penalty
phase of that case?

A. That's correct.

tests and memory tests, and Trails A and B which is a
brief neurological screener test.

Q. Let's go through them one a time.

A.  Okay.

Q. Now, when we talk about an 1.Q. test, is that
how we always understood i, just basic intelligence?

A. Yes. |.Q.test comprises of approximately
eleven to twelve sub scales. Half of them are verbal and
the other half are perceptual organizational, so you're
going to have a verbal |.Q. Perceptual organizational
1.Q)., and then with the combination of those two, you're
going to have a full scale [.Q.

Q. Whatis -
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1 A, I'msorry. ? 1 And so if you have a score of sixty-nine or : *
2 Q. What is that second phase? What is that 2 | below, that — that score is severely impaired and would

3 | perceptual 1.Q.? What does that take in effect? 3 | possibly indicate an individual who is mentally retarded.
4 A. That deals with what we call non-verbat 4 So a score of seventy-eight is considered a

5 | abilities. Such as his ability to copy symbols within a 5 | borderline classification at the seventh percentile which

6 | two minute period or put blocks together. 6 | basically means if | compare Mr. Border to his reference
7 Q. Okay. 7 | group was seventeen years old zero months to nineteen
8 A. Or put pictures in a correct order in a time 8 | years old eleven months, he — ninety-three out of a

9 | measurement. 9 | hundred individuals in that range scored better than he
10 Q. Okay. So they take the verbal. They take the 10| does when it comes to verbal abilities.
11| perceptual? 11 Q. Okay. Justto clarify. Okay. Go on and give
12 A. The non-verbal, perceptual organizational, and 12| us the results of the perceptual.
13| then that equals the full scale 1.Q. 13 A. Okay. The perceptual organizational |.Q. was
14 Q. Okay. 14| eighty which basically indicates that ninety-one out of a
15 A.  And | was forlunate because | had earlier |.Q.s 15| hundred individuals in that reference group, seventeen o
16| from high school to compare his, you know, his 1.Q. from, 16| almost twenty years old, score better than him. He's at
17| which is wonderful. 17| the ninth percentile. His full scale 1.Q. when you

18 Q. And we'll touch on that in just a moment. Now 18| combine the two, is a seventy-seven which places him at
19| with respect to these tests, can you explain exactly how 19| the sixth percentite.
20| the test is given? 20 So, basically, his scores are severely
21 A. Yes. | giveitin person and roughly the 21| impaired.
22| W.ALS Three takes usually anywhere from sixty to ninety 22 Q. Okay. Now, just to get this out of the way. Is

23! minutes. And there's approximately eleven sub tests. 23| Mr. Porter considered mentally retarded?

24| And | have a booklet and a standardized, meaning, | have 24 A. No, he's not.

14 16

1 | to read the instructions and | have to follow the 1 Q. Okay.

2 | instructions clearly. And if he doesn't give a full 2 A. Fortwo reasons: One, his 1.Q.. does not fall

3 | credit response, on occasions | have to prompt him. 3 | below seventy;

4 Q. Okay. And did you do that in this case? 4 Two, he doesn't have impaired adaptive

5 A. Yes. 6 | functioning. Meaning, that you can have an individual

6 Q. Okay. Now, what were the results of the various 6 | with a sixty-eight 1.Q. but their functioning is, let's

7 | factors in that test? You indicated there were the two 7 | just say, sub par, but not totally impaired. And they

8 | sub categories and the final score. If you would just 8 | wouldn't be mentally retarded.

9 | give the Judge the results. g In his case, he has -- he's a border —- | would

10 A. Okay. Mr. Porter's chronological age at the 10| classify him as borderline intelligence. That was the

11| time was nineteen years and | assume it's one month, 11| best way to classify him.

12| roughly. And his verbat 1.Q. was 78 which places him in 12 Q. Okay. Now you indicated that you were fortunate
13| borderline classification percentile seven. Let me 13| in this case because you had other tests from Mr. Porter
14| explain what a 78 means. 14| when he was in the Chicago Scheooel District. Which tests
15| Q. Please. 15| are you referring to?

16 A. An average 1.Q. is cne hundred. And a standard 16 A. Well, if | can, for a secend if | can talk about

17| deviation which is a variance is — one standard 17| his achievement scores | gave him because the achievemer:t
18| deviation is a fifteen so if you have an eighty-five 18| scores also were given several years ago.

19| score that roughly is a below average score at the 19 Q. Okay.

20| sixteenth percentile. 20 A. So | kind of iike -- this way it's going to be

21 If you take away another fifteen peints from 21| kind of easier for everybody to understand everything.
22| eighty-five, you'll have seventy which will bring you 22 Q. Allright. Let's do that. Let's go through the

23| down to the second percentile which is classified as 23| rest of the tests that you gave Mr. Porter, and then

24| mentally retarded and just in terms of [.Q. level. 24| we'll relate it back to the historical report.

AA 0052




> l

-

1 A. Ckay. i 1 What | also did is with the — this test, "
2 Q. So go ahead and explain to the court exactly 2 | there's additional sub tests which | gave which was

3 | what the achievement test is. 3 | reading comprehension. He had a standard score of

4 A. Okay. | also administered the W.R.A.T. Three 4 | seventy-one, which is at the third percentile with the -

5 | which is called the Wide Range Achievement Test Revision 5 | 3.6 grade equivalent.

6 | Third Edition, and Wechslers Individual Achievement 6 Listening comprehension was a seventiy-two.

7| Test. 7 | Just a little over, you know, let's just say, border,

8 | administered the W.R.A.T. Three on January 8 [ very borderline intelligence at the third percentile,

9 | Eighth, Two Thousand and Two. And, basically, what | 9 | Once again 3.5 equivalent.
10] came up with, there was three sub tests to this. 10 And oral expression which is expressing his
11 The reading, he had a standard score of 11| ideas when he's seeing a stimulus, was in the average of
12| sixty-three which indicates he's a grade equivalent score 12| minus range at approximately the fifth grade 5.5 grade
13| of second grader. Percentile was one. 13| level. So here we have an individual who -- which we'll
14 Spelling, he had a standard score of 14| getinto probably in a second — who is diagnosed very

15| fifty-four, grade equivalent of a first grader with a 15| early on in the Chicago Board of Education as being

16| percentile of one fifth of one percent. So he's very 16| severely learning disabled.

17| severely impaired spelling. To give you an example of 17 And as a nineteen year old, nineteen years

18| his spelling abilities: 18| approximately one month, he attained scores

19 Enter is spelled I-N-T-E-R-E. 19| approximately, | would say, his reading pronunciation

20 Circle is spelled C-U-O-K-L. 20| level, his reading comprehension level, and his listening
21 Correct is spelled C-K-O-R-E-K. 21| comprehension level consistently scored approximately 3.5
22 And material is spelled M-O-T-E-R-E-O. 22| to 3.8 grade level. So if's severely impaired.

23 And that was his spelling abilities. 23 And that was consistent with about ten days

24 Now, his reading abilities basically what this 24| apart.

18 20

1 | is more or less a pronunciation. And he -- 1 can tell he 1 | also gave him a memory test. And this is

2 | tried because he self corrected on numerous times, but he 2 | called the Wechsler Memory Scale, Third Edition.

3 | just couldn't pronounce certain words, like, lame, 3 Q. Before we go to the memory test, if we could

4 | siretch, bulk, collapse, triumph. 4 | backup to the Wide Range Achievement Test?

5 he could not pronounce those words. He also 5 A.  Yes, sir.

& | couldn't pronounce split or spell. He had difficulties 6 Q. That's the first -- that's the first test you

7 | with that. He did pronounce accurately: In, cat, book, 7 | indicated that you gave that was a type of a reading

8 | tree and other words like that. So he was pretty 8 | comprehension test.

9 | severely impaired. 9 A. It's —it's more. The W.R.AT. Three, it's

10 Then what | did, | decided, approximately ten 10| more of a pronunciation test. And the rational for that

11| days later when | had seen him for a full day's 11| is because they want to see if individuals can pronounce
12| assessment, to give him a different achievement score to 12| the words. They want to know is it a comprehension

13| see how he would come up and see if these results would 13| problem or is it just a word attack problem that they

14| carry over. 14| don't even know basic, you know, the first step, the

15 His basic reading score was sixty-three which is 15| reading comprehension, First have you to read.

16| exactly what | had in the first score. 16 Q. Right.

17 His spelling score was a fifty, so which he had 17 A. You have to be able to look at words and

18] a fifty-four. So basically he's below the first 18| pronounce them correctly. And even on this he scored
19 percentile in spelling in both tests given approximately 19| very poorly, approximately the second grade level. And
20] ten days apart. 20| his reading comprehension seemed to be over the third —
21 His mathematical reasoning score was a 21| under the third grade level.

22| sixty-three which is the same as 1 gave earlier, ten days 22 Q. So breaking that down, this nineteen year old's
23| earlier. Sc once again, they were — this is consistent 23| reading tevel was essentially that of a second grade?

24| scores. 24 A.  No. Well, | would say, if we're looking - if
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1 | we're really kind of going across the board, | would say 2 1 | means — ' 2
2 | it would be safer to' say that he's probably about the end 2 A, Well —

3 | of third grade. 3 Q. - tricking or faking -- ‘
4 Q. End of third grade? 4 A. —in this case that, perhaps, for secondary ;
5 A. | would say that would probably be safer. 5 | gain, the defendant would fake bad.

6 Q. Okay. Now did you give this wide range 6 Q. Okay. :
7 | achievement test in response to the |.Q. test? Oris 7 A. You knew, perhaps he could fake — he would want
8 | this something you do as a normal course of the cognitive 8 | to look mentally retarded to avoid the death penalty.

9 | testing you do? 9 | That would be one aspect of, perhaps, malingering.
10 A.  Well, when you're doing a death penalty case, 10 Q. Are those always —- is malingering always an
11| you're looking for any aspects of mitigation. And if I'm 11| aspect that you are looking for in evaluating when
12| going to possibly give him paper and pencil test, | have 12| conducting these types of test?
13| to understand what his reading level is going to be 13 A Yes, itis.
14| like. Because when you're talking to him, initially, 14 Q. Okay. And what assurances do you have, through *
15| although you're seeing a deficit, he acquiescence. 15| at teast the first three tests that we talked about, that

16| Meaning, that he'll kind of nod, yeah, yeah, | 16| he was not malingering?

17| understand, but he doesn't as well as I'm thinking he's 17 A. We have a few things which | guess, one is that

18| understanding. 18] I, fortunately, have older records which indicate that

19 So when 1 gave him this test, | recognized, even 19| his scores are consistent from when he was in high
20| if | wanted fo give him a personality test, | couldn't 20; school, in ninth grade. So that helps cut a lot.

21! because he's not going to understand the vocabulary which 21 | think, when | did my initial assessment, |

22| is normally an eighth grade level. 22| didn't have those records, so | got them at a later date

23 So the reason to - why to give him an 1.Q. and 23| and said, oh, look, there's some comparison here which is
24| achievement test is, does he have a mental retardation? 24! wonderful.

22 24

1 | And the answer was, no. 1 But if you look at W.A.L.S. Three, there's

2 Does he have a, perhaps, a learning disability 2 | approximately eleven different sub scales. And what

3 | and how does that factor into, you know, any mitigation 3 | we're looking here is if somebody is trying to malinger,

4 | that we're looking al? So that's the reason why | gave 4 | we're going to lock for how he's responding to the

5 | the test. 5 | questions.

6 Q. Now, once you gave the wide range achievement 6 Meaning that, if you're trying to malinger,

7 | test, did you do -- you decided to support that with a 7 | maybe in this case you're going to want to look really

8 [ similar test, but not the same test? 8 [ bad. And in some cases when I'm working with guys, you
9 A. Yeah. Actually they're correlated. My goal 9 | know, they can't tell me the simplest things.

10| was, is that, the Wechsler Individual Achievement Test 10 With Mr. Porter's case what | -- the general

11| had roughly a more scales to assess himon. lthad a 11| consensus was, is that, he was doing well at the

12| reading comprehension component and a listening 12| beginning of the test and then would start fading as the

13| comprehension component, and the W.R.A.T. Three didn't. 13 test became much more difficult, which is something that
14 So | was looking for two things: 14| | would expect.

15 One is, would | get consistency with the 15 Also he was self correcting. And what that

16| scores? Well, and that would fall into line, is he 16| means is that if he gave me a response, he then, all of a
17| malingering? 17| sudden, was thinking about it meore, and says, no, it's

18 And two, you know, | wanted to kind of look at 18| not this; it's this. And he would give me a correct

19| his comprehensicn, his ability to understand what is 19| response.

20| being said to him. 20 And he did that numerous times throughout the

21 Q. Okay. Now you mentioned malingering, and it's 21| testing where he would, you know, on one occasion on the
22| something we're going fo talk about a little bit more 22| achievement test, he got one question wrong, and then the
23| when we get into his historical education patterns. But 23| next question he got that wrong.

24| while you've mentioned that, malingering essentially 24 And | said, what's gcing on? He said, I'm
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still thinking about the first question. And then he got % 1 S0 he did that fairly weli on that. So | was 2
that one right. And so, you know, there was an 2 | confident that, okay, here he is. He's attempting to do
investment that was seen with him. Also with that 3 | as well as he can on this.

investment, what | noticed was, he had word finding 4 Q. And those, you indicated that is a non-verbal

problems. He couldn't express himself appropriately. 5 | intelligence?

He might have had an idea in his head, but he 6 A. Yes.
couldn't come across with it because he didn't have the 7 Q. Those kinds of picture associations?
vocabulary level. So his expressive vocabutary is 8 A. Right.
especially poor when we compare him to other kids his 9 Q. That doesn't reflect, necessarily, such as the
age. Roughly, you know, | would say kind of like on 10| other tests do his reading comprehension and his reading
third grade levet, maybe fourth grade level. Yeah. 11| abilities?

Q. So with respect, at least, to the adult 12 A. The T.0.N.|. was designed to be language and
intelligence test, the wide range achievement test, and 13| culture free. So it has nothing to do with language at
the individual achievement test, the Wechsler Individual 14/ all.
Achievement Test, you're satisfied there's no indications 15 Q. Okay. And you also made mention of Trails
of malingering with respect to those tests? 16| Making A and B Test?

A. Correct. Also when | gave him the Trails A and 17 A. Just a brief neurological screener, where if he
B which is a brief neurological screener, he scored in 18| would have bombed on that, then | probably would have
the normal range. Indicating that he was trying. And 19| consulted and, you know, maybe have him see a neurologist
then | gave him at T.O.N.1. Three which is a test of 20| or something, if he would have done very poorly. it's a
non-verbal learning. 21| very easy test to be successful in.

And, and this is more of where he's looking at 22 And once again, if he would have failed that
pictures and he doesn't tatk, but he points to what the 23| test or had a markedly impaired score i'd have to either
correct item is. And he scored kind of in the average 24| say, is he malingering? Or does he have some kind of

26 28
minus range. All indicating to me that, you know, there 1 | neurological impairment? And he passed that. He's fine.
was an effort there. That he was trying. And even on 2 Q. Buthe's —okay. Now, is that a full ‘
T.Q.N.1, he was self correcting, meaning, that he's 3 | indication of the various tests that you actually
trying to get the right answer. 4 | perfarmed with Mr. Porter?

Q. He's trying to succeed? 5 A. That covers it with the exception of the memory

A. He's trying 1o succeed, yeah. 6 | tests. The Wechsler Memory Scale Third Edition.

Q. In your experience malingerers are trying to 7 Q. And what is that?
fail? 8 A. The reason why | administered this test —-

A. Their trying, yes. Correct. 9 THE COURT: Excuse me, Doctor. Can | just

Q. Now you mentioned those two other tests, the 10| interrupt you, for just a brief second? When you said he
T.O.N.I. and the Trails Making A and B. Whatis it 11| had no neurological impairment, that means no crganic
exactly that the T.O.N.I. {est, the test of non-verbal 12| defect?
intelligence, is attempting to discover? 13 THE WITNESS: Well, my — my assessment was very

A. As stated just briefly. Sometimes when | have 14| brief, but based on what | have here, | think | have a
somecne whe's doing so poorly on an 1.Q. test and 15| person who has a severe learning disability as opposed to
Achievement scores | want to understand, geez, what is 16| someone who has a head injury.
their non-verbal abilities like? Can they score a little 17 THE COURT: That's why | asked.
better? 18 THE WITNESS: Yeah. Right.

And this is a test where they're going to see 19 THE COURT: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
maybe a pattern of five response choices. They have to 20 Go ahead.
pick the right response choice and complete the pattern. 21 MR. BROWN: Thank you, your Honor.

And in this case he had an average -- actually, 22{ BY MR. BROWN:

I misquoted. 1 said average minus. It was an average 23 Q. We were discussing the —
score. 24 A. The Wechsler Memery Scale, Third Edition.
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1 THE COURT: Right. 1 Q. Is that one of the areas you logk at when you're ¥
2 THE WITNESS: This is divided inte different 2 | trying fo decide if somebody is malingering or )
3 | sections, which is short term memory and long term memory 3 | intentionally faking this particular test? '
4 | and attention concentration. 4 A. I'm looking for everything. Because | mean, to '
5 And short term memory is divided in two aspects 5 | be really honest with you, is that I'm not going to be

6 | which is verbal and also visual. 6 [ coming up on the stand if | think the guy is malingering

7 So we have a verbal memory, short term memory, 7 | because they're going to be hiring me. Then they will be

8 | and a visual short term memory. 8 [ bringing me in because he's malingering.

9 And more or less across the board on everything 9 So | don't want to come up and say the guy is
10/ he scored, auditory short term memory is seventy-four, 10| doing well when all the evidence indicates he's
11{ visual short term memory is seventy-eight. Overall short 11| malingering. And in this case, you know, there's no
12| term memory is a seventy-one at the third percentile. 12| evidence of malingering.
13 Long term memory is seventy-four for verbal. 13 Q. Okay. Now, just to backup a little. On that

141 Visual is seventy-eight. 14| test you were throwing out a lot of numbers. Seventy,

15 General was a seventy-three. 15| seventy-eight, et cetera.

16 His auditory recognition delay was a little 16 If you could backup to this, to this latest

17} higher. 17| test and put those numbers in context for the Court as

18 Q. Whatis that? 18| to, on some of them you were saying which percentile

19 A.  Well, that's basically — if's easier. What it 19| Mr. Porter fell into. But if you could go through one at

20| is is thatif | — if 1 give you a story and | say, did 20| a time, and you could give me the score and the context

21| it happen at seven o'clock or nine o'clock? You have, 21| in which that score was reviewed?

22| you know, kind of two cheices and something is there. 22 A. Sure.

23| The answer is there for you. And it's easier for you to 23 Q. And the percentile that that compares him to the
24| do that, recognition than recall. Recall is much more 24| population.

30 32

1 | difficult. 1 A. Il do a little better than that. I'll start

2 it's kind of like if | give you an essay format 2 | at the top.

3 [ in a question, that's geing to be much more difficult 3 Q. Okay.

4 | than if | give you a multiple cheoice and the answer is 4 A.  Which if you score a hundred and thirty, you're

5 | there. 5 | in a very superior range in the upper second percentile.

6 Q. |see. 6 | You're two standard deviations above the mean. If you

7 A. So normally with people with recognition are 7 | score a one twenty to one twenty-nine, you're in the

8 [ going to score higher than recall and he did because he 8 | superior range. Roughly about ninety to ninety-eight

9 | had an eighty which puts him at the ninth percentile, 9 | percent, roughly.

10 So overall, what we have is, these scores, his 10 If you score a one ten to one nineteen, you're

11| memory scores are consistent with his 1.Q. He's an 11| in above-average range. And you're going to be roughly,
12| individual with a borderfine intelligence and his 12{ 11hink, in the seventieth percentile, maybe the

13| achievement scores which we've kind of gotten into, are 13| ninetieth percentile, roughly. I'm a little off on the

14| even lower, so to speak, than his 1.Q. which is kind of 14| numbers, a few.

15| consistent. 15 If you score a hundred, that's considered

16 Q. Now on this memory test, you indicated that he 16| average. Thatis the - right in the middle. And that

17| improved in the areas that you would have anticipated 17| is our benchmark when we do the standardized deviations.
18| someone to improve - or scored hetter in the areas on 18| So anything from, like, a ninety-two to, like, a one zero '
19| the test you would anticipate somebody to score better 19| eight, 1 would consider a ninety-two to be average minus
20| on? 20| and one zero eight to be kind of average plus.

21 A. Correct. Person is usually going to score 21 The person has, like, a ninety-six to one zero

22| higher recognition than recall. 22! four, I'd say that's average.

23 Q. And he did that? 23 If | see a scere that's eighty to eighty-nine,

24 A, He did that. 24| t would say that is below average score. An eighty-nine
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would be kind of a below average plus, and, you know, an . 1 MR. BROWN: The state - you should have a copy'? %
eighty, obviously, kind of a below average minus, 2 MR, BERRETT: We do.

If | have a guy who has an 1.Q. of seventy to 3 MR. BROWN: Yeah. They have the school records,
seventy-nine, that is borderline intelligence because 4 | Judge. And the Court's pleasure whether we could take — :
it's right over mental retardation. And the person is 5 You want to fake all the records and maybe mark
severely impaired. With a seventy-nine, | think you 6 | them as one stack or do you want me {o break them down as
might be at the, about the seventh percentile. And if 7 | to different -- |
you have a seventy, you're at the second percentile, 8 MR, BERRETT: Oh, no. Do one stack, That's

So in order te be qualified as mentally 9 | easier.
retarded, we're looking at the bottom two percent in our 10 THE COURT: Fine. )
country who have impaired adaptive abilities, and that's 11 MR. BROWN: So let's just put a big clip on
sixty-nine or below. 12| this, and then have it marked.
If you have a fifty or a forty-five, you know, 13 THE COURT CLERK: Defendant's A.
you're really impaired. 14 MR. BROWN: Defendant's A.
So in his case, he has an overall 1.Q., once 15| BY MR, BROWN:
again, to kind of get back to it, with a verbal .Q. of a 16 Q. Do you have a copy of the school records?
seventy-gight at the seventh percentile which means that 17 A. Of Chicago's?
ninety-three out of a hundred people do better than him 18 Q. Yes. Chicago's. Just so that we can —if|
in his group, his age group, which is seventeen years 19| can ask to you review the ones that I've marked as
zero months to nineteen years eleven months. 20| Exhibit A, real briefly, to see if these are the same or
Q. Now does that scale apply in the same way, for 21| copies of a docurnent that you obtained from the Chicago
example, to the Wechsler Memory Scale? 22| School District, and the ones that you'll be testifying
A Yes. 23| about this morning -- afternoon.
Q. Okay. So when you're talking he scored seventy 24 A. They seem very similar.
34 36
or seventy-three - 1 Q. Okay. .
A.  We're talking the same range. 2 MR. BROWN: Judge, I'd move for the admission of
Q. It's the same range as with the adult 3 | these.
intelligence scale? 4 MR. BERRETT: No objection.
A. Correct. 5 THE COURT: It will be admitted.
Q. Okay. Now you had indicated that in addition to 6 MR. BROWN: Okay. I'll give this to you now,
conducting these tests yourself, you had access to school 7 | your Honor.
records, interviews with family members, a tutor, and 8 THE COURT: Thank you. ‘
other individuals to help give you collateral background 9 MR. BROWN: If you want to peruse through them.
information on Mr. Porter; is that correct? 10| BY MR. BROWN:
A. That's correct. 11 Q. Okay. Dr. Paglini, now with respect to the
Q. Okay. Throughout these interviews and these 12| records — let me catch up.
document reviews, were your findings consistent or 13 Okay. You have, | believe, elementary school
inconsistent with the tests you gave? 14| progress records?
A. They were consistent. May | explain his 15 A, Yes.
educational history? 16 Q. And elementary school standard test data?
Q. | would appreciate that. 17 MR. BROWN: It's another sheet that looks
A. Okay. 18| similar.
Q. |think what I'd like to do is, actually, maybe 18 THE COURT: It's at the top of the first sheet.
give some of this to the court as well, so we'll have the 20 THE WITNESS: Yeah, | have this one. Oh, that
Court have some of the school records, and we can go 21| one,
through them. 22| BY MR. BROWN:
THE COURT: Anything that you give me, you have 23 Q. That's the test data sheet.
{o give the state. 24 A. Let me borrow yours. ['ve seen it.
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Q. I'm going to ask you to explain. 1 | about a year behind when he’s starting things off.
A. Imight have it. This is it here. [ just have 2 Q. Okay.
it stapled. 3 A. In the fourth grade, it appears, if we're
Q. Yeah. And you have, if | may - 4 | looking at the same standardized achievement score, his
A, |see. 5 | word analysis is at the first percentile with a 1.8 grade
Q. --the same copies as | do. If you could just 6 | level. So he's gone up about two grades. And he's gone
explain to the court as best as you understand what these 7 | up maybe about one and a half grades. He's stili behind
records are indicating on these reports? 8 | by two years, so this is Spring of Ninety-Four.
A. Okay. Let's go with the — his history, Chicago 9 Vocabulary ability at the first percentile 1.5
Board of Education. 10 Now in sixth grade, now this is interesting
Q. Okay. 11| because it has a Spring Ninety-Five and a Spring
A. He was enrolled at Esmond in Nineteen 12| Ninety-Six, both grade six.
Eighty-Seven and Eighty-Eight. And he missed forty-three 13 And [ am not sure here if he repeated the sixth
days of Headstart. And then he attended Esmond for 14| grade, because | don't think he did. But | have
kindergarten. 151 different scores here. But anyways, it seems that his
Q. [fl could just stop you right there. When you 16| reading went up in the Spring of Ninety-Six to a
say the Headstart Program, is that a program that's 17| percentile of thirty-six which is pretty interesting
actually designed to take place before kindergarten? 18| because when you move it to the side here and you go
A. Correct. 19| Spring of Ninety-Seven, his reading then goes down to the
Q. And he missed the first forty-three days of that 20| fifth grade level and vocabulary is 6.1.
program? 21 But that is during the time he had a ot of
A, Allright. 22| tutoring. Mr. Winston worked with him, | think, twice a
Q. Which is a school year? 23| week for almost a whole school year. So it's kind of
A. Yeah. He missed probably about twenty-five 24| interesting how he kind of peaks up there. And the
a8 40
percent of the school year. 1 | reason why this is significant is — and I'm getting
Q. Okay. Then he attended kindergarten at Esmond, 2 | ahead of ourselves — but if on the district two zero six
in which case he missed about twenty-three days out of 3 | high school, Bloom High School — bloom Trails High
ahout sixty some days. And then he was transferred to 4 | School, if you look at his testing, they have an 1.Q.
Fuller for scme reason. 5 | test and an achievement test.
And he passed kindergarten. However, in first & Q. Now are those similar to what the tests you
grade he — he was identified as special education, | 7 | administered to Mr. Porter?
think, in kindergarten. 8 A. This is what | administered. These scores here,
Q. Okay. 9 | | would not have - this is a standardized scores. So
A.  And he repeated first grade. And he was 10| that's different.
eventually sent to Grisham which has better facilities in 11 Q. Okay.
the public school system to treat individuals with 12 A.  So now this score here, the W.R.A.T. Three is
learning disabilities. 13| similar to what | administered.
Basically, | guess, if you kind of want to go 14 Q. And that's a test that was given to Justin
through some of these records here. 15| Porter in Nineteen Ninety-Seven?
Q. Yes. 16 A. September Eleventh, Nineteen Ninety-Seven?
A. In second grade he was assessed with word 17 THE COURT: | have that, yes.
analysis at a first percentile. When he compares himself 18| BY MR, BROWN:
to second graders vocabulary at the thirteenth 19 Q. Okay.
percentile, slightly below. 20 A. And his age at that time would have been
And reading was at a 1.8 level, so he was — | 21j fourteen years eight months.
don't know when this - this is in the Spring, sc he 22 Q. Okay.
should have probably been at 2.7 grade level. 23 A. And why this is significant is because his 1.Q.,
And his reading level was 1.8, so he's already 24| his verbal 1.Q., is seventy-six. When | gave — let's
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see here. No, I'm sorry, a seventy — yeah, a 1 Heaith and Safety, Physical Ed, Library Science, *
seventy-six. When | gave it five years later, he gota 2 | like, you know, B's and A's. So he did a little better.
seventy-eight, so that's pretty consistent. 3 But once again, the core classes, he's really

When | gave the performance scale |.Q., he had 4 | struggling. And in those classes he's, you know,
an eighty-seven on that test and | got an eighty. And 5 [ sometimes, you know, well | can't say how they graded
that's within normal kind of scoring. 6 | him, so —

And | had a full school L.Q. of seventy-seven. 7 THE COURT: Excuse me. I'd just like to comment '
They didn't present the full scale 1.Q. 8 | that you said social premotion. | mean, that's a term of

Now the difference was, they administered the g [ art. 1find it interesting that the written
W.L.S.K. Three, and | administered the W.A.l.S. Three. 10| documentation on the school psychology report actually
What's the difference? Well, you can administer the 11| puts that in writing.
W.1.5.K. Three to kids up untii the age of sixteen. And 12 THE WITNESS: Yes.
when | tested Justin, he was nineteen, so | had to give 13 THE COURT: Quote, social promotion, unquote.
the adult test. 14 THE WITNESS: That's where | got it from, sir.

But then again, once again, that adult test 15 THE COURT: To get from eighth grade to high
went down to sevenieen, seventeen years zero months and 16| school, quote, sent onto high school based on a, quote,
nineteen eleven months. Now let's look at the 17| social promotion, unquote.
achievement scores that he got in high school compared to 18 THE WITNESS: And part of that is his age.
now. 19| Let's see here, in December Thirteenth, Nineteen

| gave the W.R.A.T. Three. They gave the 20| Eighty-Two, and he would have graduated, | think, in
W.R.A.T. Three. When he was nineteen years oid, he had a 21| eighth grade in Nineteen Ninety-Eight. So this, he was
standard score in reading of fifty-one. | gota 22| about what sixteen or fifteen and a half. And so,
sixty-three. 1received a better score from him. 23| technically, when you're fifteen, you're going to be, you

Spelling, they got a fifty-nine. 1gota 24| know, probably in the sophemore in high schoot or maybe '

42 44
fifty-four. That's within normal limits. 1 | for him a freshman, you know. He's a year or two behind

Math, they received a seventy. | received a 2 | because of his date of birth.
sixty-three, still within normal limits because you're 3 THE COURT: On page three of that record it
geing to get some variance. 4 | indicates he's reading comprehension scales were only

So here you have an individual that's about 5 | slightly better, second grade level, and with arithmetic
four years five months older, and for most part, we're 6 | computational skills, third grade. So he's only second
having consistent scores, very censistent scores. 7 | or third grade level —

There's not a lot of variances, which is a good thing. 8 THE WITNESS: Right.
And so the most important thing, 1 think, to 9 THE COURT: - when he entered high school?
recognize when he was in the Chicago Public School System 10 THE WITNESS: Right.
is, that in eighth grade they socially promoted him. 11 THE COURT; Thank you.
And what, basically, that means he was too old 12| BY MR. BROWN:
o remain in eighth grade. They just elevated him. And 13 Q. And are those findings consistent with the
if you look at all his grades here on the elementary 14 findings that you made in Two Thousand and Two when you
school progress record, in eighth grade he actually 15| tested Justin?
missed thirty-three days of school out of a hundred and 16 A. Yes.
seventy-seven. 17 Q. Now with respect to the Nineteen Ninety-Seven, |

And he primarily received in: 18] think there's two in Ninety-Seven, so I'll refer to

Oral expression, written expression, and 19| September Twenty-Fifth, Nineteen Ninety-Seven. There
spelling, Ds. 20| seems tc be - it's an |.E.P. program; is that correct?

Handwriting C. 21 A. Yes.

And then easy classes — well, | mean, | 22 Q. Individualized Education Program for Justin?
wouldn't say easy, but let's just say: 23 A. lassume it's September Twenty-Fifth, Nineteen
Art, music A, B; 24| Ninety-Seven. '
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Q. Correct. 1 | poor memory skills, his reading, spelling, and writing #
A. Okay. 2 | skills significantly interfere with his educaticn '
Q. And these individualized education programs are 3 | performance. He has a severe reading disability and poor
a recognition of the school program that an individual 4 | development? .
needs specialized care in their education? 5 A. Correct. ¢
A. Yes. Any time you have an individual who's 6 Q. And that's consistent with the findings that you
recognized as leaming disabled, every year you have {o 7 | had even in Two Thousand and Two?
have an individual education plan where you assess their 8 A. Correct.
needs and make sure that you're addressing their 9 Q. Is there any reason to believe that in the ‘
deficiencies, so they can go from grade to grade. 10| middle period there, say, the year Two Thousand, that he
THE COURT: | believe — excuse me for 11| would have had a significant improvement and then :
interrupting, but | believe that's a federal requirement. 12| reverted back to impaired to Two Thousand and Two?
THE WITNESS: Yes, it is. 13 A. Probably not. Because eventually he moved to
THE COURT: Yeah. 14( Las Vegas where it seems like there was even less
MR. BROWN: Thank you, Judge. 15| supervision of him.
BY MR. BROWN: 16 Q. Okay.
Q. Now the whole document and the entire body is in 17 A. And he was transferred to different high schools
the court's record for review. But 1 would direct your 18| frequently. So | don't think that his educational issues
attention to Page 4. 19| were addressed. The only time they probably were
THE COURT: Page 4 of the M.D.C.? 20| addressed, and Mr. Winston, who | did a collateral
MR. BROWN: Correct. 211 interview with, provided tutoring for Justin during the
THE COURT: | have that. 22{ eighth grade year.
BY MR. BROWN: 23 And he was very helpful because he knew — he
Q. Under disabilities for category D, specific 24 knew the family fairly well. And he more or less said,
46 48
learning disability, they recognize — 1 | look, the family was kind of overwhelmed. And although
A, Wait a minute. Make sure I'm on the right page. 2 | they were nice people, they just - you know, they didn't
MR. BROWN: If | can approach. 3 | support Justin, academically.
THE COURT: This cne here. 4 And so he probably stabilized. The best year he
THE WITNESS: Okay. Right here. Got it, sir. 5§ | probably had in his life was eighth grade because his
THE COURT: All right. 6 | family moved, like, twenty-seven times from birth to
THE WITNESS: Thank you. 7 | seventeen years of age, twenty-six or twenty-seven times.
BY MR. BROWN: 8 A lot of domestic violence in the home. And,
Q. Under, do you see where it says disabilities? 9 | you know, single mother, and a tot of instability.
THE COURT: At the top? 10 So, and then, if you even look at his report
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 11| card here, look how many days this young man misses,
BY MR. BROWN: 12| It's unbelievable. | mean, thirty-three days out of a
Q. Atthe top and it lists A through H on the 13| hundred and seventy-seven in seventh grade. Thirty-two
left-hand side? 14| days out of a hundred and seventy-nine in sixth grade.
A Yes. 15 So if you think about that in of itself, you
Q. The primary concern there seems to be specific 16| have a kid whe is coming from, cbviously, not an enriched
learning disability? 17| environment with, although okay parents, no parental
A. Correct, 18| support. A lot of stressors, moving all the time. So
Q. And over on the right under disability under 19| there's no stability for him to launch from. And then
heading | speech language impairment seems to be a 20| when he moves to Vegas, it's even worse. ‘
secondary concemn? 21 Q. Now Mr. Winston, you indicated was a — did you ‘
A. Correct. 22| recall what his education was or what Mr. Winston's role;
Q. And | believe there's actually listing under the 23| was in the community?
adverse effects that in Nineteen Ninety-Seven Justin has 24 A. Mr. Winston, now, is a principal of the Chicago
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1 | Public School System. 1 Mr. Winston stated that Justin was very caring

2 Q. Okay. 2 | of little children and he played with children

3 A. | found him {o be a very credible individual who 3 [ exceptionally well.

4 | really cared tremendously for Justin and the family. | 4 When his mother stepped out of the home, he

5 | think he has - | don't have it written here, but | say 5 | watched the children and was trustworthy. Mr. Winston

8 | he has a masters degree. 6 | reported that Justin has a reading level of fourth or

7 Q. Did he give you some specific recollections of 7 | fifth grade, and he had very poor spelling skills.

8 | Justin and either the difficulties or the achievements 8 Mr. Winston reported quotation marks, Justin

9 | that he had while trying to tutor Justin? 9 | made some progress but nothing to brag about, quotation -
10 A. Canl read what | wrote in my report? Would 10| marks.
11| that be easier? Or just briefly? Or - 11 Mr. Winston reported that although Ms. Perter
12 MR. BRCWN: Well, your Honor, | plan on marking 12| was very giving, she never had any time to do the

13} and having the report admitted, your Honor, for review. 13| homework with Justin or provide any form of structure.

14| Soif it's okay with the Court for him to go ahead and 14 Mrs. Porter was informed by the school of

15| read instead of trying to memorize. 15| Justin's learning problems but she never followed through .
16 THE COURT: Ifit's okay with you. 16| with any form of structure in regarding his studying.

17 MS. LUSAICH: No objection. 17 Mr. Winston reported that Justin was very

18 THE COURT: Go ahead. 18| respectful towards him or others, never was disrespectful .
19 THE WITNESS: Okay. Mr. Winston is a principal 19| was very caring with little children and exhibited a lot

20| at Fulton Elementary School located in Chicago. 20| of love for his family.

21| Mr. Winston was evaluated on April Twenty-Five, Zero Two 21 In regards to Justin's weaknesses, Mr. Winston

22| at Fulton Elementary School. 22| reported, quotation marks, | just didn't see that, end of

23 Mr. Winston stated he tutored and mentored 23| quotation marks.

24| Justin from Nineteen Ninety-Six through Nineteen 24 He acknowledged the family needed family

50 52

1 | Ninety-Seven. 1 | therapy, and Mrs.. Porter needed to be a mother to Justin
2 Mr. Winston tutored Justin for approximately 2 [ and not a friend.

3 | seven months two times a week. In addition, his wife 3 Mr. Winston denied that Justin had anger

4 | also helped out. 4 | problems, antisocial behavior, gang involvement, or a

5 When Mr. Winston reported he and his wife 5 1 criminal record. Reported Justin was simply a sweet

6 | attended the same church as the Porter family. The 6 | child.

7 | church provided the family with support. 7 Mr. Winston reported in regard to what went

8 Mr. Winston also tutored Justin's sister. 8 | wrong, he believed that the mother was not strong enough
9 | Mr. Winston reported Ms. Porter is a very caring parent 9 | for the boys and Justin got away from her.

10} who did a lot for her children; however, quotation marks i0 Mr. Winston is a Godparent to Justin's

11| she is not as structured with them end of quotation 11| stepchildren — sister's children, | apologize.

12; marks. 12| BY MR. BROWN:

13 Mr. Winston believed Mrs. Porter did the best 13 Q. Now you indicated at one point in there that

14| she could as a single parent, yet, was unable to provide 14| Mr. Winston actually described Justin as playful and

15| boundaries for her children. 15| somewhat juvenile?

16 Mr. Winston recalled Justin's father, Mr. Porter 16 A. Yeah. Justin's emotional .Q. is

17| would stop by when he was called, but for the most part 17{ underdeveloped.

18| he was not actively involved in Justin's life. 18 Q. Isit—

19 Mr. Winston tutored Justin through the eighth 19 A.  And he's just a — he was in a church, and they

20| grade year. During this time Justin was approximately 201 would just kind of like lead him to do things, and he

21| thirteen years of age. 21| never was aggressive in the church. Of course, that's a
22 Mr. Winston's impression was that Justin has a 22| different setting. And what they knew of the family, he

23| mental age of nine or ten. Described Justin as being 23| was just a very playful young man that really probably

24| playful, but could not retain information. 24| had an absent father, and a very difficult life. So he's
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1| likely seeking a lot of attention. » 1 CROSS EXAMINATION : ®
2 Q. Could that be characterized as childlike? 2 | BY MR. BERRETT:

3 A. Yeah. 3 Q. Counsel just asked you, Doctor, how much time

4 Q. s that consistent with your experiences and 4 | you had spent with the defendant, and you answered a lot
5 | your histery with Justin? 5 | of time with collateral stuff. And I never really heard

6 A. Yes. Yes. 6 | the answer. How much time actually did you spend with :
7 Q. And how much time would you say, total, in 7 | Mr. Perter himself? '
8 | reviewing Justin's records, and how much time would you a A. Iwould tend to believe anywhere from maybe

9 | say you put in, total, in reviewing Justin's records and 9 [ about eleven to fourteen hours on January Eighteenth,
10| meeting with and discussing with Justin Porter? 10| Zero Two, if I'm not mistaken, he came to my office and | -
1" A. Oh, \ probably had minimally twelve to fourteen 11| assessed him for approximatety —
12| contact hours. And | was in Chicago interviewing 12 Q. That's all right. Eleven to fourteen hours,
13| family. That might have been seven or eight hours. Then 13| roughly. Now, your purpose in talking to Mr. Porter was

14| i did some collaterals on the phone. That could have 14| to evaluate him for a death penalty evaluation?

15( been several more hours. 15 A. Correct.

186 Then reviewing discovery and add on numerous 16 Q. Whatis a death penalty evaluation?

17| hours for that. 17 A. Well, when the state seeks the death penalty at

18 Q. Inyour meetings and discussions with the famity 18| sentencing, there's what we call mitigating factors which

19| members and other figures such as Mr. Winston, would you 18| would be that if — can you - can the defense provide
20| say that their characterization of Justin and his 20| factors which would help mitigate the sentence from a
21| learning deficits were consistent? 21| death to, perhaps, life in prison.
22 A. Yes, they were. 22 Q. So you're looking for any factor in the

23 Q. Okay. I'm going to show you what's been marked 23| defendant's history that would help mitigate the

24| as Defense B. See if you recognize that as a copy of 24| punishment; is that correct?

54 56

1 | your cognitive analysis report — 1 A. Correct.

2 A, Correct. 2 Q. So you're talking about maybe lower 1.Q., family

3 Q. --that you prepared for this particular 3 | issues, social issues, some other explanations for his

4 | hearing? 4 | behavior?

5 A. Yes. 5 A. Correct.

6 Q. Okay. Does this appear to be a true and 6 Q. And that was your purpose when you evaluated him
7 { accurate copy of your report? 7 { and did all this coliateral stuff for the defense; is

8 A. | would think so. 8 [ that correct?

9 MR. BROWN: Your Honor, | move to admit this as 9 A. Caorrect.

10] well. 10 Q. Allright. Now you also did the testing which

11 MR. BERRETT: Is that the report we're talking 11| you've explained. Does one's |.Q. change over the years?
12! about? 12 A. ltcan. But normally it depends on what the

13 MR. BROWN: Yeah. 13| stimulus is. Meaning, that there is some research to

14 MR. BERRETT: Twelve pages? 14| indicate that over the course of, maybe, like, a decade

15 MR. BROWN: Yeah. 15| an 1.Q. can go up, you know, even one standard deviation
186 MS. LUSAICH: Allright. No objection. 16/ from the mean. Yeah. But you're going to have a lot of

17 THE COURT: It wiil be admitted. 17] training that's going on.

18 MR. BROWN: Provide this to the Court for 18 Q. It would go up with education, perhaps?

19| further review. 19 A. Yeah, education enriched environment.

20 THE COURT: Thank you. 20 Q. Aliright. Now, you indicate in your report

21| BY MR. BROWN: 21| that when the defendant was tested in the Chicago Public
22 Q. Thank you, Dr. Paglini. 22| Schools, his 1.Q. basically verbal |.Q. is seventy-six !
23 | pass the witness, your Honor. 23| and the perfermance 1.Q. is eighty-seven; is that

24 MR. BERRETT: Thank you, Judge. 24| correct?
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A. Correct. o7 1 Q. That's number seven?
Q. Now you indicated that an 1.Q. test between 2 And you call that the T.O.N.I., T-O-N-Y?
eighty to eighty-nine is below average, but it's in that 3 MS. LUSAICH: |. !
average range, correct? 4 | BY MR. BERRETT:
A. That's -- there's also -- | mean, there's a big 5 Q. T-O-N-ltest? Allright. So that's the test
difference where below average - an eighty is below 6 | that will test non-verbal intelligence?
average minus is probably at about the ninth percentile 7 A. Correct.
which means about ninety-one — roughly ninety-one out of 8 Q. And you said he had an average score?
a hundred pecple would exceed that score. 9 A. Correct.
Q. Allright. Butlet's talk about eighty-seven 10 Q. So |l gathered from that that in non-verbal
which is what the defendant tested at. Eighty-seven is 11| intelligence he would do quite well?
in that below average range; is that correct? 12 A. Well, you see, when you're doing any kind of
A. Correct. 13| assessment, sometimes you're going to have — you're
Q. And what percentile is eighty-seven? 14| going to be -- when you're looking at non verbal, | mean,
A. | would say approximately, don't hold me to 15| his verbal —- let's see what is his |.Q. here? It was
this, but I'm looking at probably the twentieth 16| much lower than that.
percentile, approximately. Your standard, even one 17 His overall non-verbal or visual spatial 1.Q.
standard deviation from the mean would be an eighty - 18| was an eighty, at the ninth percentile. And it didn't
was it an eighty-five. And so an eighty-five score would 19| depend on one test. It depended con two, four, five
be roughly the sixteenth percentile. 20| different sub tests, which is not the T.O.N.l. So it
Q. Aliright. Now you talked about another test. 21| hits different aspects.
And by the way, when you say the average, say, the 22 Q. Pmjusttrying to figure out if you're kind of
eighty-seven, that is not mentally retarded. You 23| gauging how a person can - can, you know, succeed in
clarified that. Because mentally retarded, as | 24| society in terms of stuff besides just reading and
58 60
understand it, is betow sixty-nine? 1 | writing. It looked to me like this might be a good
A, Seventy - sixty-nine or below. 2 | indicator; is that true?
Q. Sixty-nine or below. There's another test that 3 A. I{'s nice that he scored in the average range
you talked about, a couple of them. The one is the 4 | finally on something. Yeah, | mean, that was good. |
T.O.N.l. which is a non-verbal test. And | take it from 5 | mean, that's productive.
what you were indicating is that that test is more for 6 Q. Al right.
street smarts. It's not reading. It's not math. I{s 7 A. But | wouldn't - if I'm looking at him, and no
not writing. 8 | offense to Mr. Porter, but, you know — he, you know —
But it does give an indication of how someone 9 | he in terms of performing in society, he's not going to
leams through pictures and that sort of thing like 10| do a good job at all. If he's working in some kind of
street smarts; is that correct? 111 job, i's going to be very difficuit for him to follow
A. Street smarts may be a different word. | 12| anything. But you can train him, but you probably have
wouldn't use that. I's more visual reasoning. | don't 13| to — has to be very low level.
know if that would be street smarts. | understand what 14 Q. Now, you indicated also the Trails A and B Test,
your reference is but - 15| and, | think, that's number eight on your procedures of
Q. That's what I'm trying to get at. 16] evaluation?
A. Say visual reasoning would be the accurate -- 17 A. Yes,sir.
Q. That's called the T.Q.N.I test? 18 Q. Is that correct? And you indicated he also was
A. lis T.O.N.l. Three, correct, sir. 19| fine in that test, correct?
Q. And your cognitive evaluation report, which test 20 A. Correct.
is that? You got some numbers here — 21 Q. Again, what did that test test?
A. The - 22 A, Wellit's a very, very simple test. Basically,
Q. —under procedures evaluation? 23| #'s connecting the dots, like, one, two, three, four, .
A. - number seven, sir. 24| five, That's Trails A, and what we're looking for is I‘
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people who are neurologically impaired, have a difficult o 1 Q. Okay. And, in fact, part of what I, | heard you &
time doing that, going from one to two, two {o three, 2 | say, | think, is that some of this is environment; is
three to four. Trails B is going from number letter, 3 | that correct? Because you didn't really identify what
number letter, one A two B three C four D. And people, 4 | the defendant's learning disability is. Does he have an
once again, with neurological impairment have 5 | identifiable learning disability?
difficulties with such a simple test. 6 A. Oh, sure.
And it depends on possibly where neurological 7 Q. Whatis it?
impairment is, though, but anyways on both — on that 8 A. Yeah. | would say he probably has a leamning
test he did well. 9 | disability with reading, with writing, spelling, and
Q. Would that kind of test, like, common sense? 10| mathematics.
A, You know, when you're testing intelligence, it's 11 Q. Don't you have to define it more than that,
multi faceted. And so it's not unusual for an individua! 12| though? Isn'tit a processing problem between different
to have very low scores in some areas and then, maybe, 13| sides of the brain? Or -
like, an average score somewhere else. | mean, like, 14 A. Yeah. You can — you can in — if you look at
look at idiot savants. They could be mentally retarded, 15| the academic pan, they normally don't do that. When you
but then they're like brilliant in one small area. But 16| have a person in the educational component, they're not
we don't have that here. 17| geing to say, you know, if it's visua) perceptual, you're
But okay. But, you know, so it's not uncommon 18| probably going to say right hemispheric, Ifit's
that a persen can have kind of an average or average 19| language based, you may say, you know, left hemispheric.
minus score somewhere, but mostly predominantly their 20| | don't think you really have to put that in the report.
abilities could be kind of in the borderline range and 21 If you look at any educational reports, you
sometimes below average range, 22| know, they're not going to say something like, you know,
G. Isthere a test - | mean, say you do an L.Q. 23| the occipital lobe is malfunctioning. They're going to
test, and it tests reading and writing, and — 24| just say something like, you know, this individual has a
62 64
A, Um-hum. 1 | visual perceptual disorder.
Q. --and maybe some of those things, but you got 2 Q. Your-—
out on the street, and, say, a guy is selling dope. And 3 A. Of course its organicity is different.
that takes some perception. It takes a little savvy. It 4 Q. You're familiar with his L.E.P, correct?
takes some intelligence. 5 A. Correct.
Which of these kinds of tests would test that 6 Q. Does that |.E.P. done in Chicago identify
type of ability to adapt in society and get by and maybe 7 | specifically what his learning disability is, more than
show some cunning and some sireet sense? 8 | just saying he has a hard time reading?
A. It's an excellent question. Of course, you're 9 A. | would say in some — yes, it does. They —
going to have a lot of different levels of dope dealers 10| they look at certain areas that they want to improve,
so to speak. 11| which would be, like, reading comprehension or whatever,
Some are going to be highly refined and 12| mathematical reasoning. ‘
sophisticated. And others are going to be really low 13 Q. But they don't put in there the cause of that?
level. 14| He doesn't have a brain problem, right?
And so in terms of the 1.Q. tests, obviously, | 15 A.  Well, it didn't seem like it was identified that
mean, you know, if a person has poor vocabulary 16| he had a head trauma if you lock at the social
abilities, they're not going to be able to communicate 17| developmental records.
well. They're not going to be able to rational -- the 18 And plus my interviewing with him, it didn't
comprehension sub test may say, you know, he's not going 19( seem like there was any form of trauma or organicity. We;
to be able to size up social situations. 20| have a lot of people who, when they enter the school '
The information sub test may indicate that he 21| system, that it could be a result of, you know, nature
can't recall information in his environment too well, 22| versus nurturer, you know. What is their hard wiring
but, yes, can you seli drugs and have an 1.Q. like this? 23| like? You know, some people come into kindergasten very
The answer would be, yes, of course. 24| intelligent, and others are very, very slow. And I'm
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sorry, go on. 1 Q. Well, no. We've heard that. We know that. My o

Q. Well, that's my question. Because, obviously, 2 | question reatly is, why? And you're felling me he
you have ear marked an attendance problem in Chicago. 3 | doesn't have dyslexia? He doesn't -
And, | guess, it's true that you develop talents where 4 A. Oh, hang on. Actually, | mean, if you're
you spend your time. And if you're not spending your 5 | looking at ~
time at school, you're on the street. You're on the 6 Q. Does he have dyslexia?
playground. Or you're playing ball or you're running 7 A. If you're looking at word reversal, he did
around the streets doing stuff you shouldn't be doing. 8 | exhibits it in one of the tests here. Was | trying to
That's where you're going to develop the skills; isn't 9 | specify things at this point? Probably not. But, |
it? 10| mean -

A. You're going to develop academic skills at 11 Q. Let me ask this more specificaily. Was that in
home. You know, he grew up in a — well, his environment 12| his I.E.P. in Chicago?
was not enriching at ali. There was a lot of parental 13 A. I'd have to review it again. He had severe
strife and a lot of instability. So did that have an 14| reading comprehension problems, severe spelling disorder,
impact on his educational development? | would say, yes. 15 I mean, this kid can't even come close to some

Q. Allright. But that's — really my question 16 words, spelling them.
is: There's nothing identifiabte in terms of 17 Q. All right.
shericomings in his mental process other than maybe not 18 A. It's — he's just total phonetic.
putting any effort, maybe not putting in the time? 19 Q. Allright. Doctor, you had indicated at one

A. It's much deeper than that, sir. It's not — if 20! point Mr. Winsten tutored the defendant and his scores
you read his reports, if you read the reports, |.E.P.s, 21| went up substantially; isn't that true?
they say Justin is working very hard. Justin is very 22 A. Yeah. | was impressed with that. | --in terms
frustrated. He doesn't have any comprehension. He 23| of that achievement score, it was interesting that all of
doesn't comprehend. 24| a sudden, | think it was — it went up a little while

66 68
It's kind of repeated throughout that. This is 1 | which was good. It was excellent.
a young man who is trying, and doesn't have the 2 Q. Isn't that really saying if you took some time
intellectual resource. | know what you're trying to 3 | and worked with that kid, that he's as bright as the next
say: This guy is just not putting forth the effort. 4 | guy?
And what I'm teliing you is, is that, you know, 5 A. No. | wouldn't say he's as bright as the next

he probably could have had a more enriching environment, 6 | guy. No.
but his hard wiring started out pretty poor. 7 Q. But he can improve substantially?

Q. Well - 8 A, That might have been the peak of his

A. And | think he has other relatives too that have 9 | improvement, meaning, that you go from, like, a
leaming disabilities. | think he has a sister also who 10} borderline kid to maybe a below average kid. Which isn*
has — one or two, maybe, family members have academic 11} a bad thing.
difficulties. 12 Q. But the tutering didn't hurt?

Q. Does the majority of society have some sort of 13 A. Tutoring was helpful.
learning disability? 14 Q. You had -- at one point in your testimony on

A. Majority? No. If you're talking about — 16| direct examination you used the term, or | think

Q. Well - 16| Mr. Brown used the term, childlike?

A.  If you're talking about people having strengths 17 A, Um-hum.
and weaknesses cognitively just like they do 18 Q. How would you define childlike?
interpersonally? Yes. But what | would alsc tell you is 19 A. | would say that Mr. Porter is emotionally
that when we compare the average seventeen year old, 20| immature. His responses are not sophisticated. Even on
okay, or let's just say nineteen year old to him, okay, 21| occasions when | was interacting with him and | was
he would score below maybe the seventh percentile or the 22| trying to elicit information from him, | found myself, at
eighth percentile. When we add up all the nineteen year 23| times, gefling frustrated because | wasn't getting, like,
olds in the country, he's going to score very poorly, 24/ really great information.
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But then it was kind of interesting because when * 1| not? n
| was talking to his mom, there was a lot of similarities 2 A. Correct. ;
that, you know, she was just so scattered | couldn't get 3 Q. What does it mean to be a standardized test? }
good dates. But | could understand it with him because 4 A. It's when you compare an individual's score with
of his 1.Q. But initially when | was assisting him, | 5 | a group score, and that you have a format of reliability
was struggling with it, with his responses. 6 | and validity.

Q. Part of your evaluation which, of course, was 7 Q. Are you familiar with a test called the
for death penalty evaluation, did you tell the defendant 8 | Assessing, Understanding, and Appreciation of Miranda
why you were talking to him? 9 [ Rights Test? '
A Yes. 10 A. Yes. :
Q. And so at the time when he took these tests, he 11 Q. And is that a test by Thomas Grisso? :
knew that, you know, appearing to be a genius was 12 A. Correct.
probably not going to be in his benefit; is that true? 13 Q. Allright. What can you teli us about that
A, Well, | hear what you're saying. So, | guess, 14| test?
the way you're phrasing the question is -- | think 15 A. Not as much as ['d like fo tell you. Because |
Mr. Porter was who he is. 16| did take Grisso's Juvenile Assessment Class or seminar
I don't think he could be a genius. | think | 17] 1 should say. | do have the test. Have | administered
get an accurate appraisal of his 1.Q. level because I'm 18| the test? The answer would be no.
able to compare it with what had occurred several years 19 Q. Why not?
ago, and it falls well within normal limits. 20 A.  Well, because | haven't been asked to. Andso |
Q. | understand because you did talk about the 21} bought the test more for informational purposes. And
malingering. But short of full scale malingering, | 22| when it does arise, then I'll review everything and then
mean, if | was being tested and wanted to spell something 23| administer the test.
kind of goofy, | could do that, could I not, and there 24 Q. Deoctor, were you asked to administer each of
70 72
would be no way that you could tell that? 1 | these tests specifically?
A.  Well, you're an attorney. So my thinking would 2 A. No. | chose those on my own.
be that you're going to be of above average to superior 3 Q. Allright. But you haven't had an opportunity
intelligence. 4 | to chose administering the Assessing, Understanding, and .

Now, it is possible if you're an attorney you 5 | Appreciation of Miranda Rights Test?
might have a spelling disorder, and you use the computer 6 A. | would not have administered that because —
spell check to kind of aid you with things. So if you're 7 Q. I'm not talking about specifically here but in
blowing an occasional word, I'll find it interesting. My 8 | any case?
thinking would be your verbal abstraction skills should 9 A. Have | -- have | administered that test in any
be excellent, and you should have an excellent vocabulary 10| other case? The answer is no,
ability. 1 Q. All right.

So if you're an attorney with, maybe, a 12 MR. ABOQD: If you don't mind, Judge | just want
borderline reading ability and borderline vocabulary 13| to point out that Mr. Berrett was looking at -
ability, | would really start saying to myself, what's 14| Dr. Paglini's report when he referred to, you
going on with this man? Does he have some severe 15| administered these tests here.
cognitive deficit? Oris he malingering? 18 MR. BERRETT: Yeah. For the record.

Q. You understand what I'm saying, though? 17 THE COURT: The record wilt so reflect.
A. Sure. 18 MR. BERRETT: | was referring to the report
Q. It would be difficult to catch; wouldn't it? 19| which spelled out the numerous tests he has presented

A. I'm not going to tell you that I'm going to
catch everything, but | do look for it.

Q. Now, iet me ask about some standardized tests.
And you had indicated numerous tests that you gave the
defendant. Those are all standardized tests; are they

testimony about.
THE COURT: That's Proposed Defense Exhibit B.
| assume. First page. | read it, yes.
BY MR, BERRETT:
Q. Doctor, is it your understanding that the
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1 | Assessing, Understanding, and Appreciation of Miranda 1 | benefit, the first statement would be the one referred 7
2 | Rights Test is not a standardized test? 2 | 10, and | guess we will call it statement number one,

3 A. | can't address thai issue. 3 | taken on August Twelfth of Two Thousand at nineteen

4 Q. Can you indicate that it is not widely used? 4 | thirty hours.

5 A. Well, | can't address that issue either because 5 MR. BROWN: Okay.

6 | | think it is widely used, and it's an instrument likely 6 MS. LUSAICH: On the front it says — 3
7 | used for juvenile and Miranda Warning. 7 MR. BROWN: And, Judge, | have — | don't ‘
8 Q. You have been a psychologist for how many years? 8 | particularly have an objection yet because the question

9 A. |received my degree in Nineteen Ninety, but 9 | hasn't been posed, but I'm — he says mental status which
10| before that | was still practicing as a psychologist in 10| I don't think was an issue necessarily placed in issue
11| training for a few years before that. 11| here at this hearing. However, general intelligence is
12 Q. Allright. But you've indicated you have never 12( what we're talking about.

13} used this test? 13 If there's a question directed at that,

14 A. | have never used that test. 14| naturally, | wouldn't object. But if he's talking about

15 Q. Allright. Are you familiar with the correct 15| intent or mental status or something, a mental status

16| use of the test? 16| issue relevant to criminal responsibility, then | would

17 | have reviewed the test. Okay. | can not 17| object to that.

18| speak intelligently on the test at this time. I've 18 MR. BERRETT: Well, let me go through it. If we
19| reviewed what it's asking. Yes. But | cannot speak 19| have an objection, we can discuss that at the time.

20} intelligently on it. 20 THE COURT. Now what document are you referring,
21 Q. Okay. 21| so | get on the same page?

22 A. | think you might want to defer that question to 22 MR. BERRETT: This is in reference to - in

23| Dr. Brown. Okay. 23| fact, let me get these marked.

24 Q. Well, | also would like your - 24 THE COURT: They're not in the fite. They

74 ‘76

1 A. Okay. 1 | haven't been received yet?

2 Q. --opinion if you could give one, but it sounds 2 THE COURT CLERK: Um-hum.

3 | like you can't. 3 MS. LUSAICH: Judge, when the police officer —

4 A. | cannot. 4 | I'm sorry to interrupt. When the police officers

5 Q. Now, Doctor, in preparation for your testimony 5 | testified way back when, did we enter the defendant's

6 | in this case, you had occasion tc review several police 6 | actual statements intc evidence?

7 | reports, several witness statements, is that correct? 7 THE COURT: That's what I'm wondering.

8 A. | did review that information in Two Thousand 8 MS. LUSAICH: The hearing was March Eighth of
9 | and Two. | reviewed par of Mr. Porter's testimony of 9 | Two Thousand and Four.

10| thirty pages of it within the last several days. But no, 10 MR. BROWN: We can do it again.

11| | did not — | reviewed all that material in Two Thousand 11 THE COURT: We have at least three detectives:
12| and Twao | should say. 12| Kato, Sarcne, and Jensen all testified.

13 Q. But you did review it in Two Thousand and Two? 13 MR. ABOQCD: |don't have a specific

14 A. Correct. 14| recollection, Judge, as to whether or not the actual

15 Q. A couple of the things you did review I'd like 15| complete statements went in, so, perhaps, Mr. Berrett

16| to ask you some questions about. Those would be the 16| will just go ahead and do that.

17| voluntary statements by the defendant. And just to 17 MR. BERRETT: Let me go ahead and get that

18| refresh your recollection, these are statements taken by 18| marked.

19| various police officers in Chicago following the Miranda 19 THE COURT CLERK; One?

20| Rights being given. 20 MR. BERRETT: Yeah.

21 And | want to get some insight from you in 21 | only have one extra copy, sc let me refer to

22| those statements about the mental process of the 22| it with the witness.

23 defendant. 23 THE WITNESS: Okay.

24 And as that statement was given, of counsel's 24 MR. BERRETT: And then I'll fet you look at it,
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Judge. 1| BY MR. BERRETT:

THE COURT: |don't have -- | have my notes from 2 Q. The question is halfway down the page. Okay.
the previous hearing, and | don't see anything being 3 | Apartment number three. Uh, Justin, do you know this is
proftered. 4 | being recorded?

MR. ABOQD: | recall, Judge, that we introduced 5 "A. Yes, sir."

a number of articles and things along that line, 6 Now, from what you understand of your contact
Frankly, | don't remember the statements being introduced 7 | with the defendant, he would understand that English
either. 8 | used; is that correct?

BY MR. BARRETTE: 9 He had a sufficient intelligence to understand

Q. Doctor, I'm referring to what's been marked as 10| that that statement was being recorded; is that true?
Exhibit Number One for the purpose of this hearing. 11 A. | guess appears so, yes.

That's a statement which | believe you previously had an 12 Q. All right. And then the next question:
opportunity to review; is that correct? 13 "Is that okay with you?"

A. Averylong time ago. 14 And the answer is: Fine.

Q. All right. 15 Is that correct? Actually, "Fine by me."

A. | may have reviewed - | think | may have 16| Indicating that he understands that he's taking partin
reviewed maybe thirty or forty pages the other night. 17| an interview process and that it's actually being

Q. All right. 18| recorded?

And for defense counset, you got the right one? 19 THE COURT: What page was that?

MR. BROWN: | gotit. 20 MR. BERRETT: That would be page two.

BY MR. BERRETT: 21 THE COURT: Thank you.

Q. On page two of that statement -- 22 THE COURT CLERK: Do you have another copy,

THE CQURT: Now. Wait a minute. First of all 23! Counsel?
it's not in evidence. Is itin evidence? 24 MR. BERRETT: Judge, would you like 10 see a

78 - 80

THE COURT CLERK: It's propesed exhibit. 1 | copy while we go through this? | apologize | brought cne

MR. BERRETT: Well, | could move to admit it - 2 | extra copy, but ! didn't bring two.

THE COURT: Move to admit. 3 MR. BROWN: Your Honor, again, | — | don't have

MR. BERRETT: --in evidence. 4 | an objection going over some of the questions, but 1

THE COURT: Then we can talk about it. 5 | think that the document speaks for itself, and | don't

MR. BROWN: That's fine, Judge. 6 | know if Dr. Paglini is in a position to answer

THE COURT: Okay. It will be admitted. Thank 7 | specifically on any one given answer what somebody does
you. 8 | or does not understand.

BY MR. BARRETTE: 9 That's the very nature of why we're here.

Q. In the middle of that statement, there's a 10 THE COURT: | understand that. But as a
question asked, and it's by the officer. It says: 11| practicing psychologist, can he not opine on what he
Okay. Apartment — 12| envisions as the answer, the significance of a particular

THE COURT: Excuse me, Counsel. Who's statement ! 13| answer?
is that? 14 MR. BROWN: | would leave that te Dr. Paglini's

MR. BERRETT: This is -- 15| comfort level, of course.

THE COURT: Kato's? 18 THE COURT: Exactly.

MR. BERRETT: — the statement by the defendant. 17 MR. BROWN: Butwhat | would say is that any

THE COURT: Oh, by the defendant. 18| particular question in its context may not give rise to

MR. BERRETT: Yes. Who was talking to the
police officer. It's Detective B. Jensen.

THE COURT: Okay. He's the one of the three
that testified. Right?

MR. BERRETT: Right.
"W
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the understanding in total.
THE COURT: | agree.
MR. BROWN: And one other thing | would - well,
| would point out — '
THE COURT: This isn't a jury, so we —
MR. BROWN: Right. And the other thing i would
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1
point out to your Honor -- or, you knew, it might be ° 1 In that context of that comprehension, | want 5
inappropriate at this time, so go ahead. | just with 2 | to go through the statement the defendant told to the
redirect, 3 | police officers to get his evaluation of that ;
THE WITNESS: Your Honor, may | say something? 4 | understanding. :
THE COURT: We have a — Mr. Brown. 5 Of course, we will do this with Or. Brown also.
MS. LUSAICH: Curtis. 6 THE COURT: Well -
MR. BROWN: I'm sorry, Judge. 7 MR. BERRETT: But-—-
THE COURT: We have the doctor preffering or 8 THE COURT: To the extent that Dr. Paglini is
offering to make a statement. 9 | comfortable with answering the question, he can answer. -
MR. BROWN: Yes. 10| But if he's not comfortable, he doesn't have to answer. '
THE WITNESS: Okay. I'd like, basically, I'm 11 MR. BERRETT: All right.
deferring the Miranda Warning to Dr. Brown. 12 THE COURT: Okay.
THE COURT: Ckay. 13 MR. BROWN: And as far as you were talking about
THE WITNESS: That's what it comes down to. My 14| the understanding. Are we talking about the
evaluaticn was to give an 1.Q. test, and my talk here 15| voluntariness issue?
today was to give an 1.Q., you know, to discuss the 1.Q. 16 MR. BERRETT: Yes.
results, his educational history, his achievement scores. 17 MR. BROWN: He was never — | don't know if he
If 1 - you know, like just with that 18| knows anything about that, even that thatissue is in
statement, fine by me, my response is going to be: 19| front of the court. But I'l} just — ['ll let
What's the context? What happened before everything? 20| Mr. Berrett ask his questions,
Was this, did they just turn the tape on? Was there any 21 THE COURT: Sure. Go ahead.
contact beforehand? If there was, what was going on? 22| BY MR. BERRETT:
There's a lot of questions | would. We could be here for 23 Q. Well, let me ask just, for example, if you would
about six hours answering these questions. 24| turn, sir, to page twenty of that statement?
82 " 84
MR. BROWN: And, essentially, Judge, that's what 1 A. Page twenty?
! was saying | was going to reserve my comment for 2 Q. Yeah.
redirect. As your Honor recalls, this entire transcript 3 Judge, if | could, I'm going to give you a copy
is the result of after over two hours of sitting with 4 | to refer to because | do have --
Justin and having the conversation first, then deciding, 5 THE COURT: Allright. Fine. Thank you.
now, we know what everybody is going to say. Let's turn <] MR. BERRETT: | always feel bad if I'm referring
on the tape recorder. 7 | to something the judge can't see. | know it's kind of
| think the reliability of answering those 8 | unfair.
guesticons in the context of, they had a dress rehearsal, 9 Page twenty of that statement. And I'm —I'm
does not necessarily give any credibility to what the 10| just going to ask you a question here. The second
state is trying to eficit from Mr. Paglini who doesn't 11| question down that page is the question:
have the total context -- 12 Why did you pick that apartment?
THE COURT: Maybe — 13 And then my question really goes with the answer
MR. BROWN: - information. 14| which begins with:
THE COURT: -- we should defer it to Dr. Brown. 15 Why did | pick it?
MR. BERRETT: Well, Judge, of course, we would 16 That's one, two, three, four, five, six, seven,
like to ask him questions about the same thing. As | 17| eight lines of response. Now, Doctor, from what you are
understand it, one of the purposes of this hearing is to 18| familiar with, with the defendant, his language
elicit whether or not the defendant understood the words 19| abilities, his mental abilities and his 1.Q., those words
and the concepts in his Miranda rights. 20| that he responds in that question appear to be a
And number two, whether or not the defendant had 21| veluntary statement of his understanding about what he
a voluntary confession. We've had a doctor here who 22| wants to tell the officer; is that correct?
spent a lot of time testing the defendant to understand 23 A. |don't know because | wasn't —-
his comprehension. 24 Q. Well --
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1 A, Well, | mean, | don't know what the context was % 1 MR. BERRETT: I'm not specifically asking a o
2 | beforehand. Let me just, once again, restate that. 2 | question about Miranda.

3 Q. Let me do this. Let me do this. 3 THE COURT: Okay.

4 THE COURT: Wait a minute. First rule. Wait 4 MR. BERRETT: But my guestion is to the

5 | for my court reporter to get down your question and 5 | voluntariness of the speech and the patterns and the

6 | answer, 6 | intelligence expressed in this statement.

7 Go ahead. 7 THE COURT: Butisn't that the heart of the

8 | BY MR. BERRETT: 8| issue?

9 Q. Why don't you read it first of all. 9 MR. BERRETT: Well, it's part of the issue.
10 A.  Yes, sir. Why did | pick it? 10| That's for sure.

11 Q. You den't have to read it out loud. 11 THE COURT: It's right lynch pin quality.

12 THE COURT.: Just to yourself. 12 MR. BERRETT: So let me see if | understand.

13 MR. BERRETT: Yeah. 13| Although he's done all this testing —

14 THE WITNESS: Okay. Yes, sir. I've completed 14 THE COURT: Right.

15| it. 15 MR, BERRETT: - on the defendant, the Court

16| BY MR. BERRETT: 16| doesn't feel he's in a position to express an opinion

17 Q. Allright. Now do you remember what my question 17| whether or not this is voluntary language?

18| was? 18 THE COURT: Well, because he wasn't there,

19 A. Could you repeat it, please? 19| number one.

20 Q. | don't think | can, but | will attempt to. 20 Number two, he did not prepare himself as an

21 The guestion was in essence: After all you 21| expert witness to testify on this issue. And whether or

22| know about the defendant from your testing, does this 22: not he can give an opinion if he had the time {o study

23| statement appear to be language he's familiar with? 23! the context, that can't be answered because he says he

24| Language he used or could use? And does this language 24 hasn't.

86 ' 88

i | express his understanding of the situation where he's i Now I'm not saying that you couldn't opine on

2 | telling the officer what happened? 2 | the voluntariness of this defendant’s statements, but the

3 A. That's a very good question. And as | stated 3 | docter has stated to the Court, and | have to accept him

4 | earlier with respect to the Court, | 2m not here to 4 | at his word, that he's not prepared to answer that issue

5 | testify on analysis of Miranda Warning because | wasn't 5 | of voluntariness.

6 | hired to do that. | was hired to do the death penalty 6 Is that correct?.

7 | segment of evaluation. 7 THE WITNESS: That's correct, sir.

8 My job today was to educate the judge on his 8 THE COURT: All right.

9 | educational history and his 1.Q. and achievement 9 MR. BERRETT: Okay. The Court's indulgence.

10| assessment. 10| BY MR. BERRETT:

11 I have not reviewed this report entirely 11 Q. Docter, you know, forget about the voluntariness
12| recently, and | did not look at it from a Miranda 12| aspect. You did read these statements, correct? Because
13| perspective, so | cannot answer the question 13| it says you did in your report.

14| intelligently. And if | did answer these questions, | 14 A. Correct. In Two Thousand and Two.

15| would be misleading the Court, and | den't want to do 15 Q. Do these statements appear to be language which .
16| that, 16| comes from the defendant based upon what you know about
17 Q. Well, 'm not going to talk about Miranda, so 17| the defendant, his 1.Q., and his abilities?

18 don't worry about that. 18 A.  Well, once again, | read it in Two Thousand and
19 THE COURT: Ifthat's an objection, ¥l sustain 19| Two, so it's very, very difficult for me to ascertain

201 it. 20| that. | mean, just reading this one paragraph, yeah, it

21 MR. BROWN: Also he is talking Miranda because 21| sounds like language he wouid use. But| can't go into
22| Mr. Berrett asked the guestion, did he voluntarily say 22/ definitive detail because | read this material, like, two
23| the words. 23| and-a-haif almost three years ago.
24 THE COURT: That's what | said. 24 Q. Well, okay. Thank you.
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A. Thank you, sir. 1| seventy-six,
MR. BERRETT: | don't have anything else. 2 Q. Okay. And they didn't provide an overall 1.Q.
MR. BROWN: Redirect examination. 3 | score?
4 A, No. Itdidn't appear as if they did.
DIRECT EXAMINATION 5 Q. Okay. And | believe you had indicated at one
BY MR. BROWN: 6 | point and the inference was going that — that Justin's
Q. What you are saying then, it's too broad of a 7 | really just a bright guy who never applied himself. s
brush that you're painting with to try and incorporate 8 | that an accurate portrayal of Mr. Porter?
whether that's his language in the entire statement when 9 A. That Justin is a bright guy who just never
you don't have a recollection of the specifics? 10| applied himself?
A. Correct. 11 Q. Yes.
Q. Also, with respect to context, is it important? 12 A. That would not be an accurate portrayal of him.
Is there a difference between whether these statements 13 &. Are his educational records and your testing and
made by an individual are the first time they've been 14| your contacts with him consistent with an individual who
made or whether they had been rehearsed and gone through 15| is learning disabled
earlier, just, maybe, just hours before? 16 A. He's learning disabled. He's a borderline 1.Q.
A. Yes, because — 17 Q. Without specifically identifying what the
Q. Could that - 18| disability may be?
A. --because that's a prompt. 19 A. Right.
Q. - could there have been, again, it's fairly 20 Q. There are a number of possibilities for what the
speculative, but with the context, somegne else's 21| disability could be?
language the first time it went through and then Justin's 22 A. Sure. The first stroke that you would have is
language this time through? 23} that he's a borderline 1.Q. And that would indicate that
MS. LUSAICH: I'm sorry. 24| when you compare him to his age group, that he likely is
90 92
THE WITNESS: It's possible. It's hard to 1| somewhere at about the seventh and ninth percentile. So
specuiation. 2 | cognitively, he's severely impaired. When we break it
MS. LUSAICH: Objection. | mean, he's totally 3 | down a little further, he has a spelling disorder.
putting words in his mouth. 4 He likely also has a severe reading disorder.
THE COURT: Well, if the abjection is 5 and he obvicusly had mathematical impairment
speculation, | sustain it. 6 | also.
MR. BROWN: He agreed it was speculalive, and it 7 Q. Butthe borderline 1.Q. is in and of itself the
is. 8 | disability?
BY MR. BROWN: 9 A. That's - well, that's a diagnosis. And, yeah,
Q. |just have a couple of questions back to the 10| it would be considered, | mean, not that you can collect
tests, the actual tests? 11| on it threugh social security. Okay.
A. Okay. 12 Q. Right.
Q. And specifically when Mr. Berrett was going 13 A. Butit - it does signify his functicning.
through your report, and | believe it's page six of your 14 Q. And many learning disabled or otherwise disabled
report, when he was talking about Justin's 1.Q. in 15| people are capable of learning skifls?
Nineteen Ninety-Seven from the W.1.S.K. Three? 16 A, I'msorry. Say that again.
A. Okay. 17 Q. Many learning disabled or otherwise —
Q. And he was discussing an .Q. of eighty-seven. 18 A Yeah.
That was just the performance aspect of that 1.Q. test? 19 Q. - mentally impaired individuals are capable of
A. Correct perceptual organizational skills. 20| learning skills?
Right. 21 A Yeah.
Q. Do you recall or can you remind the Court what 22 Q. Okay. And you have no evidence that he
his verbal 1.Q. was at that point? 23| actually - that his disability is related to a head
A. Verbal 1.Q. in Nineteen Ninety-Seven was 24| injury er an actual organic brain injury?
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A. He — you know, as | stated earlier, he's hard % 1 | University of the Rochester in Rochester, New York, for a %
wired likely different than other people. And it's very 2 | one year fellowship in forensic psychiatry. And 'm
common in society that some people are going to be very 3 | board cerified in both adult psychiatry and forensic
intelligent and other people are not going to have the 4 | psychiatry.
raw ability. 5 Q. And briefly, can you tell the judge what

And that's just where he's at. Yeah. 6 | forensic psychiatry is?

Q. With the cards Justin was dealt, he wasn't going 7 A. Forensic psychiatry is simply a sub speciaity of
to be a prosecutor or defense attorney, likely? 8 | the field that relates to any question relating to the

A. Probably not. 9 | law and how the interface with mental health and the law

MR. BROWN: 1 have nothing further, Judge, 10| may have questions that need to be resolved.
MR. BERRETT: We agree he's not going to be a 11 Q. Kind of like what we're doing here; is that
prosecutor, probably. 12| correct?
No questions. 13 A. Kind of like what we're doing here.
THE COURT: Thank you, Doctor. You can siep 14 Q. Aliright. Now you've obviously held various
down. 15| positions since you became a licensed psychiatrist. Can
THE WITNESS: Thank you. 18| you tell the judge about that?
THE COURT: Doctor, do you want to or can you 17 A. Well, | worked at the Southern Nevada Adult
give this to the doctor? 18| Mental Health Services for a brief period of time in
Want {o take a break. 19| Nineteen Ninety-Six and then | went intc private practice
MR. ABOOD: Thanks, Judge. 20| immediately thereafter.
THE COURT: QOkay. Take a break. 21 | have been an assistant clinical professor at
22| University of Nevada School of Medicine through Nineteen
{RECESS) 231 Ninety-Eight through, actually, July of Two Thousand and
THE CQURT: Allright. You may continue, 24 Four. Which when | became an assistant professor. I'm
54 96
MR. ABOQD: Thank you, Judge. We have Dr. Greg 1 | currently the residency training program director of the
Brown. 2 | psychiatry residency in Las Vegas. And | provide
THE COURT: All right. 3 | lectures and materials to both psychiatry residents here
4 | and psychiatry residents in Reno. The internal medicine
DR. GREGORY PENINGER BROWN 5 | residents and the family practice residents here. In
Having been first duly sworn to tell the 6 | addition to supervising medical students who are rotating
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 7 | through the service.
truth, testified as follows: 8 Q. And other than being a training director, is it
THE COURT CLERK: Would you state your name and | 9 | fair say that you yourself regularly attend seminars in
spell your last name for the record, piease. 10| your field?
THE WITNESS: Gregory Peninger Brown. 11 A. Certainly. Excuse me.
P-e-n-i-n-g-e-r. 12 THE COURT: Are you all right?
MR. ABOOD: Thank you, Judge. 13 That's why we have the Kleenex right there.
14 THE WITNESS: | had no idea the top was so
DIRECT EXAMINATICN 15| loose.
BY MR. BROWN: 16 MR. BERRETT: We've all done that a number of
Q. Dr. Brown, can you please tell the Court what 17| times.
type of professional you are? 18 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat the question?
A. I'ma psychiatrist. | obtained a B.A. in 19| BY MR. ABOOD:
psychology from Oberlin College. | then went to medical 20 Q. Yes. I'msorry, Doctor. My guestion to you was

school at University of Arkansas followed immediately by

22| a psychiatric residency at Albert Einstein Medical Center
23| in Philadelphia. That was from Nineteen Ninety-One
24| through nineteen Ninety-Five | then went to the

NN NN
BN -

other than being the training director my guess is you
regularly attended seminars yourself in your field of
expertise; is that correct?

A. Yes, | keep up with the Nevada requirements for

AA 0072




: [

W o N OO R WN o

S ek ek ek e e -2
@ ~ D bW N =0

19
20
21
22
23
24

0 O N b N =

A = b o b = o ad o
O W 0~ D A WN = O

%]
-

22
23
24

97
category one C.M.E.s each year. And that's in both 1 | with you a number of documents to review? %
general psychiatry and forensic psychiatry. 2 A. Yes, you did.

Q. And my understanding is that you've testified as 3 Q. And you heard Dr. Paglini testify earlier; is

an expert numerous times here in Clark County, State of 4 | that right?

Nevada; is that right? 5 A, Yes, | did.
A. Yes. Thatis correct. 6 Q. And he made reference to some of these documents
Q. In fact, have you testified for the State of 7 | himself; is that cerrect?

Nevada numerous times in the Eighth Judicial District 8 A. Yes, he did.

Court? 9 Q. !In fact, did we provide you a transcript of a

A. Not numercus, but | have testified for the 10| recorded statement given by Justin Porter on August
D.A's office. Yes. 11| Twelfth of Two Thousand?

Q. A number of times? 12 A.  Yes, you did.

A. | think once. 13 Q. A transcript of a recorded statement given by

Q. Okay. And you're involved in mental health 14| Justin Porter on August Thirieenth of Two Thousand?
court or something along the lines? 15 A. Yes, you did.

A. Yes, That's true. | do mental health court 16 Q. A transcript of a recorded statement given by
hearings each Friday to determine whether pecple meet the 17| Justin on August Fifteenth of Two Thousand?
commitment criteria to be held against their will in 18 A. Yes.
psychiatric hospitals. 19 Q. And were you able to familiarize yourself with

THE COURT: Competency hearings? 20| the charges and the allegations that he was facing, by
THE WITNESS: Yes, exactly. 21| looking at police reports and things along those lines?
THE COURT: That's with Judge Voy? 22 A. Yes.
THE WITNESS: Yes. Exactly. 23 Q. And did you review a motion that we filed to
THE COURT: All right. Fine. Family court. 24| suppress his statement to become familiar with the
98 * 100
BY MR. ABOOD: 1 | factual background of the interrogations in this case?

Q. Have you testified as an expert? 2 A. Yes.

A. Yes. 3 Q. Finally, did you review a psychological report

Q. Okay. 4 | that was prepared by John Paglini, Dr. Paglini, on July

MR. ABOOD: Judge, I'd like to submit him to 5 [ Tenth of Two Thousand and Two?
your Honor -- 6 A. Yes, | did.

MR. BERRETT: No objection. 7 Q. And, in fact, you heard Dr. Paglini testify

THE COURT: He will be admitted. 8 | about that report; is that right?

MR. ABOOD: In forensic and adult psychiatry. 9 A. Yes, | did.

THE COURT: Yes. Exactly accepted. 10 Q. Now is that something that forensic

MR. BERRETT: Just for this hearing? 11| psychiatrists normally do, review the reports of

MR. ABOOD: Thank you. 12| psychologists?

THE COURT: Yes. 13 A, Yes. Absolutely. Psychologists, for example,
BY MR, ABOOD: 14| perform 1.Q. tests and have specialized training to do

Q. In August of Two Thousand and Two, Doctor, did 15| that. Psychiatrists don't have the training to give an

you - 16/ 1.Q. test.
Thank you, Judge. 17 Q. So Dr. Paglini administered a number of tests,
In August of Two Thousand and Two did my office 18| and you were able to review the results of those tests by
retain you to help us determine whether or not Justin 18| reviewing his report; is that right?
Porter was able to understand the words and the concepts 20 A.  Yes. That's correct.
behind what we typically refer to as the Miranda 21 Q. Okay. Now you made reference, just now, that an
Warnings? 22| 1.Q. test that Dr. Paglini administered — is it your
A. Yes. 23| understanding that at the time that Dr. Paglini
Q. And to aid you in that request, did we provide 24| administered this |.Q. test on Justin Porter that there
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1 | was a verbal score of between seventy-six to 1 MR. ABOOD: Well if you agree that Dr. Paglini's o
2 | seventy-eight? 2 | assessments are all correct, then | can move on to -- "
3 A. Yes. 3 | would you like to do that?

4 Q. Does that sound familiar? 4 MR. BERRETT: Well, we got the reports.

5 A. That sounds familiar. 5 MR. ABOOD: I'd be happy, Judge, if the state

6 Q. And did you beccme aware of a full score of 6 | wanis to stipulate that Dr. Paglini's assessments are

7 | about Seventy-Seven? 7 | correct. Then | can move on to another topic with

8 A. Yes. That sounds familiar both from the report 8 | Dr. Brown.

9 | and from the testimony today. g THE COURT: What | understand you're trying to ‘
10 Q. And, in fact, Dr. Paglini testified that he 10| do is take the reports done by Dr. Paglini, build upon

11] referred to this as borderline intellectual functioning 11 that, use that as a premise?

12} range. Does that make sense to you? 12 MR. ABOCD: That's correct.

13 A. Yes, borderline intellectual functioning is 13 THE COURT: And then let him opine on the

14| defined by the diagnostic and statistical manual volume 14| meaning of those —

15| four, which is basically a manual which lists all the 15 MR. ABOCD: That's where we're going.

16| psychological and psychiatric diagnoses that we typically 16 THE COURT: -- numbers that he got?

17| use. And borderline intellectual function is designed as 17 MR. ABOCD: That's where we're going.

18| basically an [.Q. between about seventy and eighty-five, 18 THE COURT: Can you agree to that? .
19 It weuld be a littie bit below low normal and it 19 MR. BERRETT: Well, we understand that he has
20| would be a little bit above mentally retarded. 20| reviewed Paglini's reports. | don't know that we have to

21 Q. Sc basically, this is somewhat above, and | 21| gothroughitA, B, C,D.

22| guess your word, a little bit above the level of what we 22 THE COURT; What I'm suggesting, we assume for
23| call mild mental retardation? 23| the sake of argument that Dr. Paglini made certain tests
24 A. Yes. 24, and came up with certain numbers. What does that mean

102 104

1 Q. And | also heard werds along the lines of 1 | now? Is what | think we're saying?

2 | borderline mental retardation. Does that apply to this 2 MR. ABOOQOD: And to satisfy the state, Judge,

3 | case? 3 | I've only got a few more questions afeng these, lines if

4 A. | suppose that would be a tess rigorous way of 4 | they're not comfortable stipulating that Dr. Paglini —

5 | describing it. The diagnostic term would be borderline 5 | everything he said is correct. Then just give me a few

6 | inteltectual functioning. It describes this range of 6 | more questions, and | think | can establish that Greg

7 | people who are functioning below average, but are not 7 | Brown agrees with Dr, Paglini,

8 | functioning in the mentally retarded range. 8 THE COURT: All right. Few more questions.

9 Q. And | heard several learning disabilities. Do 9 MR. ABOOD: Thank you.

10! you agree with that? 10| BY MR. ABOOD:

11 A. |don't have any reason to doubt that. It 11 Q. Dr. Brown, Dr. Paglini found that his spelling

12} certainly is substantiated by beth Dr. Paglini's 12| abilities were impaired at about the first percentile and

13| analysis, his testing, and school records. 13| a third grade level. In your review of those — of those

14 Q. Which you, yourself reviewed; is that correct? 14} reports; do you agree?

5 A. Yes. That's correct. 15 A. | have no reason o disagree with that. That

16 Q. Okay. Now Dr. Paglini also testified that he 16| would be a formal testing procedure that Dr. Paglini

17| assessed Justin's current spelling and reading abilities; 17{ would excel at.

18| is that right? 18 Q. And the basic reading skills being at a second

19 A.  Yes, that's correct. 19| grade level, is there any information you reviewed that

20 Q. And my understanding was that his spelling 20, would cause you to disagree with that?

21] abilities were impaired at the first percentile and at a 21 A. No.

22| third grade level; do you agree with that? 22 Q. Okay. Now is it fair to say that Justin's

23 MR. BERRETT: Judge, | know we've heard all 23} reading and spelling abilities are substantially below

24| this. Is there a reason we have to review it? 24| what one might expect from someone his age?

L
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A. Well, yes. You would expect someone his age to 1 A, Yes, | did.
read, at least, at the grade level where they left schoot 2 Q. And this test was devised by, | guess, was ita
if not at a high school level. 3 | psychiatrist or psychologist named Thomas Grisso?

Q. So- 4 A. Thomas Grisso is a psychologist who has written

A, And yes, this would be substantially lower than 5 | and has been involved with assessing competence to stand
that. 6 | trial and various aspects of competence in the trial

Q. Okay. Now, you reviewed the same school records 7 | process.
that Dr. Paglini did; is that right? 8 Q. You've heard of this man?

A. Yes, I did. 9 A. Yes.

Q. Now, Dr. Paglini already tesfified as to the 10 MR. ABOQD: Judge, if you don't mind, I'd like
importance of these records. What was your overall 11| to provide you what I've marked for identificaticn as
impression of Justin's school perfermance based on those 12| Proposed Exhibit D?
records? 13 THE COURT: Al right.

A.  Well, it was poor in that he got largely Ds in 14| BY MR. ABOOD:
his major subjects that would be involved with reading, 15 Q. Look -- do you have a copy of that, Dr. Brown?
and spelling, and writing. 16 A. ldo.

And his standardized test scores were typically 17 Q. Okay. Is this the test that I'm asking you
low as we've already heard. What this became important 18| about: Assessing, Understanding, and Appreciation of
to me in the context of logking at the serial evaluations 19| Miranda Rights?
that occurred over time, such that, for example, the 1.Q. 20 A, Yes,itis.
scores being low were present when Justin was in school 21 Q. s this the actual test that you gave to Justin
and then they were also low when Dr. Paglini performed 22| Porter on, was it August Twelfth of Two Thousand and Two?
the test. 23 A. Yes.

And that teve! of congruence over the course of 24 Q. And, in fact, is that your handwriting on this

106 108

time gives additional validity, from my perspective, to 1 [ test?
the low scores. 2 A. That is my handwriting throughout the test, yes.

Q. And so is it your testimony that the fact that 3 MR. ABOOD: I'm going to move for its admission,
we were able to uncover, for example, prior |.Q. tests 4 | Judge.
given when he was younger together with these school 5 MR. BERRETT: We don't have a problem for this
records and things along those lines, this tends to lend 6 | hearing.
validity to the last |.Q. test that was given to Justin? 7 MR. ABOQD: Thank you.

A. Certainly. 8 THE COURT: This will be next in order. What is

Q. Okay. 9 ] that?

A, Yes. 10 THE COURT CLERK: Is that D?

Q. Is there anything in these — in these school 11 MR. ABOOD: Isit D?
reports that you were given in any of the reports that 12 THE COURT CLERK: Is that what we're talking -
you reviewed in this case that woutd refute Dr. Paglini's 13 MR. ABOOD: What | gave him is C. | believe. |
conclusion that Justin is between the second and third 14| beg your pardon. | gave him D. And | apologize, Judge.
grade level in his basic reading skills? 15| | have another document that's already been marked C.

A.  No. Not that I'm aware of. 16| And so I'll go ahead and admit this.

Q. Now armed with all this background that you were i7 THE COURT: This will be D.
able to gather, did we ask you to go to the Clark County 18 MR. ABOOD: Thank you.

Detention Center about August Twelfth, Two Thousand and 19} BY MR. ABOOD:
Two, to personally interview Justin Porter? 20 Q. Now, | asked you whether or not this was your

A. Yes. 21| handwriting on this — on this document. First of allis

Q. And during that interview of Justin Porter, did 22| that unusual that you would be the one to fill this in?
you administer something called an Assessing, 23 A. No. This test is actually administered in
Understanding, and Appreciation of Miranda Rights Test? 24| basically a verbal format to a large degree. And you, as
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the evaluator, read certain questions. Some of which are 108 1 A. Yes, that's correct. m
actually printed on this form. Others of which are in 2 Q. One secticn is called comprehension of Miranda ‘
the test booklet. 3 | Rights; is that correct?

And you then record the responses that the 4 A, Yes,itis.
evaluee states as he states them. 5 Q. Another section is called direct comprehension

And that's what | did. & | of statements in the rights; is that correct?

Q. Okay. Now, briefly describe for the judge what 7 A. Yes, that's comrect.
is this test designed to do? 8 Q. And my understanding is that a third section is
A. Well, this test is the result of work done from 9 [ called, it's the final portion, it assesses three
a national institute of health grant which was used to 10| separate areas. And are you — you're prepared to tell
look at assessing individual's capacity to understand the 11} the judge about that; is that right?
comprehensicn and the vocabulary and the process of the 12 A. There is one other section, but, yes.
Miranda Warning. 13 Q. Well, let's start with the first one.
Q. And do you have any insight for the judge as to 14] Comprehension of Miranda Rights. I'm looking at page
how this test was developed? 15| cne.
A.  Well, it was — Dr, Grisso began the process and 16 A.  Okay.
worked with other professionals in the field, to hone the 17 Q. Is this the first part of that —- of this {est?
questions and make them more specific. 18 A. Yes,itis.

And then the test was given to somewhere 18 Q. Okay. If you don't mind, explain to the judge
between eight and nire hundred individuals. And the 20| how it is that you asked these various questions and you
scores were then standardized from that individual group. 21| get these various scores?

Q. Now, you've never - is this the first time 22 A. Basically | speak fo Mr. Porter. And | say,
you've given this test? 23| what does the following sentence mean to you:
A. Yes, itis. 24 You do not have to make a statement. And have
110 112
Q. And you did this based on my office's request? 1 | the right to remain silent.
A. Yes. 2 | then wait and | record the exact words that
Q. Now-- 3 | Mr. Porter states in response to that question.
A, And t think it's important to realize this is a 4 Q. So when you asked him that question, what
pretty - 5 | answers did he give you?
MR. BERRETT: Objection. There's no question. 6 A. He first stated quote, no good, close quote.
THE COURT: No question. Sustained. 7 Which was not relevant.
BY MR. ABOOD: 8 And | waited for a moment, and then he stated
Q. Whatis it important to realize concerning this g | quote, silence is the last part, close quote.
test? 10 Q. Okay.
A. This is a relatively straight forward test in 11 A. Referring, | believe, to the last word of the
which you're basically reading sentences o people and 12| sentence.
asking them what those sentences mean or words. 13 Q. Allright. So that was his response to what

And the interater reliability even amongst 14| that sentence meant; is that right?
inexperienced or untrained individuals giving this test 15 A. Yes. That's correct.
is quite high. 16 Q. Now explain to the judge how you came with a

It's in the .88 to 1.0 range with individuals 17| score of zero? in other words, was this subjective on
who have given it many times. So that would suggest it 18| your part? Or dees that book give you guidance en how to
does not require great skill to administer the test. 19| score this thing?

Q. Okay. Wel, let's explain to the judge how this 20 A. The scoring book gives examples of answers which
test is actually administered. 21| would score as a two which would be perfect. A one which :

A. Certainly. 22} would be so so. And a zero which wou'd be bad.

Q. This test, the testing protocol is divided into 23 And you match the answers which were given to
several sections; is that correct? 24! the examples within the test protocol boek.
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Q. And just for purposes of reference, give the 1 | zero point answers for every question asked; is that e
judge some examples of what would be a good answer as to 2 | correct?
what that means: You do not have to make a statement, 3 A. Yes, that's correct.
and have the right to remain silent. 4 Q. So when you asked the question - and the second
-In other words what would they give a score of 5 | question that you asked him pursuant to the instructions
two for the answer that you provide? 6 | in that manual: ;
A.  With regards to the first question that we're 7 Anything you say can be and will be used against
talking about a two — 8 ! you in a court of law; is that correct?
THE COURT: Excuse me. For the record, read in 9 A. Yes, that's correct.
the record. 10 Q. Now can you please tell the judge what Justin
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. 11| thought that meant?
THE COURT: What ycu're referencing. 12 A.  Well, his first response was the word, if. And
THE WITNESS: Oh, certainly. This is called 13| then he made three other responses later. Which
Instruments For Assessing, Understanding, and 14| included: | ¢an be in a courtroom;
Appreciation of Miranda Rights by Thomas Grisso, 15 It's no good for me;
G-r-i-s-s-0. Copyright Nineteen Ninety-Eight. 16 Don't want to be there.
THE COURT: Okay. 17 Q. And it was -- and in your referring to the scale
THE WITNESS: On page twenty-three is the 18| again, you gave him zero points?
particufar scoring guide for question number ene on part 19 A. That's correct.
one. And they're a series of two point answers which 20 Q. Inferms of coming close to answering what that
would include such things as: 21| meant?
You do not have to say a word to police or 22 A.  That's correct.
anyone; 23 Q. Is that right?
You don't have to say anything; 24 A. Based upon the rules and the examples given in
114 116
And if you don'{, it won't be held against you 1 | the scoring guide.
in court. 2 Q. Allright. Now the third question you
A one peint answer -- and there are several 3 | specifically asked him is:
others. 4 You are entitled to consult with an attorney
A one point answer example would be: 5 | before interrogation and to have an attorney present at
| think | should keep quiet; 6 | the time of the interrogation, correct?
It means don't talk to the police; 7 A. Yes, that's correct.
| would say it's best to say nothing. 8 Q. Please tell the judge what Justin thought that
It means you better keep your mouth shut. 9 | meant.
Those are examples of one point answers 10 A, He said: Have an attorney with me when you get
according to scoring protocol. 11, there.
A zero point answer would be: 12 Q. Okay. And according to the book, you were able
You got fo be quiet. 13| to give him some credit for that answer; is that correct?
It means you can't say anything; 14 A. Thatis a one point answer.
You must speak quietly; 15 Q. That's a one point answer. And, finally:
It means you don't talk; 16 If you can not afford an attorney, one will be
Or don't have to talk unless you're guilty. 17! appointed for you?
Those are the kinds of examples that would be a 18 A, Yes.
zero point. 19 Q. What does he say that means?
BY MR. ABOOD: 20 A. He says: | get an attorney.
Q. And 1 don't want to go through the examples for 219 Q. And according to the book, does he have an
each and every one of these questions: Is it fair to say 22| understanding of what that means?
that in this first par: Comprehension of Miranda 23 A, No.
Rights, they give you model two point, one point, and 24 Q. You gave him zero points?
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A. That's correct. 1 Q. Right. ‘

Q. Now, on the comprehension of Miranda Rights, 2 A.  The -- on number one, the fact that D is
Justin scored, my understanding is, one out of a possible 3 [ underlined, suggests D was actually the correct answer.
eight? 4 Q. Okay.

A. Yes, that's correct. 5 A. But, again, Mr. Porter can not see this answer

Q. And you indicated that that puts him at the 6 | sheet during, or can not see this sheet during —
lowest one percent. What does that mean? 7 Q. Right. Because you're filling it in?

A, Well, that it's not one percent. Itis one 8 A. Because I'm filling it in, so he would not know
percentile. 9 | that.

Q. O©ne percentile? 10 Q. Okay. Now, again, without going through each

A. Which is the same kind of answer that 11| and every one of those guestions and how they're
Dr. Paglini was giving that means that ninety-nine people 12| different or how they're similar, the state can do that
out of a hundred would score better than that on this 13| if they wish. You scored him two out of twelve; is that
particular portion of the test. 14| right?

Q. Okay. Let me move you to the secand section. | 15 A. Right. That's basically the total number of
quess, it's called direct comprehension of statements in 16| answers he gave which also had an underline under the
the rights; is that right? 17| answer suggesting it was correct.

A. There's - there are actually two sections to 18 Q. Now you also wrote something in your own hand in
this. One is comprehension of Miranda Rights, 19 this section here. Can you tell the judge what that
recognition, and the second is comprehension of Miranda 20| says?
vocabulary. 21 A. | simply noted that it appeared very hard for

Q. Okay. So the top part is comprehension of 22| him to understand this task. And that | often had to
Miranda Rights recognition; is that right? 23| repeat these two sentence pairs two or three times before

A. Yes, that's correct. 24| he was able to answer.

118 120

Q. Exptain to the judge what this section is 1 Q. Okay. Now, I'm now looking at a section
designed to measure? 2 | entitled comprehension ¢f Miranda vocabulary; is that

A. This section is designed to lock at whether 3| right?
someone is understanding the concept of a particular 4 A. Yes, That's correct.
sentence. And in the context of doing that, you read two 5 Q. Explain to the judge what this section is
sentences to the individual. And Il give you an 6 | designed to measure?
example for number one. The first sentence you read is: 7 A. This section is designed to look at specific

You do not have to make a statement, and have 8 | vocabulary used which are used in the Miranda wording.
the right to remain silent. 9 | And in this particular case the words are: Consult,
Then you read a second statement. And in this 10| attorney, interrogation, appoint, entitled, and right.
case it is: It is not right to tell lies. 11 And you ask the person what the word means, and
And the task of the individual is to tell you 12| then you read the sentence which is printed in the
whether those two statements mean the same thing or 13| manual. So that the person will have a context for the
whether they mean different things. 14| word. Because some of these, like, consult would be

Q. Okay. And from what I'm looking at here, there 15} either be a verb or a noun. But you have a specific
were twelve of those; is that right? 16} purpose. So you say what does the word consult mean tb

A. Thatis correct, yes. 17| you when used in a sentence like: | want to consult with

Q. And are each one of those types of questions 18| him? And then you record his exact response.
that were asked directly relating to Miranda rights? 19 Q. Okay. Well, let's look at that one. In fact,

A, Yes. 20| the first word is consult, correct?

Q. And the S means, | guess, same. And the D means 21 A. Correct.
different on this form? 22 Q. And the context you used it in was: | want to

A. Yes. S means that Mr. Porter answered saying 23! consult with him, correct?
that the two sentences meant the same thing. 24 A. Yes. That's correct.
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1 Q. Did Justin know what that meant? 1 A. He, initially his first statement was, tum 12
2 A. He did not. 2 | right, as in the direction right. And then indicated,
3 Q. Okay. The second word was attorney; is that 3 | right to go.
4 | right? 4 Q. So these words that all appear in the standard
5 A. Yes. 5 | Miranda Warnings, you scored him based on the
6 Q. And the context you used it in was the atterney 6 | instructions in that book with a two out of twelve; is
7 | left the building, correct? 7 | that right?
8 A. Correct. 8 A. Yes. That's correct.
9 Q. What did Justin say that meant? 9 Q. What does that mean?
10 A. He said quote, someone to help a lawyer, close 10 A, It means that he doesn't understand those words,
11| quote. 11 Q. What's this 1.2 percentite?
12 Q. Okay. Okay. And you gave him full credit for 12 A. A two out of twelve when measured against the
13| that? 13| standardized group is a 1.2 percentile meaning about
14 A. Thatis two point answer. 14| ninety-eight or ninety-nine people out of one hundred
15 Q. Okay. 15| would score better than Mr. Porter did on this portion of
16 A, Yes. 16| the test,
17 Q. The word interrogation, the context you used it 17 Q. Okay. I'm turning the page. I'm looking at
18| in was: The interrogation lasted quite a while, correct? 18| page, 1 guess it's Page four, function of rights in
19 A. Correct. 19| interrogation; is that right?
20 Q. Did Justin have any idea what the word 20 A. Yes. That's correct.
21| interrogation meant? 21 Q. Now it's difficult for us to figure out what
22 A. He did not know what that word meant, no. 22| that means by simply looking at that page. But can you
23 Q. Appoint, the context you used it in was: We 23| please explain to the judge what this page is designed to
24| will appoint her to be your sccial worker, correct? 24| measure and hew you administered this page to Justin?
122 124
1 A. Yes, correct. 1 A. Certainly. This page measures three different
2 Q. Please tell the judge what Justin thought that 2 | things. And rather than looking purely at vocabulary or
3 | meant? 3 | at word meaning, this is giving a situation and then
4 A. He thought it meant a point, like you were going 4 | asking questions about what might happen in a situation.
5 | fo make a point when you were talking. 5 So, for example, in the interrogation portion,
6 Q. Orlike the point on the end of pencil? 6 | after you let them know that the — that he's in a police
7 A. Yes. 7 | station and he's going to be questioned by police, the
8 Q. Okay. The fifth word | see is, entitled. And 8 | first question for — in one is; What is it the
9 | the contextit's used in is: He is entitled to money, 9 | policemen will want Joe to do? Close quote.
10| correct? 10 And then —
11 A. Correct. 11 THE COURT: Excuse me. Dces he —Is he given a
12 Q. Tell the judge what Justin thought you were 12| written statement to read a facts scenario befere this is .
13| talking about. 13| asked?
14 A. His response was quote, no car title, close 14 THE WITNESS: No. This is just a very — it's
15[ quote. 15| not even a full vignette. It's Joe is in the police
16 Q. No car title? 16| station. The police want to ask him a question.
17 A, Yes. 17 THE COURT: I'm just wondering if there's —
18 Q. And again, you gave him no point for that? 18 THE WITNESS: No. There's nothing that he had
19 A. Thatis a zero point answer, yes. 19| to read. '
20 Q. And, finally, the sixth word is the word, 20 THE COURT: Nothing in writing?
21 right. And you used it in the context: You have the 21 THE WITNESS: No.
22[ right to vote, correct? 22 THE COURT: Tell him verbally this is a standard
23 A. Yes. That's correct. 23| set of facts that you read.
24 Q. And what did Justin think that that meant? 24 THE WITNESS: It's not even a set of facts.
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1 | There's no crime listed. There's no, Joe did XY or Z. 12 1 A.  And that's the limit of what he knows. T
2 | If's only Joe is present in a police station. 2 Q. Allright. And so that part goes 1o Joe's
3 THE COURT: See my problem is that | don't have 3 | interrogation on the top of Page four?
4 | areference for these answers. 4 A. Yes. That's correct.
5 MR. ABOOD: Let me go ahead. If you don't mind, 5 Q. Correct. Now what's the first question that you
6 | I'd like to have this marked. My office will buy you a 6 | provided that you gave him two points for? In other
7 | new one, both of you gentlemen. 7 | words, how do you get all these two point answers?
8 THE COURT: Either that or you can have copies 8 A. Right. Well, then you have to read questions.
9 | made. 9 | And his responses are, again, verbal. The first question
10 MR. ABOOD: Letf's go ahead. | don't know if we 10| is: What s it that the policemen will want Joe to do?
11| can have copies made, Judge. | think it's copyrighted. 11 Q. Ckay. And what answer did Justin give you?
12| But if you don't mind, I'd like to mark it. |1 want to 12 A. His first answer was: Talk. And then he
13} admit this. We're going to give it the judge. 13| stated: About what he was arrested for.
14 THE COURT: You don't have to give it to me. | 14 Q. And you gave him two points for that?
15| just want to make sure that we have — 15 A. Yeah. That's a perfect answer.
16 MS. LUSAICH: | would love for it to be marked 16 Q. He gave a perfect answer?
17| and admitted. 17 A. Yes.
18 MR. ABOQD: If the state doesn't mind, then I'll 18 Q. Now what is the second question?
19| allow your Hener -- 18 A. The second question is, finish this sentence:
20 THE COURT: You know, you're all talking. So 20| The police think that Joe blank.
21| the state just said they didn’t have any objection to the 21 Q. And what answer did Justin give you?
22| admitting. | think that's fine. 22 A. Justin gave the answer, quote: Joe knows, close
23 THE COURT CLERK: E. 23| quote,
24 MR. ABOOD: Thank you. 24 Q. And what did the manual view that kind of answer
126 128
1 You know, it's up to the —it's up to the 1 | as worth?
2 | Court, frankly, Judge, if you want to look at this while 2 A. That's worth two points.
3 | Greg Brown is talking about it. 3 Q. So he got that one right?
4 THE COURT: No. | just wanted to make sure we 4 A. Yes. He got that right.
§ | have this, that source book for the record. 5 Q. And the third question was?
6 MR. ABOOD: Okay. 6 A.  What is the most important thing the police
7 THE COURT: The appellate court frowns on 7 | might want Joe to tell them?
8 | anything we don't include in the record. 8 Q. And what did Justin say?
9 MR. ABOQCD: Thank you, 9 A. He said, quote, what's gaing down, close quote.
10| BY MR. ABOQOD: 10 Q. And, again, he scored perfectly?
11 Q. Now the judge wants a better understanding of 1 A. That's a perfect score, yes.
12( what questions it is or what vignettes you are offering, 12 Q. What was the next question?
13| that cause Justin to provide various answers, Because if 13 A. How are the policemen probably feeling?
141 you recall, the judge is just looking at the answers form 14 Q. And Justin's answer?
15| like we are. 156 A. Quote, want to bash his head in, close quote.
16 A. Right. 16 Q. And was that worth two points?
17 Q. So is there a way you can provide him with a 17 A. That was worth two points, yes.
18| better explanation? 18 Q. And finally, the last question?
19 A, Basically, you indicate that the police have 19 A. Was, how is Joe probably feeling?
20/ brought Joe into the detention or the police station. 20 Q. And what did Justin say?
21| There has been a crime. The policemen want to talk to 21 A. Quote, wants to get the hell out of there, close
22] Joe. Remember that Joe is in detention or at a police 22| quote. '
23 station and the policemen want to talk to him. 23 Q. Okay. So in terms of the word interrogation, it
24 Q. Okay. 24 was your judgment, based on the guidance of that book,
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that he gave perfect answers, ten out of ten; is that ° 1 | means. 1t
right? 2 A. Well the R.S. score assesses questions which

A. Yes. He got a perfect score regarding sort of 3 | assess his knowledge or understanding that he is not
the functional aspects of the interrogation process. 4 | obligated to speak 1o the police at the time of the

Q. Okay. So one thing you can conclude for sute, 5 | questioning.
he didn't malinger concerning the meaning of 6 Q. Is there a specific section here that we can
interrogation; is that right? 7 | look at?

A. He did not malinger, or he did it poorly. 8 A.  Well, you have the questions that go intb that

Q. Okay. Or he did it poorly? 9 | score are R.5.1, R.5.2, R.5.3,R.8.4,and R.S.5.

All right. Now, there are other sections here 10 Q. Okay. And, again, is there a small vignette

under function of rights of interrogation? 11| there?

A. That's correct. 12| A, Yes, thereis. One moment.

Q. And what | really want to do was give the judge 13 Q. Allright. Now, my understanding concemning his
examples of the kind of questions that are asked. 14| understanding of the concept of the right to remain

A, Okay. 15| silent, he scored a one out of ten; is that right?

Q. Is it fair to say that the second part deals 16 A. Yes, that's correct.
with Tim and his lawyer? 17 Q. That was exceptionally poor; wasn't it? '

A. Yes. 18 A. That was exceptionally poor.,

Q. And, again, it's designed for you to read a 19 Q. | think it's important enough for you to read
small vignette and ask a series of questions, correct? 20| the judge the vignette and the questions you asked and

A. That's correct. 21| the answers he provided.

Q. And in that section, it looks like Justin got 22 A.  Well, with regards to the interrogation piece,
six points. That was - what is that, six out of ten? 23| there's one brief vignette and with regards tc the court

A. That's — actually this combines two different 24| hearing piece there's another vignette.

130 132

vignettes, but his score regarding the right to an
attorney, he scored an eight out of ten.

Q. Eight of ten concerning his right to an
attorney; is that right?

A.  Yes, that's correct.

THE COURT: Excuse me. It alsc includes his
court hearing as well, down at the bottom because you're
adding up -- you're adding six and two, correct?

THE WITNESS: Right. That one question on the
Court hearing related to the attorney, and that's why it
went up to that area.

THE COURT: Okay. By —

THE WITNESS: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: You added them up?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. ABOOD: That would be Greg's court hearing;
is that right?

THE COURT: Exactly.

BY MR. ABOCD:

Q. Aliright. Now, understanding the concept of
his right to remain silent, is that covered somewhere in
this test?

A. Yeah thatis the R.S. score.

Q. The R.S. score. Explain to the judge what that
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Q. Okay.

A. Because those two are asked separately, and the
scores are added together.

Q. Why don't you go ahead and do that for the
judge?

A. Okay. Thisis Greg. The police have taken him
to detenticn or te the police station because they want
to talk to him. Greg stole money from a store, but the
police are not sure he did it because no one saw Greg do
it. They are getting ready to ask him questions. Greg
knows he doesn't have to talk if he deesn't want to and
is trying to decide whether or not to talk, That's --
that is the vignette.

Q. Okay.

A. The second vignette is that: This is Greg three
weeks later. He's at a court hearing. The judge is
here, and the policemen who arrested and questioned Greg
are here. Greg's lawyer and his parents are sitling near
him.

Q. Okay?

A, Very brief vignette. The questions which follow
are, finish this sentence: I Greg decides to tell the
police about what he did, then the things that Greg says,
blank.
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1 Q. What did Justin say? 1 A Yes,

2 A. Justin's response to that question was: Quote, 2 Q. Okay.

3 | bamboozled them, close quote. 3 A.  The next questions jump down to R.5.4 and

4 Q. Give the judge an example of a proper answer to 41 RSS.

5 | that question. 5 Q. Okay.

6 A. A proper answer is: 6 A. R.S5.4isif the judge finds out that Greg

7 Can be used against him in court; 7 | wouldn't talk to the police, then what should happen?

8 Will get him into trouble at court time; 8 Q. And Justin said?

9 Can turn against him later in court; 9 A. ldon't know.
10 Will be told to the judge later on; 10 Q. And what's the right answer?
11 Will go into his record. 11 A. Nothing bad will happen;
12 Those would be examples of perfect answers. 12 Go on with the hearing;

13 Q. Any one of those would be perfect? 13 The judge will listen to what everybody has o
14 A. That's correct. 14| say.

15 Q. Okay. What was the second question? 15 Answers like that.

16 A. The second question was: If Greg decides not to 16 Q. Okay. And what was the next question?

17| talk, what is the most important thing the police are 17 A, Greg did not tell the police anything about what
18/ supposed to do? 18| he did. Here in court, if he is told to talk about what

19 Q. And what did Justin say? 19] he did that was wrong, will he have to talk about it?

20 A. Justin's answer was, quote: | don't know, close 20 Q. And what did Justin say?

21| quote. 21 A, He answered that he did not know.

22 Q. And give the judge an example of the right 22 Q. He didn't know. Okay. What score did you give
23j answer. 23| him when you took into account that whole section?

24 A. Examples would be: 24 A.  Well, the score -- the scoring was a one.

134 136

1 Leave him be; 1 Q. Okay.

2 Don't question him; 2 A. Qut of ten possible.

3 Get him a lawyer. 3 Q. Acneoutoften?

4 Q. Okay. And what was the next question? 4 A. Yes. That's correct.

5 A. Next question is: If Greg says he doesn't want 5 Q. Is there a final score for the whole test? Is

6 | to talk but the police tell him he has to talk, what 6 | that how the test works?

7 | should happen then? 7 A.  Well for these last three portions relating,

8 Q. What did Justin say? 8 | understanding the interrogation process, having the

9 A. Quote, he got to talk, close quote. 9 | understanding that you have a right to counsel, and

10 Q. Ckay. And what was the proper answer? 10| having the understanding that you have a right to remain
11 A. A proper answer would be something like, they 11| silent, there is a total score for that section.

12| would be lying because he doesn't have io; 12 The first three sections stand on their own.

13 They would be going against his right; 13 Q. So the last section that you're talking about,

14 it still doesn't mean that he has to talk; 14] what page is that on?

15 Greg can tell them he doesn't have to talk; 15 A. That's the last page.

16 They are wrong; 18 Q. s that the page that we haven't looked at?

17 He'll know that he doesn't have to really. 17 A. No. v
18] Q. Okay. 18 Q. Because | see notes.

19 A. Things like that. 19 A. No. I'm sorry. That's the third page. The one
20 Q. Well, Justin says, he got to talk. Why did you 20| that we just talked about.

21) give him a point for that? 21 Q. We just talked about?

22 A. Because one point answers include: 22 'm sorry, ma'am.

23 He'll have to talk. g 23 All right. Overall, are these scores low? Or
24 Q. Okay. Was there any other questions? 24| are they high?
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1 A. Overall the scores are low. 1 | Miranda rights; is that correct?

2 Q. What does this indicate to you? 2 A. Thatis correct.

3 A. Itindicates to me that he had difficulty with 3 MR. ABOOD: Your Honor, if you don't mind, I've
4 | the vocabulary present in the language of the Miranda 4 | had this marked as Defense Proposed Exhibit C. I'd like
5 | Warning, and that he had difficulty understanding what 5 | to have it admitted.

6 | the actual phrases meant in addition to the individual 6 THE COURT: Wait a minute.

7 | words. 7 MR. BERRETT: Sorry.

8 Q. Now | want to talk about — talk to you about 8 THE COURT: Don't we already have a C.?

9 | that very briefly. But before | de that, there's a last 9 MR. ABOOD: That's Greg Brown's report. 1don't -
10| page on here that says notes; is that right? 10| think Greg Brown's report is in.
11 A. Yes, that's comect, 11 MR. BERRETT: Is that this one?
12 Q. Tell the judge what that - what that note 12 MS. LUSAICH: The raw data is in.
13| section is about. 13 THE COURT: Do we have a C? All right.

14 A, The next portion of the test is, you are 14 MR. ABOOD: Yeah, itis. It's in as state's —-

15| required to ask the examinee what their description of 15 MR. BERRETT: We didn't putitin.

16| events, thoughts, and feelings were during the time that 16 MR. ABOOD: Oh, you didn't put it in?

17| surrounded their arrest, custody, and interrogation. 17 THE COURT: So just for the record, let me
18 Q. So Justin apparently told you that, and you 18| figure out. Do we have a C yet?

19| wrote it down on that last page; is that right? 19 THE COURT CLERK: No, sir. He gave me this
20 A. Yes. That's correct. 20| prior.

21 Q. Okay. Now-- 21 THE COURT: So it's already been marked?

22 THE COURT: Dactor, could you translate those 22 MR. ABOOD: Thank you, Judge.

23| notes for me? 23 THE COURT CLERK: And | marked it Proposed C.
24 THE WITNESS: Certainly, your Honor. 24 MR. ABOCD: I'm going to provide it to the
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1 Came in with guns out; 1| judge.

2 Take me; 2 THE COURT: Thank you.

3 Quote, don't play fucking stupid toe me, close 3 | BY MR. ABOOD:

4 | quote; 4 Q. Dr. Brown?

5 To station means taken to station; 5 MR. BERRETT: Isitin?

6 Quote, a lot, close quote; 6 MR. ABOQD: Yeah, it's in.

7 They was mean,; 7 THE COURT CLERK: Thank you.

8 Beatings, 8 MR. BERRETT: No objection.

9 Wrapped with books; 9 MR. ABOOD: Okay.

10 Talking and talking for hours and hours, day 10| BY MR. ABOOD:

11| afler day, 11 Q. The results you got on this test, that we've

12 Threatened to beat me; 12| been talking about, based on your review of all the

13 Someone else has been killed at that same 13j testing that Dr. Paglini did, all the tests that he

14| station; 14| testified to earlier —

15 Sleeping on table; 15 A, Yes.

16 Feit scared, 16 Q. - do the results that you got on the test you

17 No real meal, 17| administered pretty much comport with the kinds of

18 Nc sense of time for days; 18] resuits that Dr. Paglini got in the tests he

19 Worstest torture in the world. 19| administered?

20 THE COURT: Thank you. 20 A. ltis my opinion that they are congruent with

21| BY MR. ABOOD: 21| one another and consistent in that he has significant

22 Q. You provided a report tc my office on August 22| difficulties with vocabulary, reading, verbal processing.
23| Seventeenth, Two Thousand and Twe, wherein you rendered a | 23 Q. The tests that you gave and the results that you
24/ professional opinion as to whether Justin understood his 24| derived from the testing you did on Justin, do the scores,
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1 | also comport with what we know about Justin in terms of 1 1 Thanks, Judge.
2 ) the 1.Q. testing that he was given when he was in grade 2 THE WITNESS: You're welcome. Thank you.
3 | school and high school? 3 MR. BERRETT: Thank you, Judge.
4 A. Yes. And with regard to his functioning in 4
5 | school and his gradings in school. 5 CROSS EXAMINATION
6 Q. And his grades in school. So is it fair to say 6 | BY MR. BERRETT:
7 [ that the results you got are completely consistent with 7 Q. Let's, if we could, go through this test. Now,
8 | the results that we have on every test that's been given 8 | this is a test that you had never given before; is that
9 | to Justin that we're aware of? 9 | correct?
10 MR. BERRETT: That's a leading question. 10 A. That's correct. This was the first time ['ve
11| Objection. 11| used this paricular measure. i
12 THE COURT: ltis. Ask it a different way. 12 Q. Never had any cpportunity in the world in your
13| BY MR. ABOQD: 13| practice to use this test until you were contacted by the
14 Q. Is there anything — based on the testimony you 14| defense attorneys; is that correct?
15[ heard from John Paglini, is there anything unusual about 15 A. Yeah. That's correct.
16| the scores you got in relation to the scores John Paglini 16 Q. Allright. And you got the instruction book, |
17| got in all the testing that he gave Justin Porter? 17] assume, because you had to follow the instruction baook to -
18 A. No. 18| figure out how to do it; is that right?
19 Q. Okay. Now, you provided a report dated August 19 A_  That is correct.
20| Seventeenth, Two Thousand and Two, and | provided a copy 20 THE COURT CLERK: The book?
21| to the judge. It's been admitted as evidence. Do you 21 MR. BROWN: | think he has it.
22| recall that report? 22| BY MR. BERRETT:
23 A. Yes. 23 Q. When are you supposed to use this test?
24 Q. Now, you rendered a professional opinion in that 24 A. Excuse me?
142 . 144
1 | report; is that correct? 1 Q. When are you supposed to use this test?
2 A ldid. 2 MR. ABOOD: Ask for clarification, Judge. |
3 Q. And your opinion is based on the 1.Q. test 3 | don't understand what that question means.
4 | administered by Dr. Paglini; is that right? 4 THE WITNESS: | don't know what the word "when"
5 A. Partially, yes. 5 | means in your question.
6 Q. The educational history and records you reviewed 6 | BY MR. BERRETT:
7 | that we gathered on Justin Porter, correct? 7 Q. Well, if I'm a police officer on the sireet, and
8 A, Yes, pattially. 8 | I'm arresting a defendant, am | supposed to do it at that
9 Q. The testing that you did that we just went over 9 [ point? Or years later when I'm second guessing what
10| with the judge: Assessing, and Understanding, and 10| someone's understanding was a couple of years previous?
11} Appreciation of Miranda Rights; is that right? 11| Is that when the test is to be applied?
12 A. Yes. 12 A. | think the test is to be applied when the
13 Q. And what is your — do you have a copy of your 13| question arises as to whether or not someone had a
14| report with you? 14| capacity to understand the information they were given.
15 A. ldo. 15 Q. Does the book tell when is the appropriate time
16 Q. What is your professional opinion as to whether 16| to use the test? Says here purpose of instruments, page -
17| or not Justin would have had significant difficulty 17| three. Let's see If it says anything.
18] understanding his Miranda Rights? 18 | suppose the fact that I'm reading this in here
19 A. To areasonable degree of psychiatric certainty 19} indicates that you don't know what the answer is to that
20| it's my professional opinion that he would have had 20| question?
21| significant difficulty understanding the Miranda Rights, 21 A. My answer is the same to the previous question.
22| both with regards to the vocabulary and the 22| You administer a test when there is a question to be
23] comprehension. 23| answered.
24 MR. ABOOD: Thank you very much, Dr. Brown. 24 Q. Allright. Are you familiar with what Miranda
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1 | Rights were given to the defendant in this case? 1 | individuals. And that group of individuals is what al
2 A. My understanding is that he was to read the card 2 | provides the scores in order to compare people who did
3 | aloud. 3 [ well versus not well on a statistical measure like we

4 Q. Do you have a copy of that card? 4 | talked about.

5 A. 1do not have a copy of that card. 5 And if you begin making changes to the

6 Q. Did you have a copy of the card prior to 6 | standardized test protocol as it sits here, then the

7 | administering the test? 7 | ability to compare with those standardized scores that

B A. No. 8 | exist is lost.

9 Q. So you don't know the language on the card which 9 Q. Well, I'm not suggesting you changing the test.
10| you were comparing language on a test without knowing 10| But what I'm asking is: If certain words exist -
11] what language was used; is that correct? 11 THE COURT: Thank you.
12 A. Yes. That's correct. 12 MR. BERRETT: We're short.
13 MR. BERRETT: Judge, ! think this is our only 13 MR. BROWN: That's okay. Give the doctor a

14| copy. If we can get the bailiff. 14| copy.

15 Bill,  think the defense would probably like a 15 MR. BERRETT: Okay.

16| copy and the judge. 16 MR. BROWN: If you're going to reference it, |

17 THE BAILIFF: I'll make copies. 17| think.

18 THE COURT: Is it the Miranda Warning? 18| BY MR. BERRETT:

19 MR. BERRETT: Yes, 18 Q. Doctor, let me just do this. First of all, is

20 THE COURT: Iden't think | need a copy. 20| this a standardized test?

21 MR. BERRETT: Allright. 21 A. Yes. It has a standardized test group which is

22 MR. BROWN: | think that particular cne is 22| in the back cf the manual which assesses the store — the
23| already marked and admitted. 23| scores of an individual versus the standardized scores in
24 MR. BERRETT: It should be. 1 just wanted it 24| the back.

146 148

1 | for convenience. 1 Q. Allright. Let's go to the comprehension

2 THE COURT: It's all right. Go ahead. 2 | Miranda vocabulary. One of the words there is consult.

3 | BY MR. BERRETT: 3 A. Yes,

4 Q. While he's making that, | want to go through 4 Q. Would you look on the Miranda Rights which were
5 | some of these, the questions here. I'm talking about the 5 | given to the defendant and see if you see that word,

6 | first page where it talks about: You have to make a 6 | consult.

7 | statement. 7 A.  Yes. This version does not contain the word

8 A, Qkay, 8 | consult.

9 Q. |s the word statement in that Miranda Warning 9 Q. And why did you test the defendant about the

10| card? 10| meaning of the word that he was not given in the Miranda
1% A. |have noidea. The test has to be given as it 11| Warnings?

12| is given in this protocol in order to use the testas a 12 A. |think | already answered that in that this is

13| standardized measure from the test subject. So if you 13| a standardized test, and it has to be administered in the
14! change the test, it really would not be terribly 14| same way each time it's administered.

15{ meaningful. 15 And you have to use it as it stands, otherwise,
18 MR. BERRETT: Wait for that copy. 16| you can not reasonably or meaningfully use the

17| BY MR. BERRETT: 17| standardized scores at the end.

18 Q. What | think — ! think what you're saying is: 18 Q. You, as | understand it, are saying the

19] If | ask a question about the word magnificent and the 19| defendant was questioned as to his comprehension of
20| word magnificent is not on the Miranda Wamings card, it 20| Miranda based on these words, and that he didn't

21) may have ne meaning. Would you concede that? 21| comprehend Miranda because he failed this test; isn't
22 A.  Well, that actuaily wasn't what | said. What | 22| that what you said?

23| said was, that when you are administering a test of this 23 A. That's correct.

24| type, the test has been standardized on a group of 24 Q. Aliright. Another word down here is
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interrogation. Can you look on that rights of person 1 1 THE COURT: Speculation.
arrested card and find that word interrogation? 2 MR. ABOOD: | beg your pardon, your Honor.
A. Thatword is not present either. 3 THE COURT: Speculation.
Q. And what does that mean in regard to the test? 4 | BY MR. BERRETT:
A. Same answer as with regards tec the word consult. 5 Q. You go through the rest of this, and there's
Q. Does it mean that you tested him about something 6 | also use of some words that were not used in that Miranda
that was irrelevant {o his understanding of what he was 7 | Rights. Again, | think the use of the word interrogation
toid on Miranda? 8 | occurred, and entitled, and consult, in fact, in one
A. No. |t means that | tested him regarding a 9 | sentence in the comprehension of Miranda Rights; is that
standardized test version of the Miranda Wamings and how 10| correct?
this particular test assesses the different aspects of 11 A. | didn't follow that last question. I'm sorry.
understanding the Miranda Warnings. 12 Q. Allright. What I'm talking about is: On one
Q. Allright. Let's go to the next word then. 13| of the test areas which is Comprehension of Miranda
Appoint. Can you see that word appoint on the Miranda 14| Rights, it would be question number three. In that -
Warnings card? 15 A. Yes.
A. Yes, | do. 16 Q. --question -
Q. By itself without appointed. Is there appoint 17 A. Yes,
there, somewhere? 18 Q. - itsays you are entitled to consult with an
A. No. The version on this test is appointed. 19| attorney before interrogation.
Q. Allright. That's a different word from 20 Those are three words that do not appear on the
appoint; isn't it? 21| Miranda Rights card that were in your comprehension list;
A. It's a different verb tense. 22| aren't they?
Q. Allright. 23] A Yes.
A. Has the same general meaning. 24 Q. Isn'tthat true?
150 152
Q. Let's go to the next word, entitled. Do you see 1 A. That's comect.
the word entitled on the Miranda card that was given to 2 Q. Allright. Now, did the defendant understand he
the defendant? 3 | was confessing to a crime?
A. Thatis not on this, yes. 4 A. Idon't- I don't believe that's addressed in
Q. Allright. So far four out of the six words you 5 | the particular test protocol.
tested his comprehension of were not even on the rights 6 Q. Well you have read the statements; have you not?
card that the police agvised him of; isn't that correct? 7 A. Yes, | did.
A. Yes. 8 Q. And you become famitiar with the police
Q. Now, Miranda is not some sort of magic voodoo g | reports. And you have, in fact, evaluated the defendant
word, is it? People see Miranda Rights all the time on 10| specifically as to this area. So can you tell us whether
T.V; don't they? 11| or not the defendant understood he was confessing to a
A. You can if you watch the right television shows, 12| crime?
yes. 13 A. Well, | — | - | would believe — | believe he
Q. Do you think it's a strange concept to a young 14| knew he was talking about a crime. Excuse me.
kid, that when he's arrested, that he has a right to 15 Q. Did he know he was waiving a right?
remain silent? 16 A. Well, that's -- that's sort of the ultimate
MR. BROWN: Now, we've gone a little far into 17| question of today.
the speculation, Judge. 1would object. 18 Q. And by the way, I'm not one to nit pick, but on
MR. BERRETT. Well, he's - 19| your Comprehension of Miranda Vocabulary -
THE COURT: You are arguing. 20 Counsel, I'm talking about right here,
MR. BERRETT: Taking a position the defendant 21 MR. BROWN: Okay.
didn't understand his Miranda Right. 22| BY MR. BERRETT: .
THE COURT: Well — 23 Q. Sir, on the Comprehension of Miranda Vocabulary,
MR. ABOOD: Based on these tests, Judge. 24| on this portion here, when it's defining right, and one
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of his answers is: Turned right, which, of course, is 1o 1 Q. Allright. Well, tet's go through a couple of 199
correct. But not in the sense you're referring to it 2 | examples. Just 1o get a feel for whether or not the
here? 3 | defendant understood that he was giving information to
A. Right. 4 | the police. Page six. That would be the second question
Q.. But he says, he has a right to go, and you 5 | up from the bottom of the page?
scored him a zero? 6 "Q. Okay. And before you left, what did you do
A. Yes. 7 | to the gal?" Sir, could you read that answer? .
Q. You maintain that a guy saying | have a right to 8 A. Outloud or silently? :
go gets no credit when he's defining what a right is? 9 Q. Go ahead and read it out loud.
A. | believe so. We can check it against the 10 A.  When she got the — when she was, like —~ you
answers if you weuld like. 11| know, she act like she was scared. | mean, cuz she said,
Q. Well, that's all right. Doctor, if | could, I'm 12| well, I'm supposed to blank out on her. | mean, | was
going to go through some of the statements briefly, and, 13| scared. |didn't know what to do. | didn't know, well,
again, if 1 could, you don't have copies, do you? 14| she might - well, rape.
A 1= 15 Then, again, she might say, you know, he was
Q. Ordoyou? 16| going to kill me, 1deon't really know. And | was
A. --do have a copy. Yes. 17| scared. So, and during that time — the time that | was
THE COURT: Thank you. 18| scared, | didn't know what to think.
MR. BERRETT: Counsel, I'm going to refer to the 19 But at the time before we even got to the point
first statement which is dated August Twelve, the one of 20| where she got scared.
nineteen thirty hours. 21 We was having a nice time, close quote.
THE COURT: For the record, that's State's 22| Q. Aliright. Now that's a fairly lengthy response
Exhibit One. What page, twelve? 23| to that question; isn't it?
BY MR. BERRETT: 24 A. That's a reasonably long answer, especially in
154 156
Q. Well, let's start out with page two. And, 1| compared to many of the others, yes.
Doctor, I'm going to refer to about halfway down the 2 Q. Let me give you another example on page eleven.
page. 3 MR. BROWN: Judge, is there a follow-up question
"Q. Okay. Apartment number three. Uh, Justin, 4 | to other than just having the doctor read it.
do you know this is being recorded? 5 MR. ABOQD: | don't understand what the
"A. Yes, sir. 6 | relevance is.
"Q. Is that okay with you? 7 MR, BERRETT: Well —
"A. Fine by me." 8 MR. ABOOD: The question is not whether or not
Now, in terms of his understanding that he was 9 | he knew he was giving information. The question is
giving a statement to the police that was being recorded, 10| whether or not he knew he had a right not to give
would you indicate that he had that knowledge based on 11| information. And that's what we're trying to
that language. 12| investigation.
A. It would appear that he understands he's being 13 MR. BERRETT: Well —
tape recorded, yes. 14 THE COURT: That's the issue.
Q. Allright. Now, if you were to consider whether 15 MR. BERRETT: The issue is with the totality of
a statement was voluntarily given or coerced, would one 16| the circumstance. Was the defendant freely and
of the factors be that, say, you asked a short guestion 17| voluntarily giving information to the police officers?
and you get, say, a two paragraph response. 18 MR. ABOOD: We will never —
Would that indicate to you that the person 19 MR. BERRETT: So -
giving that response was freely and voluntarily giving 20 MR. ABOOD: Beg your pardon. I'm sorry. Go
that answer? 21| ahead.
A. There - | mean, there would be some variables. 22 MR. BERRETT: Interms --
1t would depend on where in the interview it fell, for 23 THE COURT: It's his question. Go ahead. )
example, and what it was in response to. 24 MR. BERRETT: All right. Thank you, Judge. i
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BY MR. BERRETT: b 1 Now, I'm going to refer to page seventy-six, 1%
Q. And I'm not going to have them all read. | just 2 | counsel.
want to point out several places in the transcript where 3 Cne of the questions really is — is — let's
he continues ta give very lengthy answers. Page eleven, 4 | see if you can find that in your copy. V'l refer to
for example, if you could see that last question on the 5 | it. But at the top of the page it's really the
page, and the answer. Doctor, can you count how many 6 | defendant's answer. And this is a answer. Can you read
lines the answer takes, following over in page twelve? 7 | that?
A. That would be a little over thiteen and-a-half 8 A. Do you — do you think I'm serry for what | did?
lines, almost fourteen lines. 9 Q. And then the question by the officer: Do you
Q. Would you say that's a pretty good or pretty 10| want me te ask you that? Do you think — are you sorry
long answer for any guestion? 11| for what you did? What's his answer?
A. | would say that's a relatively long answer. 12 A. Yes, lam, you know. And if | could turn back
Q. Again on page twenty-one, the top of the page, 13} the hands of time, like I'm saying | wish | could, God
there's a question, or a beginning of an answer of a 14} knows | wish | could. Sometime, you know, like me, when
question. Can you indicate how lengthy that answer is? 15! they told me when the officers first came and got me,
A. It locks like four lines, three and-a-half, four 16| they teld me, you know, when he looked at me, he looked
lines. 17| to say, you ain't no gang banger.
Q. Page twenty-one? 18 Q. And the question is, okay. And then what's the
A. Yes. ‘ 19| answer?
MS. LUSAICH: The top. 20 A. He lopoked me straight in the eye and said you
THE WITNESS: | see a four line answer. 21| ain't no gang banger. They must got you confused with
MR. BRCWN: We all have the same? 22| something else. And | ain't — | ain't no bad child,
THE WITNESS: Are we at the same page? 23| blank. My momma said, you know, momma's will do what
MR. BERRETT: Ten. Let's check. 24| they got to do for their kids, yocu know. And, um, |
158 160
THE WITNESS: Maybe we're on different pages. 1 | don't want to be called no, no, no rapist or nothing like
This says twenty-cne. 2 | that. You know. But that — that would be the first
BY MR. BERRETT: 3 | thing that would come out of people mouths.
Q. There's two twenty-ones? 4 Q. And then the next request is: Okay. Can you
MR. ABOOD: |don't think he has a corrected 5 | see what his answer is to the question, okay?
copy. 6 A. You're a rapist. You know that. It's like you
THE WITNESS: This is my page twenty-one. 7 | all don't even know what goes on. You know, it's like
BY MR. BERRETT: 8 | you hear one side of the story, but you got to hear both
Q. Letme look at that. For the record his page 9 | of the sides.
twenty-one is different. That's an uncorrected copy. 10 Q. All right. 1think that's enough to kind of
THE COURT: All right. For the record. 11| show -- would you call that interrogation, Doctor? |
THE WITNESS: Okay. 12[ mean, here -- the two questions in a row are, by the
BY MR. BERRETT: 13| officer, okay. And then it's the defendant who's
Q. Let me just have you refer to that page 14| continuing to say what he wants to say. And at the top
twenty-one. How many lines? For the record, the copy 15; of page, the question that staried it out was by the
the doctor was using had an uncorrected on the top right 16| defendant's answer. Do you think I'm sorry for what |
page, which is probably before it was edited. Maybe 17| did?
something was changed. 18 Now, some people like to get things off their
A. Oh, okay. Nine and a word. 19 chest, don't they, Dactor?
Q. Allright. Page forty-nine. The middle of the 20 A, Occasionally, yes.
page, there's a question and the answer. Can you just 21 Q. And did you see anything in the defendant's
give an idea how many lines that answer goes through? 22| statements that were expressions of remorse or sorrow for,
A. Nine lines. 23| what he had done where he wanted to free his mind or freé
Q. Ailright. 24| his thought process from the burden of the secrecy that
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1 | he'd been carrying around? ! 1 MR. BERRETT: — Judge. I'm not going to 88
2 A. ldon't—1don'trecall. 2 | belabor it because 1 know you'll have the siatements.

3 Q. fwe could, we'll refer to the second 3 THE COURT: All right.

4 | interview. 4 THE WITNESS: |don't have a second

5 MR. BROWN: Judge, | would object. | don't 5 | interrogation dated the Twelfth of August, which |

6 | understand the relevance of whether he answered that. We 6 | believe is what you said. | have one dated the

7 | probably could mark it and admit a copy of that one if we 7 | Thirteenth. But | don't have a second one dated the

8 { have it too. 8 | Twelfth.

9 MR. BERRETT: Yes. ] MS. LUSAICH: Well, interestingly you have one
10 MR. BROWN: And then, of course, the statements 10| dated the fifteenth, and there is not one dated the
11| can speak for themselves. And counsel can argue, but | 11| Fifteenth.

12| don't know how we can expect the doctor to make an 12 THE WITNESS: Oh.

13| informed decision on whether he understood the waiver 13| BY MR. BERRETT:

14| rights by feeling sorry later. So that's my objection. 14 Q. Did | give you the original?

15| | don't think it's relevant. 15 THE WITNESS: Well, here's the one dated the

16 MR. BERRETT: If | could get, the next 16| Fifteenth,

17| statement. We will call it statement number two. It's a 17 MS. LUSAICH: Statement?

18| statement dated August Twelfth at nineteen thirteen 18 MR. ABOOD: Maybe we can provide the state with
19| hours. 19( a copy of their police reports, Judge.

20 MS. LLUSAICH: Interestingly in the top right 20 MR. BERRETT: That should be something else.

21| hand corner it says number two. 21 THE WITNESS: But | don't have a second one from
22 MR, BERRETT: Yeah. And it says number two on 22| the Twelfth.

23| the top right hand corner. 23 THE COURT: This is the one on the Twelfth.

24 THE COURT: All right. Fine. 24 Counsel, this is the one on the Twelfth.

162 164

1 MR. BERRETT: Again, can | get a copy for the 1 MR. BERRETT: All right. It's number two.

2 | judge? 2 | BY MR. BERRETT:

3 THE COURT CLERK: It will be Proposed Two also. 3 Q. Let me just go through this. Refer to what we

4 MR. BERRETT: | move to admit Two. 4 | call Exhibit Number Two -- I'm sorry, interview number

5 | BY MR. BERRETT: 5 | two, page fourteen.

8 Q. Are you familiar with that statement, Doctor? 6 When, again, we're talking about

7 A. No, actually | - 7 | veluntariness. And my suggestion or question is: Isn't

8 THE COURT: Is it admitted over the objection of 8 | it possible that he wanted to lighten his burden, his

9 | Mr. Brown? 9 | hurt, by expressions of what he had done? And if | could

10 MR, BROWN: No, Judge. We have no objection. 10| get you to read the answer which is —

t THE WITNESS: You said another one on October. 11 MR. BROWN: Your Honor that's — that's got to

12 MR. BROWN: | object to the frame of the 12| be speculation on motives or reasons behind why one would
13| question. 1 don't object to the statement being in. 13| give a statement. Particularly in caontext of an

14 THE COURT: Allright. Fine. 14| after-the-fact statement by the client does not

15 MR. BROWN: And my argument is simply that the 15| necessarily address what he was thinking at the time the

16| statement speaks for itself. And we're going to litigate 16| Miranda Rights were read which was the direct testimony.
17| this later. | don't know. 17 THE COURT: Any respcnse?

18 MR. BERRETT: Yeah. 18 MR. BERRETT: Well I'm not really trying to read

19 MR. BROWN: | object to the relevancy of 19| what's in his mind other than he's voluntarily or he has

20| Dr. Brown being able to address the question posed by the 20| some reason to make these statements.

21| state in the statement. 21 THE COURT: For purposes of this hearing, 1l
22 MR. BERRETT: I'm just going to ask him a couple 22| tetitin. | would not let it in with the jury.

23| of questions -- 23| BY MR. BERRETT: {
24 THE COURT: Okay. 24 Q. Allright. Doctor, could you read that answer? \
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1 A. It's like | — | never (sniffling), did 1 | me up inside and ain't nobody — and ain't nobody | can o7
2 | something wrong, you know, | — that - it - it -- it 2 | go to about it.
3 | was just, like, something that was out of control where 3 | go to my cousin. How that look? He can't —-
4 you — so out of control, like, it's, man, sometimes | go 4 | he wouldn't know what to tell me.
5 | to sleep and | see - | see the same thing happen again 5 Q. And the question by the officer, the third line
& | (sniffling). 6 | up from the bottom, or the third question up.
7 I'm so scared. |den't know what to do. But| 7 "Q. Does -- well, does it feel better that you
8 | just can't run Yo my momma. And tell her that | need 8 | told me about this?
9 | some help because such and such happened. 9 What's his answer?
10 Q. And then the next question again is, okay, and 10 A. As it's coming out, it feel good. | mean, but,
11| then what's his answer? 11| it's, like, | don't think I'm going to get over, blank.
12 A. And that's the only thing that | hurt so bad is 12 Cuz | ain't never did nothing like that. It
13} that right there. 13| wasn't intenticnally for that to happen.
14 Q. Allright. Doctor, do you recall approximately 14 Q. So his expression that to get this off his chest
15| three or four places in his various statements where he 15| feels good. Would you - in your experience with the
16| talked about himself hurting as being a motivating factor 16| defendant, would you concede that that may be a
17| in making this statement. 17| motivating factor, where he would want to talk about what
18 MR. BROWN: Well, your Honor, | would object to 18] had happened?
19| the characterization. 19 MR. BROWN: Judge.
20 THE COURT: Sustained. Sustained. 20} BY MR. BERRETT:
21| BY MR. BERRETT: 21 Q. And he wasn't being coerced?
22 Q. Well iet me go ahead. Turn to page eighteen, if 22 MR. BRCWN: | have to frame the objection the
23| you would, in the middle of the page. 23| form of we don't know the context or the foundation of
24 A. Okay. 24| all these questions. They've been taken one at a time
166 *168
1 Q. Allright. I'm talking about, answer that 1 | out of a body of close to a hundred and fifty pages.
2 | beginning with okay. 2 And we don't know the pre interviews or post
3 A. Here? 3 | interviews nene of that foundation or context has been
4 Q. Yes. If you could read that. 4 | laid and to ask him a guestion about a motivating factor
5 A. Okay. | probably, maybe, said a little 5 | for this defendant or any other defendant without
6 | something to him but, hmm, it's like to me it's hurting 6 | specific knowledge, | think is speculation.
7 | this side. But at the same time | got to be strong about 7 | object on the grounds of speculation.
8|it 8 THE COURT: [l allow the answer in this
9 Q. Question: Right. If you would read the next 9 | proceeding, but | would not allow the answer before the
10, answer? 10| jurors.
11 A. ldon't even really know the context of it: i1 MR. BERRETT: Thank you.
12 But | can't be strong about it because | know my 12 THE WITNESS: Well, | -- | do understand that
13| momma won't want me to lead no life like this. 13| there have been some interrogations that occurred before
14 Q. Okay. if you would turn to page twenty-three 14| anything was taped. And given that that's not available
15| and read the first two lines on that page. 15| for review, | don't know what, kind of, set a lot of this
16 A. !'mup here, you know, when I'm up here, it kind 16| part up.
17| of calm. But at the same time it done calm me. But, you 17 And in the statements that | just read in this
18| know, it hurts so bad it hurts so bad that | did that. 18] last section, this was a document that | did not have
18 Q. 8ir, if you would turn to the last page, page 19 previously. So | don't know the context for these
20| twenty-six. And read the answer on the very top of the 20] particular statements at the present time.
21| page. 21 THE COURT: Then | don't want to hear your
22 A. Biank, it's like | hear, but at the same fime 22| answer.
23| when | hear, it's like I'm scared. And it's like it 23 THE WITNESS: Okay.
24| ain't nobody | can tell about it. It's like, it's eating 24 THE COURT: Thank you.
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BY MR. BERRETT:
Q. Let me go on to the next statement which | have
marked that would be statement number three. Do you have
a copy of that, Doctor?
A, It's labeled number three. | have one dated
Eight Thirteen, Two Thousand, at fifteen hundred hours.
MR. BERRETT: August Thirteenth, Two Thousand,
fifteen hundred hours.
THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Yes.

W 0 ~N GO N =

—
o

17

A. Those are not in the statements.

Q. You're right.

A. And how could they be?

Q. Well, if a person was just threatened and being

interviewed by the police, you don't think that he would
make some sort of statement about that?

A. Of course not.

Q. He didn't make any mention of any police agency
anywhere in any statement; is that correct, that's
transcribed?

22
23
24

BY MR. BERRETT: 1 A. Yes. | already said, yes.
Q. Allright. On page fifteen of that statement, 12 Q. Do you recall in his statement, and this is on
the officer talks to the defendant, Mr. Porter, and 13| page twenty-three, the question by the officer. Did you
says: The statements you've been giving us today and 14| sleep better last night after you talked to us? What was
yesterday, have you been telling us the truth? And his 15 his answer?
answer is: 16 A. Yes, | did.
"A. Yes, | have. 17 Q. Doctor, you're familiar with the allegations in
"Q. Okay. 18| these statements about the defendant hurting, feeling
"A. | would have no reason to lie. 18| some sort of remorse, wanting to talk about what had
"Q. All right. 20| happened, looking for solutions to his problems. Are you
"A. And | would say what | told you in the 21 still maintaining that he did not freely and voluntarily
courtroom. 22| give these statements?
Now, Doclor, that statement from a defendant 23 A. I'm maintaining that based upon the information
who's accused of some very serious crimes that hé would 24| on the test protocol that he did not reasonably
170 172
be willing to say the same stuff in Court, would you say 1 | understand the right to remain silent, number ane.
that that has an atmosphere of coercion? Or is that 2 And number two, if he were, in fact, threatened
freely and voluntarily given? 3 | then they would be involuntary irrespective of whether he
MR. BROWN: Same objection, Judge. Speculation 4 | subjectively felt better after having made some of them.
in context or form. 5 MR. BERRETT: | have no further questions.
THE COURT: Well, ask. If he can answer the ] MR. BROWN: The Court's indulgence
question. Fine. If he cant, he can also tell us that. 7 MR. BERRETT: Just for the record, | think we
THE WITNESS: Well, it depends upon the 8 | moved to admit those three statements exhibit —
circumstances. And that is if you believe his 9 MR. BROWN: No objection.
information that he had been, for example, threatened 10 MR. BERRETT: State’s One, Two, and Three. |
with phone books and threatened with other things prior 11| don't remember what they were marked.
to these statements being taken, then it would be pretty 12 THE COURT: Allright. 1t will be admitted.
hard for me to see any of it as being voluntary. 13 THE COURT CLERK: Three?
THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 14 THE COURT: You may redirect.
BY MR. BERRETT: 15 MR. ABOOD: Yeah, Judge. | have a few
Q. Doctor, you had read these statements in 16| questions. Thank you.
preparation for your testimony here today; is that 17
correct? 18 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
A, I've reviewed them with the exception — 19| BY MR. ABOOD:
Q. Can you show me — 20 Q. Mr. Berrett asked you, Dr. Brown, initially, at '
A. - of number two. 21| what point in time should that test that we've been
Q. — anywhere in any statement he's ever made to 22| talking about be administered; do you recall that?
the police where he claims to be threatened with phone 23 A. Yes, | do.
books or in any other fashion? 24 Q. And | think you'll agree that if you give a test
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1 | like this almost immediately after someone is arrested, 173 1 | him before they turned the tape recorder on; were you? e
2 | you're probably likely to get a more accurate result than 2 A. No. | was not there.

3 | ifyou wait a couple of years tater; is that right? 3 Q. Sovyou don't have any personal knowledge of

4 A.  That's probably true. 4 | whether or not the detectives threatened him physically

5 Q. And the reason that's true is because after a 5 | with beatings with a phone book; do you?

6 | couple of years, a person can learn the right answers to 6 A. Of course not. :
7 | these questions, correct? 7 Q. Youdon't have any personal knowledge as to ;
8 A. Yes, they could. 8 | whether or not these detectives threatened to take him

9 Q. And a couple of years after Justin was arrested, 9 | down to the docks —
10| in fact, he didn't learn the right answers to these 10 MR. BERRETT: Judge, this is all leading

11| questions; did he? 11| questions.

12 A. Notvery well. 12| BY MR. ABOOD:

13 Q. And, again, he failed this test in your view, 13 Q. - and whoop his ass, do you?

14| correct? 14 A. No.

15| A, Yes. ) 15| Q. Soin other words ~

16 Q. Okay. Mr. Berrett also brought out the fact 16 THE COURT: Just a minute.

17| that this concept, this test that's designed to test the 17 MR, BERRETT: Objection, leading questions.

18| concepts of Miranda, doesn't use the exact same wording 18 THE COURT: Correct.

19| as the Miranda Righis card he provided you, correct? 19 MR. ABOQOD: May | proceed?

20 A. That's correct. 20 THE COURT: Yes.
21 Q. AQuestion number one: Does your Miranda card say 21 MR. ABOOD: Thank you.

22| something along the lines of: Having the right to remain 22 THE COURT: But don't lead.
23| silent? 23 MR. ABOCD: Thank you.
24 A. Letme getit. Yes, it does. It's the first 24|
174 176

1 | statement. 1 | BY MR. ABOOD:

2 Q. Okay. And, in fact, this test in question 2 Q. So your opinion —

3 | number one says, you do not have to make a statement and 3 Thank you, Judge. | won't lead.

4 | have the right to remain silent, correct? 4 | BY MR. ABOOD:

5 A. Yes, it does. 5 Q. Is it fair — is it your opinion that he did not

6 Q. 8o, in fact, this question actually gives you & | understand his Miranda Rights? Does that opinion have

7 | more information than that Miranda card, correct? 7 | anything to do with whether or not his — his statement

8 A. Yes, it does, in that. 8 | was given voluntarily?

9 Q. This questionnaire makes it easier to get the g A. No, it does not. That's a separate matter.

10| answer right than that Miranda card, correct? 10 Q. Okay. So let's discuss whether or not his

11 A. Correct. 11| statement was given voluntarily. You simply concluded in
12 Q. Thank you. Whether or not Mr. Porter felt 12| your report that, if what Justin says is true about being

13| better after answering some of these questions, does that 13| threatened with a phone book and being threatened with
14| go to whether or not he knew that he didn't have to 14| getting his ass whooped down cn the docks in Chicago, if '
15| answer these guestions? 15| those things were true, than your feeling was that this

16 A. Those are — in my mind, those are totally 16| statement would not have been veluntary; is that correct?
17! unrelated concepts. 17 A. Exactly.

i8 Q. You were asked of the conditions of the 18 Q. Okay.

19| interrogation of Justin Porter. First of all, you 18| A. |think | mentioned that in cross as well, but

20| weren't there when Justin Porter was interrogated; is 20| exactly.

21] that right? 21 Q. Thank you. Thank you. Thank you very much,
22 A.  Of course not. 22| Doctor.
23 Q. You weren't there when the -- when the 23 THE COURT: Any recross? ;‘
24| detectives did a two and-a-half hour preinterview with 24 MR. BERRETT: Nothing else, Judge. '
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THE COURT: You may step down. Thank you. 1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE ‘
THE WITNESS: Thank you, your Honor. 2 ‘
THE COURT: I'm not going to stay any longer. 3 | STATE OF NEVADA)
MS. LUSAICH: Thank you. 4 | COUNTY OF CLARK)
MR. ABOQD: We'll see you tomorrow. 5 :
MR. BROWN: See you later, Judge. 6 1, PEGGY ISOM, CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTER,
THE COURT: One-thirty, tomorrow. 7 | DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT | TOOK DOWN IN STENOTYPE ALL OF
MR. BROWN: Just for the record, your Honor, at 8 | THE PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE BEFORE-ENTITLED MATTER AT
the request of the state we provided first pages three 9 | THE TIME AND PLACE INDICATED, AND THAT THEREAFTER $SAID
through thirteen. 10| STENOTYPE NOTES WERE TRANSCRIBED INTC TYPEWRITING AT
MS. LUSAICH: Three through sixteen. 11| AND UNDER MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION AND THE
MR. BROWN: Three through sixteen of the manual 12| FOREGOING TRANSCRIPT CONSTITUTES A FULL, TRUE AND.
that we've been referencing for Dr. Bicker's review this 13| ACCURATE RECORD TQ THE BEST OF MY ABILITY OF THE
evening. 14 PROCEEDINGS HAD.
THE COURT: Okay. 15 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | HAVE HEREUNTO SUBSCRIBED
MR. BROWN: And we'll see you tomorrow 16| MY NAME IN MY OFFICE IN THE COUNTY OF CLARK, STATE OF
afternoon. 17| NEVADA.
THE COURT: Thank you. 18
MR. ABOOD: Thank you very much, your Honor. 19
THE COURT: And for the record who is going to 20 %%
pay for that manual? 21 ' '
MS. LUSAICH: Mr. Abood says he's the cne who 22
ever so kindly snatched it and volunteered. 23
MR. ABOOD: My office will take care of that, 24
178

Judge.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
MR. BROWN: Do you have it?
THE COURT: See you tomorrow at one-thirty.

{(WHEREUPON, THE PROCEEDINGS WERE
CONCLUDED)

TR
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA,; WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2007

PROCEEUDTINSGS

THE COURT: What are we dcing on Justin

Porter?

M8, LUZAICH: Good morning, Judge.

MR. BROWN: Good morning, Judge. Curtis
Brown and Joe Abood on Mr. Porter. This was a

continued status check for the resetting cf the
trial date. We're asking for -- actually, if we
could have maybe two weeks or slightly over two
weeks to finish cur discussions about the
negotiations, we can set a trial.

THE COURT: Mr. Brown, I get the feeling
you're always jerking me around.

MR. BROWN: No; I'm requesting, your
Honor. This is a complicated negotiation,
obviously, and Mr. Porter's reluctance -- we've had
many discussions with him.

THE COURT: I can't keep discussing this
all along --

MR. BROWN: The discussions really are
pretty new. For as o0ld as this case is, we've

actually been discussing these negotiations for

about a month.

SONIA L. RILEY, INC. (702) 526-1298
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THE COURT: It's easier for me to try the
darn thing and be done with it.

MR. BROWN: Frankly, it's probably easier
for everybody to try it, except the consequences are
so significant to Mr. Porter, and we talked a lot
about that.

THE COURT: You guys are going to have

to -- what 1s it?
MS. LUZAICH: Part of the problem 1is mine,
I have to admit. All these years I have never made

an offer; it has always been trial only.
THE COURT: It's always your problem every
time you're involved in a case, I can tell you that.
MS. LUZAICH: Thank you, Judge, but I did,
for the first time, make an offer last month, sco

they never had the opportunity to talk to him about

it.
THE COURT: Two weeks,
MR. BROWN: Thank you, Judge.
MR. ABOOD: Whoa, whoa, whoa, your Honor.
THE DEFENDANT: I don't want the deal.
You can keep the deal. Excuse me, your Honor. I'm

ready to proceed with this.
THE COURT: The man wants a trial.

MR. BRCOWN: Set a trial, Judge.

SONIA L. RILEY, INC. (702) 526-1298
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THE DEFENDANT: Excuse me, your Honor. I

want these cases severed, if I can, through my
attorneys, to file moticons, whatever they got tc do.
That's all I'm asking.

THE COURT: What do you mean "severed"?

THE DEFENDANT: I got --

MS. LUZAICH: He murdered one persocon; he
raped seven.

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. Well, you're just
saying --

THE COURT: Wait a minute. Wait. You're
in court.

THE DEFENDANT: Sorry. I apologize, your
Honor. All I'm saying is I would just like the
cases to be severed. I'm tired. I'm ready to get
this over with. What's going to happen gon' happen.
I put my faith in the Lord, and whatever she want to
say, I don't care; I'm just ready to proceed. I'm

tired of being here.

THE COURT: Counsel, what do you want to
do?

MR. BROWN: Well, your Honor, we would --

THE DEFENDANT: I'm ready to proceed.

MR. BROWN: He's ready to proceed,. We've
had discussions. This is the first time he's really

SONIA L. RILEY, INC. (702) 526-1298
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expressed it that severely that he's ready to go.
That's fine; we can set a trial date. The problem
we have with my calendar and Mr. Abood's calendar is
we're not going to be available with the Court's
until June. I have two death penalty cases set now.

THE COURT: I can't continue this case to
June.

ME. BROWN: The problem is if we set it
before then and the other cases continue forward,
we're going to ke asking to continue this case.

THE COURT: How ©ld is this case?

MR. BROWN: This is the first trial
setting.

THE COURT: How long has he been in jail?

THE DEFENDANT: Seven years, your Honor,
and some.

THE COURT: You haven't been in jail on
this case for seven years.

MR. BROWN: Yes, your Honor. You remember
this case, this was McGroarty's. We had two years'
worth of suppression hearings that were ruled on
once he became a senior judge and was retired £from
the bench with some of the scheduling issues, but
ironically, this was the first trial setting that

was vacated last month, so you are setting the

SONIA L. RILEY, INC. (702) 526-1298
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second trial setting.

THE COURT: He's never been convicted of
this stuffr

MR. BROWN: No. He's never been
convicted; he hasn't had an appeal; he's never been
back.

THE COURT: This has been going around for
seven years?

MR. BROWN: Yes.

THE COURT: That's terrible. It looks
like, to me, you would put other stuff aside and try
to get this man's case tried.

MR. BROWN: That's conceivable, but as you
know, there's 50 different counts that are going to
require intensive preparation.

THE COURT: You had seven years to
prepare.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, it's been working
towards other things during that period. For
instance, this was originally a death penalty case.
Through the process, we've had over 20 counts
dismissed through litigation as well as the death
penalty dismissed throughout the process of the
litigation, so we've been progressing forward with

tremendous benefits, but now it's time to set the

SONIA L. RILEY, INC. {702) 526-1298
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trial date. The first offer that was ever offered

that gives Mr. Porter an opportunity to save his
life through a negotiation, he's evaluated it. He's
talked about it, and he's decided he doesn't want
that, and he wants to go to trial, and we can do
that, but from this point forward to be prepared for
trial and to clear other schedules, June is the
earliest I can realistically do it. I don't think
Mr. Porter has a problem waiting that long as long
as we do the trial.

THE COURT: Is that firm date okay with
you?

THE DEFENDANT: You know, right now, your
Honor, I can't really say. I don't know right now.
I got a lot of things on my mind and I'm going
through, and I really can't say myself.

THE COURT: I'm going to give you this
date, but you're going to have to go to trial on
this. State, both of you are going to have to go to
trial. This is ridiculous.

MR. BROWN: Judge, 1if that's the way it
has to go, we're going to have to be ready to go to
trial.

THE COURT: Give them a firm date in June.

I don't want to hear any ifs, ands and excuses about

SONIA L, RILEY, INC. (702) 526-1298
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this.

MS.

stack start?

THE

MS.

criminal trial on May 27th.

THE

1¢:00 a.m.

June 30th --

noe --

June 23rd is the calendar call at 9:00 a.m.

jury trial July 1st at 10:00 a.m,

THE
THE

by hollering,

THE COURT: That's fine. No problem.
THE DEFENDANT: I was a little upset.
(WHEREUPON, THE PROCEEDINGS WERE
CONCLUDED. )

with a calendar call June 23rd --
I'm sorry,

it's the 23rqg,

LUZAICH: When does your criminal
CLERK: It starts June 30th.
LUZAICH: That's correct. I have a

CLERK: Jury trial will be July 1st at
June 30th at 9:00 a.m. --
thank you, your Honor.

with a
COURT: That's a firm date.
DEFENDANT :

I would like to apologize

your Honor.

* % % % *x * * % % *

SONIA L., RILEY,

INC. (702) 526-1298
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
STATE OF NEVADA)

188
COUNTY OF CLARK}

I, SONIA L. RILEY, CERTIFIED COURT
REPORTER, DC HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I TOOK DOWN IN
STENOTYPE ALL OF THE PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE
BEFORE-ENTITLED MATTER AT THE TIME AND PLACE
INDICATED, AND THAT THEREAFTER SAID STENOTYPE NOTES
WERE TRANSCRIBED INTO TYPEWRITING AT AND UNDER MY
DIRECTION AND SUPERVISIOCN AND THE FOREGOING
TRANSCRIPT CONSTITUTES A FULL, TRUE AND ACCURATE
RECORD TO THE BEST OF MY ABILITY OF THE PROCEEDINGS
HAD.

IN WITNESS WHERECF, I HAVE HEREUNTO
SUBSCRIBED MY NAME IN MY OFFICE IN THE COQUNTY OF

CLARK, STATE OF NEVADA.

Yicy

SONIA L. RILEY, @é; 727

SONIA L. RILEY, INC. (702) 526-1298
10
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PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER i l L E D
NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 : 408 ¥y
(702) 435-4685 5 A gqys.
Attorney for Defendant -
C oY
N4 2
CLERK 5= T
DISTRICT COURT U™ e COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. C174954X
)
V. ) DEPT. NO. VIII
)
JUSTIN JUG CAPRI PORTER, ) DATE: May 28, 2008
' ) TIME: 9:00 am.
Defendant. )
)

MOTION TO SEVER COUNTS XXX, XXXI, XXXII CHARGING MURDER AND
RELATED CRIMES AGAINST GYALTSO LUNGTOK, FROM THE REMAINING
COUNTS IN THE SECOND AMENDED INFORMATION

COMES NOW, the Defendant, JUSTIN JUG CAPRI PORTER, by and through CURTIS
S. BROWN and JOSEPH K. ABOOD, Deputy Public Defenders and files this Motion to Sever
Counts XXX, XXI, XXXII Charging Murder and Related Crimes Against Gyaltso Lungtok, from
the Remaining Counts in the Second Amended Information.

This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the

Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and oral argument at the time of hearing on this matter.

DATED this \\2__day of May, 2008.

PUBLIC DEFENDER
SS.BR , #4546
Deputy Public Dgfender
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

FACTS

Defendant JUSTIN D. PORTER (date of birth: December 13, 1982) is charged by way of a
Second Amended Information, filed October 11, 2001, with a number of crimes involving a
number of different victims.

On February 1, 2000, Teresa Tyler became the victim of a series of crimes which make up
the basis of Counts [ through VII of the Second Amended Information. A crime report was taken
for this incident under Event Number 000201-2429. Investigation revealed that a black male
known to Ms. Tyler as Chris “came to the apartment produced a small black knife directed her into
the bedroom and ordered her to remover her clothes.” This suspect then allegedly forced Ms.
Tyler to engage in various sexual acts with him and stole some of her money.

The Second Amended Information charges MR. PORTER with the following crimeé based
on the above allegations:

1. Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapan.

I1. First Degree Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

IMI.  Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

IV.  Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

V. Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

VI, Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

VII .- Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

On March 7, 2000, Leona Case reported that she had been that victim of a series of crimes.
A crime report was taken under Event Number 000307-0141. Investigation revealed that a black
male knocked on her door and asked her to use the telephone. She refused. A few minutes later

the suspect allegedly kicked in her front door, entered her apartment and began striking her in the
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face demanding cash and valuables. He took Forty-four Dollars ($44.00) and a ring belonging to
Ms. Case. He then allegedly forced her to undress by threatening her with a pair of scissors.
Sexually assaulted her and then attempted to strangl; her with an electrical cord. Ms. Case was
then stabbed with a kitchen knife. She was then barricaded inside of her bathroom and her
apartment was set on fire.

The Second Amended Information charges Mr. Porter with the following crimes based on
the above allegations:

VIII. Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon.

IX. * First Degree Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon With Substantial Bodily

Harm.

X. ° Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon With Substantial Bodily Harm.

X1. 7 Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

XII.  Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly With Substantial Bodily Harm

XIII.  Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon. | |

XIV. First Degree Arson.

On March 25, 2000, Ms. Ramona Leyva reported a series of crimes under Event Number
000325-2971. Investigation revealed that a black male kicked in her door while she was in the
bathroom. He grabbed Ms. Leyva by the back of the hair and dragged her into the main living |
area. He then retrieved a kitchen knife from her kitchen and threatened to kill her. Placed her Ol‘\l
her bed and sexually assaulted her. He then took her vehicle keys and departed in her vehicle;.

The Second Amended Information charges Mr. Porter with the following crimes based on
the above allegations: |

XV. Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon.

XVI. First Degree Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon.
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XVII. Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

XVIII. Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

On April 4, 2000, Ms. Marlene Livingston reported a series of crimes under Event Number
000404-0324. Investigation revealed that a black male kicked in her apartment door and entered
with a knife in his hand. He took money and other valuables from Ms. Livingston and forced her
to perform fellatio on him. He then filed in Ms. Livingston’s vehicle.

Counts XIX through XXI charge crimes against Marlene Livingston:

XIX. Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon.

XX." Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon Victim 65 Year of Age or Older.

XXI‘.. Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon Victim 65 Years of Age or Older.

On April 12, 2000, Francis and Clarence Rumbaugh reported crimes under Event Num!ber
000412-2745. Investigation revealed that a black male entered the Rumbaugh’s apartment :thl‘Ol.:lgh
an unlocked screen door pushing Mr. Rumbaugh to the ground. He then cut the telephone cord in
the kitchenj' area with a knife he retrieved from the Rumbaugh’s kitchen. The suspect then
allegedly searched through the apartment and took Eighty Dollars ($80.00) from Mr. Rumbaugh.

Counts XXII through XIV charge crimes against Clarence and/or Francis Rumbaugh:;

XXII. Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon.

XXIII. Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon Victim 65 Years of Age or Older.

XXI\:/. Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon Victim 65 Years of Age or Older.

On J :une 6, 2000, Mr. Leroy Fowler became the victim of a home invasion. A crime report
for this incident was taken under Event Number 000606-0165. Investigation revealed that a bléck
male kicked in Mr. Fowler’s apartment door holding a knife. Mr. Fowler began screaming at the

suspect causing him to run out of the apartment.
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Count XXV charges a crime against Leroy Fowler:

XXV. Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon.

On June 7, 2000, Ms. Joannie Hall reported a series of crimes under Event Number
000607-0313. Investigation revealed that a black male kicked in her apartment door and
confronted Ms. Hall in her bedroom. He was holding a knife in his right hand and directed her
around the apartment. He then performed various sex acts with her and stole a number of items
from her apartment,

These crimes make up the basis of Counts XXVI through XXIX of the Second Amended
Information.

Counts XXVI through XXIX charge crimes against Joannie Hall:

XXVI. Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon.
XXVIL First Degree Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon.
XX\}III. Sexual Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon,

XXIX. Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

Detective M. Castaneda prepared an Application and Affidavit for a Search Warrant on
August ll," 2000, wherein he states that “through the numerous similarities between the
aforementioned incidents it was apparent that a crime series had developed with one lone suspect
as the perpetrator of the listed crimes.” This series of crimes was even given a moniker of

“Downtown Area Command Series” and a number of different detectives from within Metro were

assigned to it. These detectives were from both the Robbery and Sexual Assault Details. They
noticed similarities between all these crimes in the “series” including time of attacks, geography,

residence types targeted, and escalating confrontation with any males the perpetrator encountered.

These facts were noted prior to any mention of crimes against Gyaltso Lungtok or Laura or Beatriz
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Zazueta, or Guadalupe Lopez appeared in that application even though those crimes had already
occurred.

On June 13, 2000, Detective Love was in the area of 209 North 18"™ Street conducting a
surveillance program designed to spot any black males who fit the description given by the above
mentioned victims. She spotted Defendant JUSTIN PORTER loitering in the area at about 0330
hours. She believed he matched the description given. He later submitted fo a buccal swab. On
August 10, 2000, she was informed by Criminalist Dave Welch that the DNA profile of PORTER
matched the DNA evidence collected from victims, Tyler and Leyva. Detective Castaneda states
in his application that “based upon the circumstances and similarities of the other listed incidents,
this shows PORTER to be responsible for those crimes as well.

That assessment did not include the following crimes, which were not referenced at all
in his application.

On June 9, 2000, Guadalupe Lopez, Laura Zazueta and Beatriz Zazueta were the victims of
a series of crimes charged in Counts XXXIII through XXXVIII of the Second Amended
Information. These crimes were reported under Event Number 000609-0140. They allege that a
black male entered their residence through an unlocked front door in the middle of the night and
demanded money from Laura Zazueta. She directed the suspect to her sister’s room, Beatriz and
her boyfriend Guadalupe Lopez. Guadalupe Lopez grabbed at the suspect’s gun and a struggle
ensued. The suspect fired three shots and Lopez was slightly injured. The suspect then broke free
and jumped out the front window.

Counts XXXIII and XXXVIII charge crimes against Laura Zazueta, Guadalupe Lopez

and/or Beatriz Zazueta:

XXXIIIL Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon.
XXXIV. Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon.
6
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XXXV. Attempt Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

XXXVL Attempt Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

XXXVII. Attempt Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

XXXVIIL Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon.

On June 10, 2000, Metro responded to a homicide at 415 South Tenth Street. The victim,
Gyaltso Lungtok was found dead in his apartment having been shot numerous times. The front
door of the apartment had been kicked in and a footwear impression revealed that the shoe brand
name was Saucony. Forensic Laboratory Manager Richard Goode determined that the firearm
used on Juﬁe 9, 2000, against Guadalupe Lopez was the same as that used against Gyaitso
Lungtok.

Coutits XXX through XXXII charge crimes against Gyaltso Lungtok:

xx5<. Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon.
XX)|(I. Attempt Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon. o
XXXIL Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon. (Open Murder).

Detective James La Rochelle completed an Application and Affidavit for Search Warrant
on the 11" &ay of August, 2000. In that Affidavit and Application on page 5 he states, “the sexual
assault crime series in which Justin Porter was developed as a suspect Had a numerous factbré in
common with the robbery investigation and the homicide investigation. The physical description
in the robb:éry matches the crime series and Justin Porter. The location of the robbery and
homicide oc-cur within the downtown area command and their time of occurrence both correspond

with the crime series. The modus operandi of the crimes have strong similarities such as forced
J '

entry specifically door kicks, use of weapon, propensity of violence, dress of suspect and the

choice of targets.”
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ARGUMENT
NRS 173.115 Joinder of Offenses reads:

Two or more offenses may be charged in the same indictment or information in a
separate count for each offense if the offenses charged, whether felonies or
misdemeanors or both, are:

1. Based on the same act or transaction; or
2. Based on two or more acts or transactions connected
fogether or constituting parts of a common scheme or plan.

NRS 174.165 Relief From Prejudicial Joinder, reads:

1. If it appears that a defendant or the State of Nevada is prejudiced
by a joinder of offenses or of defendants in an indictment or
information, or by such joinder for trial together, the court may
order an election or separate trials of counts, grant a severance of
defendants or provide whatever other relief justice requires.

2. In ruling on a motion by a defendant for severance the court may
order the district attorney to deliver to the court for inspection in
chambers any statements or confessions made by the defendants
whom the state intends to introduce in evidence at the trial.

The defense respectfully requests that this Honorable Court sever Counts XXX through
XXXII which charge Defendant with crimes, including murder, against Gyaltso Lungtok.
Although these charges are properly joined with all the other charges against Mr. Porter in the
Second Amended Information, we move that they be severed for trial because Mr, Porter will be
prejudiced by trying them together. There is strong DNA evidence which links Mr. Porter to a
number of the other charges in the Information, as well as eyewitness identification. In contrast,
little evidence exists which implicates Mr. Porter to the murder and related crimes against Gyaltso
Lungtok, absent his own admissions. As this Court undoubtedly knows, the more a Defendant is
charged with, the worse he looks. Jurors tend to operate on the principle that where there is
smoke, there is fire. The concern of the defense is that the DNA, fingerprint, eyewitness evidence

of the other counts in this case is not applicable to the murder case. However, the jury will

naturally believe that if they think Mr. Porter is guilty of those crimes, he must be guilty of the
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homicide as well, since it occurred in the same area and in the same time span as the other crimes.
In addition, the State is relying on their belief that as these offenses in the “Downtown Area
Command Series” continued, the perpetrator became increasingly more violent and
confrontational, particularly with males he encountered. Therefore, it’s logical to assume that
what began as mere home invasions (burglaries, robberies and sexual assaults) escalated to
attempted murder of Guadalupe Lopez, and culminated in the actual murder of Gyaltso Lungtok.

In Rodriguez v. State, 1217 Nev. Adv. Op. No. 66; 32P.3d 773 (2001), the Court ruled that

severance should be granted when there is a serious risk that ... the jury may not make a reliable
judgment about guilt or innocence. In Floyd v. State, 118 Nev. Adv. Op. No. 17; 92 P.3d 249
(2002), the Court stated that even if joinder is permissible under NRS 173.115, a trial court should
sever the offenses if the joinder is “unfairly prejudicial.” NRS 174.165(1) provides that if a
defendant is prejudiced by joinder of offenses, the district court may order separate trials of counts.
In that case, the defense moved to sever the counts relating to crimes which occurred at his
apartment from those relating to the multiple killings at the Albertsons supermarket fifteen minutes
later. The Supreme Court agreed with the district court that severance was not warranted because
“.... The acts charged were at the very least connected together. The crimes at the supermarket
began only about fifteen minutes after the crimes at the apartment ended, and Floyd used the same
shotgun in committing both sets of crimes. Moreover, his actions and statements in committing
the crimes at this apartment were particularly relevant to the question or premeditation and
deliberation regarding the murders at the supermarket. Likewise, Floyd’s actions and demeanor
and possession of the shotgun at the supermarket corroborated the testimony of the sexual a-ssault
victim and would have been relevant, at a separate trial, to prove more than just Floyd’s character.

Thus the evidence of the two sets of crimes was- cross admissible.”” The Floyd court also
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considered a Montana Supreme Court case, State v. Campbell, 189 Mont. 107, 615 P.2d 190

(Mont. 1980) regarding the types of prejudice that can result from joinder of charges:

The first kind of prejudice results when the jury considers a person facing
multiple charges to be a bad man and tends to accumulate evidence
against him until it finds him guilty of something. The second type of
prejudice manifests itself when proof of guilt on the first count in an
Information is used to convict the defendant of a second count even
though the proof would be inadmissible at a separate trial on the second
count. The third kind of prejudice occurs when the defendant wishes to
testify on his own behalf on one charge but not on another.

The Nevada Supreme Court ruled in Floyd that the defense failed to show that he was
unfairly prejudiced by the joinder of charges. “The evidence of the burglary, murders, and
attempted murder was overwhelming. The evidence of the kidnapping and sexual assauits was
substantial and uncontradicted. He has not shown that the jury improperly accumulated evidence
against him, that it used the proof of one count improperly to convict him of another count, or that
the joinder prevented him from testifying on any charges. Thus, the district court did not err in
denying Floyd’s motion to sever the charges”.

In contrast, in the case before your Honor, the evidence of murder and related crimes
involving Gyaltso Lungtok is far from overwhelming, substantial or uncontradicted. That case is
supported by little more than Defendant’s admissions. In contrast, the evidence of the other counts
in the Information is substantial. There is no question that the jury’s resolve that Mr. Porter did
commit those crimes, and is therefore a bad person, will taint his defense to the most serious crime

of all, murder.

Mitchell v. Nevada, 105 Nev. 735; 782 P.2d 1340 1989), involved two separate victims

charged in the same Information. The defendant was charged with grand larceny and sexual
assault of Mary Beth Petz, and sexual assault and murder of Jacqueline Brown. The two incidents
were not connected except for the fact that the defendant took both victims dancing and drinking at

the same bar, and is alleged to have sexually assaulted both women. The Court ruled that the

10
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defenses contention that it was error for the District Court to deny the defense’s motion to sever
the counts had merit. The Court stated:

NRS 173.115 permits joinder of criminal counts only if the counts are
based on the same transaction or constitute part of a common scheme or
plan. Being 45 days apart, these separate incidents cannot be considered
part of the same transaction. Nor can taking two different women dancing
and alter attempting intercourse be considered part of a common plan just
because the women are taken in part to the same bar. See, Nester v. State
of Nevada, 75 Nev. 41; 334 P.2d 523 (1959). If, however, evidence of one
charge would be cross-admissible in evidence at a separate trial on
another charge, then both charges may be tried together and need not be
severed. Robinson v. United States, 459 F.2d 847, 855 (D.C. Cir. 1972).
Here, the District Court denied the motion for severance on the basis that
evidence of the Petz counts would have been cross-admissible at a
separate trial on the counts of murder and sexual assault of Brown.

Evidence of prior bad acts such as Mitchell’s acts involving Petz is
admissible only if: (1) the prior acts are relevant to the crime charged
because they show motive, intent or another material element listed in
NRS 48.045(2); (2) the prior acts are proved by clear and convincing
evidence; and (3) the prior acts are more probative than prejudicial.
Berner v. State, 104 Nev. 695; 765 P.2d 1144 (1988); NRS 48.045(2).
Here, evidence of the prior alleged sexual assault if Petz was marginal.
Because she was drunk or tired, Petz did not even remember having sex
with Mitchell. Even assuming that prior incident was relevant under NRS
48-.045(2), under these circumstances the trial judge erred in concluding
that the alleged sexual assault of Petz was proved by clear and convincing
evidence. In deed, the district court advised the jury against a guilty
verdict on this count due to the paucity of evidence of lack of consent.
Under Berner, then, evidence of the sexual assault of Petz was not cross-
admissible as to the counts involving Brown, and the district court erred
by denying the motion to sever the counts.

The United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit in Bean v. Calderon, 163 F.3d

1073 (1998) had occasion to review facts similar to those presented in Mr. Porter’s case, In that
case, the defendant was convicted of first degree murder, robbery and burglary. The charges
stemmed from two different incidents/victims that were consolidated for trial. The facts of those
tow separate crimes are as follows;

On June 26, 1980, George Schatz awoke to two young black males in his

mobile home. One of the men ordered him to lie back down on the bed.
He realized his wife was not in the bed with him. He eventually lost

11

- AA 0117




[, T N VS B\

N=R - e -

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

consciousness. When he regained consciousness, he found his wife lying
on the floor naked, and dead. He called police and realized for the first
time he had been seriously injured. A number of items were missing from
his home. After examining the crime scene, police found “strong
indicators™ that shoes owned by the defendant had made shoe prints in the
flower bed. In addition, a fingerprint and palm print linked the defendant
to the crimes.

On June 29, 1980, Eileen Fox was found dead in her residence. Police
found a pair of her eyeglasses lying next to her body. She had been beaten
to death. At trial, the State of California presented evidence of
fingerprints recovered from Fox’s sunglasses. Prosecution experts
identified the print as matching the third finger of Bean’s left hand. The
defense experts refuted that opinion, and all experis agreed that the print
was a composite of several overlaid prints.

The Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit stated:

After careful examination of the record, we conclude that joinder of the
Schatz and Fox indictments deprived Bean of a fundamentally fair trial on
the Fox charges. Consolidation of the relatively weak Fox cast with the
compelling Schatz charges in a single trial violated Bean’s right to due
process by leading the jury to infer criminal propensity.  This
impermissible inference, in turn, allowed the jury to rely upon the Schatz
evidence to strengthen the otherwise weak case against him for the Fox
offenses. Because the joinder was constitutionally impermissible, we
reverse Bean’s conviction of the Fox charges.

CONCLUSION

The evidence against Mr. Porter concerning Counts XXX, XXI and XXII is substantially

weaker than the evidence supporting the remaining counts in the Second Amended Information.

That fact will deny Mr. Porter a fair trial concerning the murder and related allegations.

Consolidating the relatively weak murder case with the remaining charges in this case which are

supported by compelling evidence will violate Mr. Porter’s right to due process by leading the jury

to conclude that if they believe Mr. Porter is guilty of the crime series of burglary, robbery and

i
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sexual assault, he must be guilty of the murder and related crimes against Gyaltso Lungtok. The

defense strongly asserts that this joinder is constitutionally impermissible.

DATED this _\“ day of May, 2008.

PHILIP J. KO
CLARK C TY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By P //%('F\
ng. BROWN, ¥4546
Cputy Publi €nder
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NOTICE OF MOTION

TO: CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Piaintiff:

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Public Defender’s Office will bring the

above and foregoing Motion on for hearing before the Court on the 28" day of May, 2008, at 9:00

a.m.,,
DATED this S“_-‘: day of May, 2008.
PHILIP J. KO PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK C TY PUBLIC DEFENDER CL COUN UBLI

EFENDER

RECEIPT OF COPY

RECEIPT OF COPY of the above and foregoing Motion to Sever Counts XXX, XXXI,

XXXII Charging Murder and Related Crimes Against Gyaltso Lungtok, from

the Remaining

Counts in the Second Amended Information is hereby acknowledged this |6 day of May, 2008,

CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

9
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Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #002781 Co

LISA LUZAICH T F ‘ LE D
Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #005056 g 3 it !
200 Lewis Avenue Ju 3 3

Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500 S
Attorney for Plaintiff il

L Gitely
CLERK CF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintift, )
)
-V§- )

) Case No. C174954

JUSTIN JUG CAPRI PORTER, ) Dept No. VIII

#1682627 )
)]
Defendant. %
)

ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO SEVER COUNTS XXX, XXXI,
XXXII CHARGING MURDER AND RELATED CRIMES AGAINST GYALTSO
LUNGTOK, FROM THE REMAIIII\I\]};I(\)IQA%S%”{\]S IN THE SECOND AMENDED

DATE OF HEARING: 06/18/08
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the
18th day of June, 2008, the Defendant being present, represented by CURTIS BROWN and
JOSEPH ABOOD, Deputy Public Defenders, the Plaintiff being represented by DAVID
ROGER, District Attorney, through LISA LUZAICH, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and

the Court having heard the arguments of counsel and good cause appearing therefor,

)
8

PAWPDOCS\ORDRVFORDRW 1301390103 doc
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant's above-entitled motion, shall be, and
it is granted.

DATED this__Z day of Jie, 2008.
1

ISTRICT oy

P

DAVID ROGER

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

LISA LUZAICH )
Chief Deputy Districl Attorney
Nevada Bar #005056

mmw/SVU

PAWPDCCS\ORDR\FORDRW1340139¢103.doc
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ark County District Attorney = .
Nevada Bar #002781 ngy b 9 a0
LISA LUZAICH B -,
Chief Deputy District Attorney S
Nevada Bar #005056 (f// PR or
200 Lewis Avenue < oF TUE ¢ Rl
Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212 CLERR
(702) 671-2500
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

_VS_
Case No. C174954
JUSTIN D. PORTER, Dept No. VIII

#1682627

Defendant.

R T S e

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO REMAND TO JUVENILE COURT

DATE OF HEARING: 10/13/08
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the
13th day of October, 2008, the Defendant not being present, REPRESENTED BY JOSEPH
ABOOD, Deputy Public Defender, the Plaintiff being represented by DAVID ROGER.
District Attorney, through LISA LUZAICH, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and the Court
having heard the arguments of counsel and having been under advisement and the Court
make a decision on the 15th day of October, 2008, and good cause appearing therefore,

/
/"
/

RECEIVE®D
NOV 0 6 2008
CLEHK UF THe COUR

PAWPDOCS\ORDRYFORDRYG13¥01390105 . doc
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IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant's Motion to Remand to Juvenile
Court, shall be, and it is denied.

Mov
DATED this < day of OetGber, 2008.

Y —

DISTRICT JUDGE, —

éﬂl bfon. Lo Lyt

DAVID ROGER

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

LISALUZAICH (UJ
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005056

mmw/SVU

PAWPDOCSIORDRWFORDRYG 1301390105 doc
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Electronically Filed

04/30/2009 01:13:32 PM

AINF &‘/{ 48:’
DAVID ROGER /"“‘/

Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #002781

LISA LUZAICH

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #005056

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, )
)
-Vs§- ) Case No. C174954
) Dept No. VI
JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka Jug Capri )
Porter, )
#1682627 )
% THIRD AMENDED
Detfendant. % INFORMATION
STATE OF NEVADA
SS.
COUNTY OF CLARK

DAVID ROGER, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka Jug Capri Porter, the Defendant(s) above named,
having committed the crimes of BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY
WEAPON (Felony - NRS 205.060, 193.165); ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON (Felony - NRS 193.330, 200.380, 193.165) and MURDER WITH
USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER) (Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030,
193.165), on or about the &8th day of June, 2000, within the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided,

and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,
//

CAPROGRAM FILES'\NEEVIA.COM\DOCUMENT CONVERTERVTEMP\577600-650727.DOC
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COUNT 1 - BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter, while in possession of a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a gun, with intent to commit larceny, and/or robbery and/or any
other felony, that certain building occupied by GYALTSO LUNGTOK, located at 415 South
10th Street, Apartment No. H therein, Las Vegas, Nevada, Clark County, Nevada.

COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt to take personal
property, to-wit: lawful money of the United States and/or jewelry and/or any other property
of GYALTSO LUNGTOK, from the person of GYALTSO LUNGTOK, or in his presence,
by means of force or violence or fear of injury to, and without the consent and against the
will of the said GYALTSO LUNGTOK, said defendant using a deadly weapon, to-wit: a
gun, during the commission of said crime.

COUNT 3 - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN MURDER)

did then and there wilfully, feloniously, without authority of law, and with
premeditation and deliberation and malice aforethought, kill GYALTSO LUNGTOK, a
human being, by shooting at and into the body of the said GYALTSO LUNGTOK with use
of a deadly weapon, to-wit: a gun, the defendant being responsible under one or more of the
following theories of criminal liability, to-wit: 1) Premeditation and deliberation: by the
defendant directly committing said felony offense as the perpetrator, and/or 2) Felony
murder: by the defendant committing said felony offense during the perpetration or

attempted perpetration of the crime(s) of burglary and/or robbery.

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

BY /s//LISA LUZAICH

LISA LUZAICH
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005056
DA#00F13901 X/mmw/SVU
LVMPD EV#0006101143
(TK6)
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FILED IN OPEN COURT
VER MAY - 8 2008 4/iocfi7)

EDWARDA. FRIEQLAND

DISTRICT COURT ORTHE#PUR
DEPUTY
CLLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
' KEITH REED
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, Case No. C174954
-Vs- Dept No. VI
JUSTIN D. PORTER,
Defendant. §
VERDICT

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JUSTIN D. PORTER, as follows:
COUNT 1 - BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM
(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

D Guilty of Burglary while in Possession of a Firearm
B Not Guilty

COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
|:] Attempt Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon
[:I Attempt Robbery

B Not Guilty

"
"
i
1
1

i
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COUNT 3 - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
D Guilty of First Degree Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon
EI Guilty of First Degree Murder

Guilty of Second Degree Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon
[ ] Guilty of Second Degree Murder
D Not Guilty

DATED this g —day of May, 2009
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THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

VS,

JUSTIN D. PORTER,

Defendant.

FiLgp *°
DEC 2 9 2009

ORIGHHAL Bt

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO. C174954
DEPT. Vi

o ol L)

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELISSA F. CADISH, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

APPEARANCES:

For the State:

For the Defendant:

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
SENTENCING

ELISSA LUZAICH, ESQ.
Chief Deputy District Attorney

CURTIS S. BROWN, ESQ.
JOSEPH K. ABOGD, ESQ.
Deputy Public Defenders

RECORDED BY: JESSICA RAMIREZ, COURT RECORDER

RECEIVED
DEC 2 9 2008

CLERK OF THE COURT
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Wednesday, September 30, 2009 at 2:40 a.m.

THE MARSHAL: Top of page 6, State of Nevada v. Porter, Justin D.

MR. ABOOD: Good morning, Your Honor.

MR. BROWN: Good morning, Judge.

THE COURT: Good morning.

MR. BROWN: Curtis Brown and Joseph Abood on behalf of Mr. Porter.

MS. LUZAICH: And for the record, Lisa Luzaich for the State.

THE COURT: OQOkay. All right. We finally got a PSI.

MR. ABOGD: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. This is the time set for entry of judgment and
imposition of sentence. |s there any legal cause or reason why judgment
should not be entered at this time?

MR. ABOOD: No, Your Honor. -

THE COURT: All right. So, by virtue of the jury’s verdict in this case, |
hereby adjudicate you guilty of second degree murder with use of a deadly
weapon, a felony.

State.

MS. LUZAICH: Judge, the Court heard the trial, so I'm not gonna
reiterate the facts. The Court has a decision between 10 to life and 10 to 25
with an equal and consecutive for the weapon. | would ask the Court to
sentence him to the 10 to life with an equal and consecutive 10 to life.

I would submit to the Court that when the legislature gave the
option of an alternative sentence at 10 to 25 they were considering more the

kind of person who commits one offense, and doesn’t have anything else in the

2.
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system, and is somebody who is potentially redeemable, or -- as opposed to
somebody who goes in and intentionally shoots a monk -- or retired, sorry,
monk, -- over money.

So, the Court obviously hasn’t heard the rest of the facts situation.
But, the Court’s aware that there are still basicaily ten other doors that he
kicked in and either sexually assaulted or robbed somebody therein. There’s
DNA, and prints, and this, that, and the other thing connecting him to lots of
them. So, I'd submit that the 10 to life is the appropriate sentence, and that's
what | would ask the Court to do, with an equal and consecutive for the gun.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Porter is there anything you’d like to tell me
today?

THE DEFENDANT: Upon the advice of my attorney, | have no statements
concerning this matter. But, | do have something to say concerning what the
DA is saying.

MR. BROWN: No, you -- no.

THE DEFENDANT: No, ves, | do.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: When it comes to sentencing me today. On all the
things she says you'll see when the next trial comes about how it really plays
out. So, when she comes about saying what she's saying, just leave that for
the next jury.

And all | have to say, Your Honor, when you sentence me today,
don’t sentence me because of what she wants you to give me or what my
attorney don’t want you to give me, but what you feel | should have.

And you already know | did nine years in here. You know, what
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furthermore do | have to say is nothing. But, just take into consideration | did
do nine years. | was 17 at the time that | got into whatever they say | got into,
coming and being incarceration. Now, I'm 26 years old. So, regardless of the
fact of whatever, sitting in this County jail is stressful. So, | ask you to
sentence me to what you want, not what they want, but what you feel |
should have.

My family’s not here. They didn’t know | was supposed to get
sentenced today. And | wish they would have been here. And that’s all | have
to say.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Counsel.

MR. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor. And you recall that Mr. Porter’s
family was here throughout the trial. And they are, and do continue to be,
supportive but when the matter got continued the communication break down
occurred.

And just kind of finishing out what Mr. Porter was saying. There’s
not a long lengthy argument to be made here. You sat through the whole trial.
You heard everything that happened. | would submit that what Ms. Luzaich
represented to Your Honor as to what Mr. Porter did in that apartment is not
what the jury concluded. They did not conclude he went in there to get
money, otherwise they would have clearly convicted him of first degree murder
under a felony murder theory. They did not come to that conclusion.

You do have only two choices. And the two choices are the 20
basically with the weapon. It's either a life tail or it’s a term of years tail. And

let’s not forget that the term of years we're talking about is pretty significant.

4
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It's 50 years. So, it's a 10 to 25 and an equal and consecutive 10 to 25.

And I’'m asking Your Honor to, similar to what Mr. Porter said, to
evaluate it based on this case. He does have other pending matters and they
are before Your Honor. So, at the conclusion of those trials, which you would
handle the sentencing upon a conviction if there is any, you can do what you
want. | mean, if it's a life sentence you want, you're going to have that
discretion at that time. If it's longer than a life sentence, if it's two, three, or
four lifes, you're going to have the discretion again at that time. And so |
would just ask you today to consider the term of years so that there is a back
end time that Mr. Porter can look forward to if the trial doesn’t play out the
way that the State’s alleging that it will.

| only have one other comment, Judge, and that’s on the credit for
time served. Miraculously they came pretty close. The only problem that we
have is that P&P did not account for the time that Mr. Porter was actually
arrested in Chicago. So there were | think 8 additional days for that, plus the 2
days that we’'ve continued for now -- from Monday rather, from what the PSI
says. So, | have the total days 3,338 total days. He was arrested on August
11" of 2000 in Chicago, and they only count the time once he got brought
back here and booked into CCDC.

MS. LUZAICH: | don’t have any objection to that.

MR. BROWN: And I’d submit it on that, Judge, unless Your Honor has
any specific questions.

THE COURT: | will impose an Administrative Assessment Fee of $25,
DNA Analysis Fee of $150, Extradition Fees of $2,421.50. | will sentence the

Defendant to life with the possibility of parole after 120 months, plus an equal
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and consecutive term of life with the possibility of parole after 120 months,
with 3,338 days credit for time served, and order restitution of $425.
Do you want to talk about a trial date or --

MR. BROWN: We’'ve been working on that, Your Honor. And one would
think considering the time we’ve had we’d actually be able to come to some
easy resolution, but we haven’t. The problem we’ve come up with is the date
that works best for all of us, the four attorneys; I'm not sure works for the
Court, and that would be June of next year. As | understand that might be
actually your civil stack.

THE COURT: My civil, yeah, until June 28" is when my criminal starts up
again.

MR. BROWN: If -- you know, and | hate to ask for this, but maybe a
week or two weeks so that we could see if maybe there's a possibility of
moving other cases. Because that’s where we’re at, short of moving into, you
know, October or so of next year, is perhaps trying to -- and we may not be
able to do that. But, | understand that we both have cases we might be able to
look into and maybe shuffle something around.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. So, let’s set it a couple weeks out for trial
setting.

THE CLERK: Yes, Your Honor. October 14", 8:30.

MS. LUZAICH: Thank you.

MR. BROWN: And just again, Judge, and we’ll check with your Clerk or
your JEA on available times. We anticipate safely about 4 weeks for this. |
mean, it --

THE COURT: Yeah.
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MR. BROWN: -- it theoretically could be a little longer. But, | think we
probably would be able to trim it down to about 4 weeks. But, | don’t think it
would be wise to set for anything -- counting on anything less than that.

MS. LUZAICH: | do agree that | don’t think it would be a day less than 4
weeks.

THE COURT: Okay. So, | will work on my end and see what -- | mean
obviously I've got -- | don’t have a lot set in that timeframe on my calendar.
But, if that’s really going to be when we go, I'll have to work on what I'm
going to do with the other cases that otherwise get set there,

MR. BROWN: Thank you very much, Your Honor.

MS. LUZAICH: Thank you.

[Proceeding concluded at 9:48 a.m.]

ATTEST: 1 do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the audio/video
proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.

Q,M\a;@ (Qawum/

agsica Ramirez
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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FILED
OCT 13 2009

St

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
CASE NO. C174954
"VS'
DEPT. NO. VI
JUSTIN D. PORTER
aka Jug Capri Porter
#1682627
Defendant.
JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION

(JURY TRIAL)

The Defendant previously entered a plea of not guilty to the crimes of COUNT 1
- BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony)
in violation of NRS 205.060, 193.165, COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE
OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 193.330, 200.380,
193.165, COUNT 3 — MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (OPEN
MURDER) (Category A Felony) in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165; and the
matter having been tried before a jury and the Defendant having been found guilty of
the crime of COUNT 3 — SECOND DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY

WEAPON (Category A Felony) in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165;

.
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1 || thereafter, on the 30™ day of September, 2009, the Defendant was present in court for
sentencing with his counsel JOSEPH A. ABOOD, Deputy Special Public Defender and
CURTIS BROWN, Deputy Special Public Defender, and good cause appearing,

5 THE DEFENDANT |S HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of said crime as set forth in

6 || the jury’s verdict and, in addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee, |
$150.00 DNA Analysis Fee including testing to determine genetic markers, $425.00
Resstitution and $2,421.50 Extradition Costs, the Defendant is SENTENCED as follows:
0 TO LIFE with a MINIMUM parole eligibility after ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120)

11 || MONTHS plus a CONSECUTIVE term of LIFE with a MINIMUM parole eligibility after
12 || ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120) MONTHS in the Nevada Department of Corrections
13 [ (NDC), with THREE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED THIRTY-EIGHT (3,338) DAYS
14

credit for time served. COUNTS 1 & 2 = NOT GUILTY
15

16

- DATED this | S~ day of October, 2009.

: f:. 12/

20 ELISSA CADISH
DISTRICT JUDGE

21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

2 S:\Forms\JOC-Jury 1 Ct/10/8/2009
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PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER ocr
NEVADA BAR No. 0556 29 2009
309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 c%;;g ;
(702) 455-4685 COURY

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff, CASE NO. C174554X

}

)

)

)

V. ) DEPT. NO. VI
)
JUSTIN JUG CAPRI PORTER, )
)

Defendant. )

)

NOTICE OF APPEAL

TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA

DAVID ROGER, DISTRICT ATTORNEY, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA and
DEPARTMENT NO. VI OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK.

NOTICE is hereby given that Defendant, Justin Jug Capri
Porter, presently incarcerated in the Nevada State Prison, appeals
to the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada from the judgment
entered against said Defendant on the 13th day of OCctober, 2009,
whereby he was convicted of Ct. 3 - Second Degree Murder With Use
of a Deadly Weapon and sentenced to $25 Admin. fee; $150 DNA
analysis fee; genetic testing; $425 restitution; $2,421.50
extradition costs; 120 months to Life in prison plus a consecutive
term of 120 months to Life in prison; 3,338 days CTS; Counts 1 & 2
Not Guilty.

DATED this L3 day of _ ){jﬁbgﬁ , 2009.

PHILIP J. KOHN

CL UNTY PUBi;€ D NDER
By:

HOWARD S. BROOKS, #3374
Deputy Public Defender
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DECLARATION OF MAILING

Carrie Connclly, an employee with the Clark County
Public Defender’s 0Office, hereby declares that she is, and was
when the herein described mailing took place, a citizen of the
United States, over 21 years of age, and not a party to, nor
interested in, the within action; that on the ézqﬂh/ day of
§ k&dﬂ&l ; 20@3;_, declarant deposited in the United States
mail at Las Vegas, Nevada, a copy of the Notice of Appeal in the
case of the State of Nevada v. Justin Jug Capri Porter, Case No.
C174954¥, enclosed in a sealed envelope upon which first class
postage was fully prepaid, addressed to Justin Jug Capri Porter,
c/o High Desert State Prison, P.0O. Box 650, Indian Springs, NV
89018. That there is a regular communication by mail between the
place of mailing and the place so addressed.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is

true and correct.

EXECUTED on the Qfﬂt‘/ day of &JM . 2003 .

Public Defender’s OAfijce /’

Y e
An employee of the ii??k Chunty

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing Notice of Appeal 1is

hereby acknowledged this aq day of (km s 200? .

DAVID ROGER
CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

o OO
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Electronically Filed
9/11/2019 1:02 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE C(‘)ﬂ
RTRAN Cﬁ:««-“

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE#: 01C174954
Plaintiff, DEPT. VI
VS.

JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka JUG
CAPRI PORTER,

Defendant.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELISSA F. CADISH, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2010

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING: STATUS CHECK:
TRIAL SETTING ACHNOWLEGMENT

APPEARANCES:
For the State: LISA LUZAICH, ESQ.
Chief Deputy District Attorney
For the Defendant: JOSEPH K. ABOOD

Public Defender’s Office

RECORDED BY: JESSICA KIRKPATRICK, COURT RECORDER
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Monday, November 22, 2010

[Hearing began at 9:51 a.m.]
MR. ABOOD: Good morning, Judge --
THE COURT: Good morning.
MR. ABOOD: -- he’s present, in custody.
THE COURT: All right. So at the last hearing we worked on a
- trial date -- a continued trial date and came up with April 18" trial date

with calendar call on April 11"

. Unfortunately we didn’t have Mr. Porter
present at that time.

Mr. Porter, are you aware that the trials been continued to that
particular date?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am, I'm informed.

THE COURT: Pardon me?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am, | was informed.

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. And, | have to say, | no longer
remember what the reasons were, but | believe -- counsel had conflict
with other trial scheduling.

MR. ABOOD: Had a death penalty case scheduled at exactly
the same time.

THE COURT: Right, right. Okay. All right. So, Mr. Porter,
we needed to have you acknowledge the new sentencing -- the new trial
date, | apologize. The new trial date that was necessitated by these
conflicts with another death penalty case. You’re aware of all that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.
THE COURT: And you've discussed with counsel the new

Page 2
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trial date?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. And you’re not objecting to it?

THE DEFENDANT: | am -- objecting to it.

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead.

THE DEFENDANT: | would like a [indiscernible] --

THE RECORDER: Sir could you -- can | have a microphone
closer? Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT: -- right now, I'm currently in High Desert.
And this back and forth thing ain’t for me. And I'm just trying to get this
all out the way now.

THE COURT: Right.

THE DEFENDANT: It suppose been up on the 8", but they
didn’t bring me here.

THE COURT: Right.

THE DEFENDANT: And I’'m not trying to push it off no farther
then what -- it -- was suppose to be. I'm ready to go. I'm not wasting
time.

THE COURT: No, | understand. And the continuance, as |
mentioned, was a result of some conflicts that, | think, that your
attorneys had with a death penalty case --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: -- that was going to go --

THE DEFENDANT: That has nothing to do with me.

THE COURT: | understand that.

Page 3

AA 0142



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE DEFENDANT: That's somebody else totally different.

THE COURT: | understand that. All right. | certainly
understand that you want to get this done and over with. Believe me, |
appreciate that. And I'm sure that your counsel are well aware of that as
well, and certainly want to get this resolved just as soon as they can for
you, but certainly they can’t be in two different places at once. And
certainly would not be appropriate to have different counsel come in and
try to get up to speed and represent you --

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: -- at this time. So as a result of those
unavoidable conflict issues, and -- the trial was continued to April 18". |
appreciate the concerns you’ve raised, but frankly it's unavoidable --

THE DEFENDANT: See you already had your mind set
whatcha you was gonna to do, basically.

THE COURT: Well --

THE DEFENDANT: Could’ve left me where | was.

THE COURT: | suppose we could have. But there is no
choice in the circumstance. And so given that it had to be continued we
put it on in April, which was the soonest we could get everybody
necessary to be here on the calendar at that time. So it’s not -- it’s not
that | don’t hear your concerns, and understand them, | think everybody
involved wanted to get the trial done, but --

THE DEFENDANT: What was done is going to be done. So |
can just sit down --

THE COURT: All right, thank you, sir, --

Page 4
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THE DEFENDANT: -- take it with stride.

THE COURT: -- | do appreciate your concerns, and they are
noted for the record. And it certainly will be the courts intention to
complete the trial in April as scheduled.

THE DEFENDANT: All right.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

MS. LUZAICH: Thank you, Judge.

MR. ABOOD: Thank you, Your Honor.

[Hearing concluded at 9:55 a.m.]

* k k k k %

ATTEST: | do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my
ability.

De’Awna Takas
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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DISTRICT C(?UL%'FH "2
CLARK C(SE%H‘Y, NEVADA  pareq le) 3. TIME_¥3
APPROVED BY _ ™|

JUSTIN D. PORTER,

Petitioner,
Vs,
STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent,

FILE WITH

MASTER CALENDAR

FILED

W=
LERK OF THE COURT

Case No: C174954
Dept No: 6

ORDER FOR PETITION FOR
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

Petitioner filed a petition for writ of habeas corpus (Post-Conviction Relief) on

February 10, 2012. The Court has reviewed the petition and has determined that a response would assist

the Court in determining whether Petitioner is illegally imprisoned and restrained of hisher liberty, and

good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Respondent shall, within 45 days after the date of this Order,

answer or otherwise respond to the petition and file a return in accordance with the provisions of NRS

34.360 to 34.830, inclusive,

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that this matter shall be placed on this Court’s

, 200 20[)at the hour of

Calendar on the [ ** day of ﬂ,{; Y l

{130 A oclock for further proceedings.

 D1C174954 ™

OPWH
Order for Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpu

A

i
RECEIVED
FEB 14 2012
CLERK OF THE COURT

o A/

District Court Judge

DEPARTMENT VI
NOTICE OF HEARING

I

13

AA 0145



L4N0J 3HL 404310

Wa= 61.6£0d2l—8l-9l

A0Z || NAr

W

o o0 ~1 SN L R W N —

M»—-—-‘—-u—d»—-o—-b—-n—i—-»—a
L - = Y "SI R )

aFisEmy OR8N R

(SEITEIYEN B. \%OLFS%N N ' D
ark Coun 1strict Attorney a
Nevada Bar Y001565 M 2“”
LISA LUZAICH Q?_
Chief Deputy District Attorney CLERK OFCOUPT
Nevada Bar #005056
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
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. DISTRICT COURT Findlnnl of Fact, Conclusions of Law and
cuwscovvrv.evaos (| [THEIIN
' THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-V§- CASE NO: C-01-174954-1
JUSTIN PORTER, DEPT NO: A" |
#1682627
Defendant.

<

) o
o ORIGINAL

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: APRIL 23,2012
- TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 A.M.

THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable ELISSA CADISH,
District Judge, on the 23rd day of April, 2012, the Petitioner being present, PROCEEDING
IN FORMA PAUPERIS, the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON,

Clark County District Attorney, by and through LISA LUZAICH, Chief Deputy District
Attorney, and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs, transcripts,
arguments of counsel, and documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the
following findings of fact and conclusions of law:

/" |

1

/"
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FINDINGS OF FACT

. On April 26, 2001, the State of Nevada, by way of Information, charged Justin Porter

(hereinafter “Defendant™) with over forty (40) felony counts, related to nine (9)

events over a four month period involving twelve (12) victims.

. On June 18, 2008, the Court granted Deféndant’s Motion to Sever and ordered the

murder event be tried separately. The State subsequently filed an Amended
Information in the instant case on April 30, 2009, charging Defendant with one (1)
count Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon (Félony — NRS 205.060,
193.165), one (1) count Attempt R'obbery With Use of a Deadly Weépon (Felony —
NRS 193.330, 200.380, 193.165), and one (1) count Murder With Use of a Deadly
Weapon (Felony — NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165).

. On May 8, 2009, a jury found Defendant guilty of Second Degree Murder With Use

of a Deadly Weapon (Count 3) and not guilty of Burglary While in Possession of a
Deadly Weapon (Count 1) and Attempt Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon
(Count 2).

. On September 30, 2009, the Court sentenced Defendant to the Nevada Department of

Corrections for One Hundred Twenty (120) Months to Life, plus a consecutive term

of One Hundred Twenty (120) Months to Life for the Use,_.cc)jfv %Clt),eadly Weapon
0
enhancement. The Court entered a Judgment of Conviction on Octboer 13, 2009.

. On November 8, 2010, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the Judgment of

Conviction. Remittitur issued December 3, 2010.

|0 _
. On February 447 2012, Defendant filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus,

asserting the following claims:

Claim I:  the State presented insufficient evidence at trial to
: convict Defendant;

Claim 2: the Court improperly admitted Defendant’s
confessions, allegedly obtained in violation of
Miranda; and

Claim 3: the Court improperly sentenced Defendant to One
Hundred Twenty (120) Months to Life for the
Deadly Weapon enhancement.

2 PAWPDOCS\FOR(1 3101390101 doc
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7. The State filed a Response to Defendant’s Petition on March 21, 2012.

8. The parties appeared before the Court on April 23, 2012. The Court ruled on
Defendant’s Petition without hearing argument.

9. Defendant’s Petition is untimely.

10. While Defendant claims he was unaware the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed his
conviction until recently, he fails to allege sufficient facts to establish he filed the
instant petition within a reasonable amount of time of }‘ecgnglg?gf the affirmance. As
such, Defendant fails to demonstfate good cause to overcome the procedural time bar.

11. Even if Defendant filed the instant petition within a reasonable time of discovering
the Nevada Supreme Court afﬁrméd his conviction and therefore established good

cause to overcome the time bar, his claims lack merit.

12. Claim 1, insufficient evidence, and Claim 2, based on alleged Miranda violations,

~ were both considered and rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court on appeal. Porter v.
State, Casé No. 54866, Order of Affirmance, p.1-2. As such, both are precluded by
the law of the case and are therefore denied.

13.Claim 3 also lacks merit. In 2000, when Defendant murdered the instant victim, NRS
193.165 required a sentence equal and consecutive to the underlying offense forl a
Deadly Weapon enhancement. As Defendant’s crime predated the change in the law,
thé Court properly sentenced Defendant as contemplated by the statute. Claim 3 is
therefore denied.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Pursuant to NRS 34.726:

Unless there is good cause shown for delay, a petition that
challenges the validity of a judgment or sentence must be filed
within | year after ent;y of the judgment of conviction or, if an
appeal has been taken from the judgment, within 1 year after the
supreme court issues its remittitur, For the purposes of this
subsection, good cause for delay exists if the petitioner
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the court;

(a)  That the delay is not the fault of the petitioner; and

(b)  That dismissal of the petition as untimely will unduly
prejudice the petitioner. '

3 : PAWPDOCS\FOFW0131013%0101.doc
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2. The one year time-bar must be strictly construed. Gonzales v. State, 118 Nev. 61, 590

P.3d 901 (2002). The district court has a duty to consider whether the procedural bars
apply to a post-conviction petition and not arbitrarily disregard them. State v. Eighth
Judicial District Court, 121 Nev. 225, 112 P.3d 1070 (2005).

3. “In order to demonstrate good cause, a petitioner must show that an impediment
external to the defense prevented him or her from complying with the state
procedural default rules.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 30, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003);
citing Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev. 860, 886-87, 34 P.3d 519, 537 (2001); Lozada v.
State, 110 Nev. 349, 353, 871 P.2d 944, 946 (1994); Passanisi v. Director, 105 Nev.
63, 769 P.2d 72 (1989); See also Crump v. Warden, 113 Nev. 293, 295, 934 P.2d
247, 252 (1997), Phelps v. Director, Nevada Department of Prisons, 104 Nev. 656,

764 P.2d 1303 (1988). Such an external impediment could be “that the factual or
legal basis for a claim was not reasonably available to counsel, or that ‘some
interference by officials’ made éompliance impracticable.” Hathaway, 71 P.3d at
506; quoting Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478, 488, 106 S.Ct. 2639, 2645 (1986); See
also Gonzales, 118 Nev. 590, 595, 53 P.3d 901, 904; citing Harris' v. Warden, 114
Nev. 956, 959-60 n. 4, 964 P.2d 785 n. 4 (1998). Clearly, any delay in filing of the

petition must not be the fault of the petitioner. NRS 34.726(1)(a). To find good cause
there must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway, 71
P.3d at 506; quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229, 1230 (1989),
quoting State v. Estencion, 625 P.2d 1040, 1042 (Haw. 1981).

4. A defendant’s low intelligence is insufficient to amount to good cause to overcome
the procedural time bar. Phelps, 104 Nev. at 659-60. '

5. A defendant’s mistaken belief that the Nevada Supreme Court has not 'yet issued
remittitur may provide good cause to overcome the time bar, but only where the
defendant files a petition within a reasonable amount of time after learning of the

affirmance. See Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. at 254-55.

4 PAWPDOCS\FOR013\01390101 doc
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Claims asserted in petition must be supported with specific factual allegations, which

1 6.

2 if true, would entitle the petitioner to relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502,

3 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). Bare and naked allegations are insufficient. Id.

4 7. Defendant’s conviction is supported by sufficient evidence. Porter v. State, Case No.

5 54866, Order of Affrimance p.1.

6 8. Defendant voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waived his Miranda rights,

7 therefore the district court did not err in admitting Defendant’s statements at trial.

8 Porter v. State, Case No. 54866, Order of Affirmance p.1-2.

9 9. The law of a first appeal is the law of the case on all subsequent appeals in which the
10 facts are substantially the same. Hall v. State, 91, Nev. 314, 315, 535 P.2d 797, 798
11 (1975). The doctrine of the law of the case cannot be avoided by a more detailed and
12 precisely focused argument. 1d. at 316.

13 10. In 2000, NRS 193.165 read as follows:
14 “Except as otherwise provided in NRS 193.169, any person who
uses a firearm or other deadly weapon or a weapon containin
15 or capable of emitting tear gas, whether or not its possession fi
germltted by NRS 202.375, in the commission fo a crime shall -
16 e punished by imprisonment in the state prison for a term equal
to and inaddition to the term of imprisonment prescribed by
17 statute for the crime. The sentence prescribed by this section
runs consecutively with the sentence prescribed by statute for
18 the crime.”.1995 Statutes of Nevada, p.1431.
19 11, A defendant is sentenced in accordance with the sentencing statutes in place at the
20 time of the crime, rather than at the time of sentencing. See Tellis v. State, 84 Nev.
21 587,445 P.2d 938 (1968); NRS 193.130.
2 |/
23 (| /
24 [/
25 1L/
26 || //
27 |/
28 || /
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ORDER .
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Petition for Post—Convicﬁon

Relief shall be, and is, denjed.
DATED this /2% day of 22012,
- Ju

\_F ' -
‘

= W
STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
‘TISALVZAICH '
Chief Bputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005056
NOTICE OF SERVICE
I, HOWARD CONRAD, hereby certify that the State forwarded a copy }){' these
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER on the day of
MAY, 2012, to:
JUSTIN PORTER, BAC#1042449
HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON
P.O. BOX 650 ‘
INDIAN SPRIN 9070
Secretapy for the District Attomney's Office
hje/SVU
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orw FILED

Al 17
DISTRICT COURT I3 SEP 10

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA (L, . . s

JUSTIN PORTER CLERY OF THE COURT

Petitioner
’ Case No: 01C174954

VS, Dept No: VI

STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent, ORDER FOR PETITION FOR
WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

J

Petitioner filed a petition for writ of habeas corpus (Post-Cenviction Relief) on
August 26, 2013. The Court has reviewed the petition and has determined that a response would assist
the Court in determining whether Petitioner is illegally imprisoned and restrained of his/her liberty, and
good cause appearing therefore,

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED that Respondent shall, within 45 days after the date of this Order,
answer or otherwise respond to the petition and file a return in accordance with the provisions of NRS
34.360 to 34.830, inclusive.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that this matter shall be placed on this Court’s

Calendar on the day of ¢ \n-r\ Lo >/ , 201 L,—L at the hour of

vp o
?- @ o’clock for further proceedings.

IT IS SO ORDERED THIS @ day of g_u.( !I) g g M b{ - , 2013,
< ~
DEPARTMENT VI ﬂ'\ {

NOTICE OF HEARING
DATE { J_?é[_, TIME Z: 300
APPROVED BY |- tabdas: District Court Judge  <gny7avea - o=
OPW
g;a:eg;;%r Patitlon for Writ of Habeas Gorpu
FILE WITH
VASTERCALENDAR MMM

Y
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' Electronically Filed
ORDR 02/14/2014 04:58:14 PM

SlTElygN B. V}/)OLFS%N .

Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565 % tW
JAMES R. SWEETIN

Deputy District Attorney - CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #005144

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

vs- CASE NO: 01C174954

JUSTIN PORTER, DEPT NO: VI
#1682627

Defendant.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: JANUARY 13, 2014
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 A.M.

THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable ELISSA CADISH,

District Judge, on the 13th day of January, 2014, the Pétitioner not being present, proceeding
IN FORMA PAUPERIS, the Respondent being represeélted by STEVEN B. WOLFSON,
Clark County District Attorney, by and through DENA RINETTI, Deputy Diétrict Attorney,
and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs, transcripts, no arguments of
counsel, and documents on file hercin, now therefore, the Court makes the following
findings of fact and conclusions of law:

//

i/

/1
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1 FINDINGS OF FACT |
2 | 1. On April 26, 2001, the State of Nevada, by way of Infortnation, charged Justin Porter
3 || (hereinafter “Petitioner”) with over forty (40) felony counts, including sexual assaﬁlt,
4 || kidnapping, murder, burglary, and robbery, related to nine events over a four month period,
5 || involving twelve victims. On May 2, 2001, an Amended Infermation was filed in open court
6 || to correct a typographical error. On October 11, 2001, a Second Amended Information was
7 | filed reducing the total charges to 38 counts. Counts 30, 31 and 32 alleged Burglary while in
8 || Possession of a Deadly Weapon; Attempt Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; and
9 || Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon (Open Murder)‘.. respectively. These three counts
10 | involved a single victim. h
11 | 2. On May 15, 2008, Petitioner filed a Motion to Sever Counts 30-32 from the
12 || remainder of the charges. On June 12, 2008, the State filed its Opposition. On June 18,
13 || 2008, the Court granted Petitioner’s Motion to Sever and ordered the murder event be tried
14 | separately. The State subsequently filed a Third Amended Information in the instant case on
15 || April 30, 2009, charging Petitioner with: Count 1 - Burglary While in Possession of a
16 || Deadly Weapon (Felony — NRS 205.060, 193.165); Count 2 — Aftempt Robbery Witﬁ Use of
17 || a Deadly Weapon (Felony — NRS 193.330, 200.380, 193.165), and Count 3 — Murder With
18 || Use of a Deadly Weapon (Open Murder) (Felony — NRS 200.010,‘200.030, 193.165).
19 ] 3. On May 8, 2009, a jury found Petitioner guilty on Count 3 of Second Degree Murder
20 I with Use of a Deadly Weapon. Petitioner was found not guilty of Counts 1 and 2,
21 | 4. On September 30, 2009, the Court sentenced Petifioﬁer to the Nevada Department of
22 || Corrcctions for One Hundred Twenty (120) Months to Life, plus a consecutive term of One
23 || Hundred Twenty (120) Months to Life for the use of a deadly Weapon. The Judgment of
24 || Conviction was filed on October 13, 2009. On October 29, 2009, Petitioner filed a Notice of
25 || Appeal. On November 8, 2010, the Nevada Supremé‘? Couft affirmed the Judgment of
26 || Conviction. Remittitur issued December 3, 2010. |
27 || //
28 || //
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5. On February 10, 2012, Petitioner filed a pro per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Post-Conviction). The State filed its Response and Motion to Dismiss on March 21, 2013.
On April 23, 2012, the Court denied Petitioner’s Petition ai'sl unﬁmely. The Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Order were filed on June 11, 2012. The Notice of Entry of Order
was filed on June 15, 2012. Petitioner appealed the denial of his Petition on May 8, 2012
and on February 13, 2013, the Nevada Supreme Court .':i}ﬁrmed th¢ denial. The Remittitur
issued on March 11, 2013, |
6. On August 26, 2013, Petitioner filed a second Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus and
a separate Motion to Appoint Counsel. On January 3, 2013, the State filed a Response and
Motion to Dismiss the Petition and an Opposition to motion to appoint counsel. On January
13, 2014, this Court held a hearing on the Petition and found as foIl_ows.
7. The Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus is procedurally time barred per NRS
34.726(1). Following the direct appeal, the Remittitur issed on December 3, 2010. Thus, the
August 26, 2013 Petition was nearly two years beyoind l:hcrt&ime‘ permitted. Therefore, this
Court must dismiss the Petition absent a showing of good cause. |
8. Petitioner failed to show good cause to overcome the procedural bar. Petitioner
offered no facts upon which good cause might be based. |
9. Petitioner is not entitled to post conviction counsel becausé Petitioner cannot show
that any petition at this time or in the future would not be frivolous and summarily
dismissed. |
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
l. The mandatory provision of NRS 34.726(1) states:

Unless there is good cause shown for delay, a petition that
challenges the validity of a judgment or sentence must be filed
within | year after entry of the judgment of conviction or, if an
gppeal has been taken from the judgment, within 1 year after the
upreme Court issues its remittitur. For the purposes of this
subsection, good cause for delay exisis® 1fP the  petitioner
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the court: |

(a)  That the delay is not the fault of the petitioner; and

(b)  That dismissal of the petition as untimely will unduly
prejudice the petitioner. - -

3 -~ PAWPDOCS\FOF\00 1100139001 .doc
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(Emphasis added). *[T]he statutory rules regarding procedural default are mandatory
and cannot be ignored when properly raised by the State.” State v. Eighth Judicial Dist.
Court, 121 Nev. 225, 233, 112 P.3d 1070, 1075 (2005).

2. The one-year time bar prescribed by NRS 34.726 begins to run from the date
the judgment of conviction is filed or a remittitur from a timely direct appeal is filed.
Dickerson v. State, 114 Nev. 1084, 1087, 967 P.2d 1132, 1133-34 (1998); see Pellegrini v.
State, 117 Nev. 860, 873, 34 P.3d 519, 528 (2001) (h')iainé that NRS 34.726 should be

construed by its plain meaning).

3. In Gonzales v, State, 118 Nev. 590, 593, 590' P._3d 901, 902 (2002), the Nevada

Supreme Court rejected a habeas petition that was ﬁled;two (2) days late, pursuant to the
“clear and unambiguous” mandatory provisions of NRS 34.726(1).. Gonzales reiterated the
importance of filing the petition with the District Court within the one-year mandate, absent
a showing of “good cause” for the delay in filing. Gonzales, 590 P.3d at 902. The one-year
time bar is therefore strictly construed. In contrast with the short amount of time to file a
notice of appeal, a prisoner has an ample full year to file a post-conviction habeas petition,
so there is no injustice in a strict application of NRS 34.726(1), despite any alleged
difficulties with the postal system. Gonzales, 118 Nev, at 59_'5, 53 P.jd at 903,

4, To avoid procedural default under NRS 34,726, a defendant has the burden of
pleading and proving specific facts that demonstrate good cause for his féilure to present his
claim in earlier proceedings or comply with the statutory requirements. See Hogan v.
Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 959-60, 860 P.2d 710, 715-16 (?!1993):; Phe_lps v. Nevada Dep’t of
Prisons, 104 Nev. 656, 659, 764 P.2d 1303, 1305 (1988). |

5. “To establish good cause, appellants must show that an impediment external to
the defense prevented their conip]iance with the applicablé procedural rule.” Clem v, State,
119 Nev. 613, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003) (emphasis added)‘; 5€€ Héthawav v, State, 119
Nev. 248, 251, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003); Pellegrini v. State, ll7ANev. 860, 887, 34 P.3d 519,

537 (2001). Such an external imps:diment could be “that the factual or legal basis for a claim

was not reasonably available to counsel, or that ‘some interference by officials’ made

4 Y PAWPDOCS\FOR\001100139001 doc
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I |[ compliance impracticable.” Hathaway, 74 P.3d at 506 (quoting Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S.
2 || 478, 488, 106 S.Ct. 2639, 2645 (1986)); see also Gonzalez, 118 Nev. at 595, 53 P.3d at 904
3 || (citing Harris v. Warden, 114 Nev. 956, 959-60 n.4, 964 P.2d 785 n.4 (1998)). Any delay in
4 || filing of the petition must not be the fault of the petitioner. NRS 34.726(1)(a).
5 6. The Nevada Supreme Court has clarified that, “appellants cannot attempt to
6 | manufacture good cause[.]” Clem, 119 Nev. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. To find good cause
7 | there must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway, 119 Nev. at
8 [ 251, 71 P.3d at 506; (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229, 1230
9 || (1989)). Excuses such as the lack of assistance of counscl when preparing a petition, as well
10 || as the failure of trial counsel to forward a copy of the file to a bet_itioner have been found not
11 to constitute good cause. See Phelps, 104 Nev. at 660, 764 P.2d at 1306, superseded by
12 || statute on other grounds as recognized in Nika v. State, 120 Nev. 600, 607, 97 P.3d 1140,
13 || 1145 (2004); Hood v. State, 111 Nev. 335, 890 P.2d 797 (1995).
14 7. In State v. Eighth Judicial District Court, 121 Nev. 225, 234, 51 12 P.3d 1070
15 || (2005), the Nevada Su_préme Court held as follows: o
16 Given the untimely and successive nature of [defendant’s]
petition, the district court had a duty imposed by law to
17 consider whether any or all of [defendant’s] claims were barred
under NRS 34.726, NRS 34.810, NRS 34.300; or by the law of
18 the case . . . [and] the court’s failure to make this determination
here constituted an arbitrary and unreasonable exercise of
19 discretion. |
20 || (Emphasis added), see also State v. Haberstroh, 119 Nev. 173, 180-81, 69 P.3d 676, 681-82
21 || (2003) (wherein the Nevada Supreme Court held that_ parties canﬁot stipulate to waive,
22 | ignore or disregard the mandatory procedural default rules nor can fhey’ CMpower a court to
23 | disregard them), State v. Greene. 129 Nev. Ad. Op. 58, 307 P.3d 322, 326 (2013) (The
24 || district court abused its discretion by considering the merits of the defendant’s post-
25 || conviction writ of habeas corpus where the defendant failed to demonstrate that an
260 || impediment external to the defense prevented him from coﬁlplying with the procedural-
27 | default rules). |
28 || //
5 : PAWPDOCS\FOF001100139001.doc
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8. NRS 34.750 provides, in pertinent part:

A petition may allege that the Defendant is unable to pay the costs
of the proceedings or employ counsel. If the court is satisfied that
the allegation of indigency is true and the petition is not dismissed
summarily, the court may appoint counszl at the time the court
orders the filing of an answer and a return. In making its
determination, the court may consider whether:

{a)  The issues are difficult;

(b) The Defendant is unable to - comprehend the
proceedings; or

(¢)  Counsel is necessary to procecd with discovery.
(Emphasis added). Under NRS 34.750, it is clear that the court has discretion in
determining whether to appoint counsel.

9. Further, in Coleman v. Thompson, 501 U.S. 722, 752, 111 S.Ct. 2546, 2566

(1991), the United States Supreme Court ruled that the Sixth Amendment provides no right
to counsel in post-conviction proceedings. In McKague v. Warden, 112 Nev. 159, 163, 912
P.2d 255, 258 (1996), the Nevada Supreme Court sim?ilarly observed that “[t]he Nevada

Constitution . . . does not guaranice a right to counsel in post-conviction proceedings, as we

interpret the Nevada Constitution’s right to counsel provision as being coextensive with the

Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution.” In McKague, the Nevada Supreme
Court specifically held that with the exception of cases in which appointment of counsel is
mandated by statute, one does not have “[a]ny constitutional or statutory right to counsel at
all” in post-conviction proceedings. Id. at 164. The Nevada Supreme Court has observed
that a petitioner “must show that the requested review [for post-conviction relief] is not
frivolous before he may have an attorney appointed.” Peterson v. Warden, Nevada State
Prison, 87 Nev. 134, 483 P.2d 204 (1971) (citing former S‘tatuté NRS 177.345(2)).

// |

//

//

//

//
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ORDER

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the'Peﬁtion for Post-Conviction

Relief shall be, and it is, hereby dismissed, and the Motion to Appoint Counsel shall be, and

18, denied.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

Fdvoey

DATED this | . day ofJaIy{ary, 2014,

DIS

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #009897

7 T PAWPDOCSIFOR001100139001.doc
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NOTICE OF SERVICE
I, HOWARD CONRAD, hereby certify that the State forwarded.a copy of these
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER on the 30th day of
JANUARY, 2014, to:

JUSTIN PORTER #1042449
HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON
P.O. BOX 650
INDIANSPRINGS/ NV 89018,

Se(eféﬁrmle District’ Attorney's Office

hje/SVU
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Electronically Filed
02/24/2014 01:37:54 PM

NEO % t.%m-

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JUSTIN D. PORTER,

Pctitioner,
Case No: 01C174954

va. Dept No: VI

THE STATE OF NEVAD
A, NOTICE OF ENTRY OF FINDINGS OF

FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND

Respondent, ORDER

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on February 14, 2014, the court entered a decision or order in this
matter, a true and correct copy of which 1s attached to this notice.

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish to appeal, vou
must file a notice of appeal with the clerk of this court within thirty-three (33) days after the date this notice is

mailed to you. This notice was mailed on February 24, 2014

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CLERK OF THE COURT

Srodves BZ%

Teodora Jones, Deputy Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certity that on this 24 day of February 2014, I placed a copy of this Notice of Entry in:

The bin(s) located in the Regional Justice Center of:
Clark County District Attorney’s Office
Attomey General’s Office — Appellate Division-

M The United States mail addressed as {ollows:

Justin D. Porter # 1042449 Philip J. Kohn, Public Defender
P.O. Box 650 309 5. Third 5t., #226
Indian Springs, N'V 89070 Las Vegas, NV 89101

Ssodiec bl%

Teodora Jones, Deputy Clerk
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Electronically Filed

ORDR | 02/14/2014 04:58:14 PM
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565 % jéﬂuw-
JAMES R, SWEETIN

Deputy District Attorney - CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #005144

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

v CASE NO: 01C174954
JUSTIN PORTER, DEPT NO: vi
#1682627

Defendant.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: JANUARY 13, 2014
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 A M.

THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable ELISSA CADISH,

District Judge, on the 13th day of January, 2014, the P'etitricmer not being present, proceeding
IN FORMA PAUPERIS, the Respondent being represéﬁted by STEVEN B. WOLFSON,
Clark County District Attorney, by and through DENA RINETTI, Deputy Dizstrict Attorney,
and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs, transcripts, no arguments of
counsel, and documents on file herein, now therefore:; the Court makes the following
findings of fact and conclusions of law:

i

i

/i
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] FINDINGS OF FACT

1. On April 26, 2001, the State of Nevada, by way of Informatiqn, charged Justin Porter

(hercinafter “Petitioner”) with over forty (40) felony counts, including sexual assault,

= L2 D

kidnapping, murder, burglary, and robbery, related to nine events over a four month period,
involving twelve victims. On May 2, 2001, an Amended Information was filed in open court
to correct a typographical error. On October 11, 2001, a Second Amended Information was

filed reducing the total charges to 38 counts. Counts 30, 31 and 32 alleged Burglary while in

O o ~1 ) L

Possession of a Deadly Weapon; Attempt Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; and
l Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon (Open Murder)". respectively., These three counts
10 | involved a single victim, ﬂ
11 | 22 On May 15, 2008, Petitioner filed a Motion to Sever Counts 30-32 from the
12 || remainder of the charges. On June 12, 2008, the State filed its Opposition. On June 18,

13 || 2008, the Court granted Petitioner’s Motion to Sever and ordered the murder event be tried

14 i separately. The State subsequently filed a Third Amended Information in the instant case on
15 l April 30, 2009, charging Petitioner with: Count 1 — Burglar.y While in Possessian of a
16 || Deadly Weapon (Felony — NRS 205.060, 193.165); Count 2 - Attempt Robbery Witﬁ Use of
17 | a Deadly Weapon (Felony — NRS 193.330, 200.380, 193.165), and Count 3 — Murder With
I8 || Use of a Deadly Weapon (Open Murder) (Felony — NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165).

19 || 3. On May &, 2009, a jury found Petitioner guilty on Count 3 of Second Degree Murder
20 || with Use of a Deadly Weapon. Petitioner was found not guilty of Counts 1 and 2,

21 | 4. On September 30, 2009, the Court sentenced Petiﬁoﬁer to the Nevada Department of
22 || Corrections for One Hundred Twenty (120) Months to Life, plus-a consecutive term of One
23 || Hundred Twenty (120) Months to Life for the use of a deadly weapon. The Judgment of
24 || Conviction was filed on October 13, 2009. On October 29, 2009 Petitioner filed a Notice of
25 || Appeal. On November &, 2010, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the Judgment of
26 || Conviction. Remittitur issued December 3, 2010,

27
28 " /i
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5. On February 10, 2012, Petitioner filed a pro per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Post-Conviction). The State filed its Response and Motion to Dismiss on March 21, 2013.
On April 23, 2012, the Court denied Petitioner’s Petition és untimely. The Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Order were filed on June 11, 2012. The Notice of Entry of Order
was filed on June 15, 2012. Petitioner appealed the denial of his Petition on May 8, 2012
and on February 13, 2013, the Nevada Supreme Court 'a'::fﬁrmed thé denial. The Remittitur
issued on March 11, 2013,
6. On August 26, 2013, Petitioner filed a second Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus and
a separate Motion to Appoint Counsel. On January 3, 2013, the State filed a Response and
Motion to Dismiss the Petition and an Opposition to motion to appoint counsel. On January
13, 2014, this Court held a hearing on the Petition and found as fo'l-l,ows.
7. The Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus is procedurally time barred per NRS
34.726(1). Following the direct appeal, the Remittitur issed on December 3, 2010. Thus, the
August 26, 2013 Petition was nearly two years beyolnd the time permitted. Therefore, this
Court must dismiss the Petition absent a showing of good cause. |
g. Petitioner failed to show good cause to overcome the procedural bar. Petitioner
offered no facts upon which good cause might be based.
9. Petitioner is not entitled to post conviction cduns:el because Petitioner cannot show
that any petition at this time or in the future would not be frivolous and summarily
dismissed. |
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
1, The mandatory provision of NRS 34.726(1) states:

Unless there is good cause shown for delay, a petition that
challenges the validity of a judgment or sentence must be filed
within | year after entry of the judgment cf conviction or, if an
appeal has been taken from the judgment, within 1 year after the
ugreme Court issues its remittitur. For the purposes of this
subsection, good cause for delay exists if the petitioner
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the court: |

(a)  That the delay is not the fault of the petitioner; and

(b)  That dismissal of the petition as untimely will unduly
prejudice the petitioner. N
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(Emphasis added). “[Tlhe statutory rules regarding procedural default are mandatory
and cannot be ignored when properly raised by the State.” State v. Eighth Judicial Dist.
Court, 121 Nev. 225,233, 112 P.3d 1070, 1075 (2003).

2, The one-year time bar prescribed by NRS 34.726 begins to run from the date
the judgment of conviction is filed or a remittitur from a timely dircct appeal is filed.
Dickerson v. State, 114 Nev. 1084, 1087, 967 P.2d 1132, 1133-34 (1998); see Pellegrini v.
State, 117 Nev. 860, 873, 34 P.3d 519, 528 (2001) (holding that NRS 34.726 should be

construed by its plain meaning).

3. In Gonzales v. State, 118 Nev. 590, 593, 59(_} P.3d 901, 902 (2002), the Nevada

Supreme Court rejected a habeas petition that was filed two (2) days late, pursuant to the
“clear and unambiguous” mandatory provisions of NRS 34.726(1).. Gonzales reiterated the
importance of {iling the petition with the District Court within the one-vear mandate, absent
a showing of “good cause™ for the delay in filing. Gonzeles, 590 P.3d at 902. The one-year
time bar is therefore strictly construed. In contrast with the short amount of time to file a
notice of appeal, a prisoner has an ample full year to file a pdst—conviction habeas petition,
so there is no injustice in a strict application of NRS 34.726(1), despite any alleged
difficulties with the postal system. Gonzales, 118 Nev. at 59-5, 53 P.3d at 903,

4, To avoid procedural default under NRS 34.726, a defendant has the burden of

pleading and proving specific facts that demonstrate good cause for his failure to present his

claim in earlier proceedings or comply with the statutory requirements. See Hogan v,
Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 959-60, 860 P.2d 710, 715-16 (f-1993); Phelps v. Nevada Dep’t of
Prisons, 104 Nev. 656, 659, 764 P.2d 1303, 1305 (1988).

5. “To establish good cause, appellants must show that an impediment external to
the defense prevented their compliance with the applicablé procedural rule.” Clem v. State,
119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003) (emphasis added); see.Haithawav v. State, 119
Nev. 248, 251, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003); Pellegrini v. State, 117 Nev. 860, 887, 34 P.3d 519,

537 (2001}, Such an external implzdiment could be “that the factual or legal basis for a claim

was not reasonably available to counsel, or that ‘some interference by officials’ made
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1 || compliance impracticable.” Hathaway, 74 P.3d at 506 (quoting Murray v. Carrier, 477 U.S.
2 ||-478, 488, 106 S.Ct. 2639, 2645 (1986)); see also Gonzalez, 118 Nev. at 595, 53 P.3d at 904
3 || (citing Harris v. Warden, 114 Nev. 956, 959-60 n.4, 964 P.2d 785 n.4 (1998)). Any delay in
4 || filing of the petition must not be the fault of the petitioner. NRS 34.7‘26(1)(&).
5 6. The Nevada Suprerne Court has clarified that, “appellants cannot attempt to
6 || manufacture good cause[.]” Clem, 119 Nev, at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. To find good cause
7 Il there must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.”” Hathaway, 119 Nev. at
8 | 251, 71 P.3d at 506; (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229, 1230
9 || (1989)). Excuses such as the lack of assistance of counsei xwfhen“'preparing a petition, as well
10 || as the failure of trial counsel to forward a copy of the file to a petitioner have been found not
I'l || to constitute good cause. See¢ Phelps, 104 Nev. at 660, 764 P.2d at 1306, superseded by
12 " statute on other grounds as recognized in Nika v. State, 120 Nev. QOO, 607, 97 P.3d 1140,
13 | 1145 (2004); Hood v. State, 111 Nev. 335, 890 P.2d 797 (1995).
14 7. In State v. Fighth Judicial District Court, 121 Nev. 225, 234, 112 P.3d 1070
15 || {2005), the Nevada Supreme Court held as follows: o
16 Given the untimely and successive nature of [defendant’s]
petition, the district court had a duty imposed by law to
17 consider whether any or all of [defendant’s] claims weére barred
under NRS 34.726, NRS 34.810, NRS 34.300, or by the law of
18 the case . . . [and] the court’s failure to make this determination
here constituted an arbitrary and unreasonable exercise of
19 discretion. |
20 || (Emphasis added), see also State v. Haberstroh, 119 Nev, 173, 180-81, 69 P.3d 676, 681-82
21 || (2003) (wherein the Nevada Supreme Court held that parties canﬁot stipulate to waive,
22 || ignore or disregard the mandatory procedural default rule:s'nof ﬁén they empower a court to
23 ]l disregard them), State v. Greene, 129 Nev. Ad. Op. 38, 307 P.3d 322, 326 (2013) (The
24 | district court abused its discretion by considering the merits of the defendant’s post-
25 || conviction writ of habeas corpus where the defendant failed to demonstrate that an
26 || impediment external to the defense prevented him from cmﬁplyi.ng with the procedural-
27 || default rules). |
28 | //
!
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8. NRS 34.730 provides, in pertinent part:

A petition may allege that the Defendant is unable to pay the costs

of the proceedings or employ counsel. If the court is satisfied that

the allegation of indigency is true and the petition is not dismissed

summarily, the court may appoint counszl at the time the court

orders the filing of an answer and a return. In making its
- determination, the court may consider whether:

{a)  The issues are difficult;

(b) The Defendant is unable to- comprehend the
proceedings; or

(¢c)  Counsel is necessary to proceed with discovery.
(Emphasis added). Under NRS 34.750, it is clear that the court has discretion in
determining whether to appoint counsel.

Q. Further, in Coleman v. Thompson, 501 U.S. 722, 752, 111 S.Ct. 2546, 2566

(1991), the United States Supreme Court ruled that the Sixth Amendment provides no right
Lo counsel in post-conviction proceedings. In McKague v. Warden, 112 Nev., 159, 163, 912

P.2d 255, 258 (1996), the Nevada Supreme Court similarl}-'.observed that “[tlhe Nevada

Constitution . . . does not guaranice a right to counsel in post-conviction proceedings, as we

interpret the Nevada Constitution’s right to counsel provision as being coextensive with the

Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution.” In McKague,' the Nevada Supreme
Court specifically held that with the exception of cases in which appointment of counsel is
mandated by statute, one does not have “[a]ny constitutional or statutory right to counsel at
all” in post-conviction proceedings. Id. at 164. The Nevada Supreme Court has observed
that a petitioner “must show tha: the requested review [for post-conviction relief] is not
frivolous before he may have an attorney appointed.” Peterson v. Warden, Nevada State

Prison, 87 Nev. 134, 483 P.2d 204 {(1971) (citing former S‘I:atuté NRS 177.345(2)).

¢
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ORDER
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Petition for Post-Conviction

Relief shall be, and it is, hereby dismissed, and the Motion to Appoint Counsel shall be, and

1s, denied. W
DATED this _| g day ofJar};{ali, 2014.r

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

e s ) P
DENA RINETT * |

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #009897
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NOTICE OF SERVICE
[, HOWARD CONRAD, hereby certify that thé State for;\warded:a copy of these
FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER on the 30th day of
JANUARY, 2014, to:

JUSTIN PORTER #1042449

HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON
P.O. BOX 656
INDIANSPRINGS/ NV, 89018,

Se{zf'éﬁmle Distriet Attormey's Office

hje/SVU
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COI{NTY, NEVADA s Ny -u P z

JUSTIN D PORTER, . M

Petitioner, Case No: 01C174954 CLERK OF THE couRr

Department 6
vS.
STATE OF NEVADA, >
ORDER FOR PETITION FOR
Respondent, WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
J

Petitioner filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction Relief) on
October 26, 2015. The Court has reviewed the Petition and has determined that a response would assist
the Court in determining whether Petitioner is illegally imprisoned and restrained of his/her liberty, and
good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Respondent shall, within 45 days after the date of this Order,
answer or otherwise respond to the Petition and file a return in accordance with the provisions of NRS
34.360 to 34.830, inclusive.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that this matter shall be placed on this Court’s

g
S
Calendar on the I day of ﬁw\/ ,209 {b ., at the hour of

g3 A |
o’clock for further proceedings.
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R ;[PF/%F ﬁ\ﬁgmt %011
!
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District Court Judge
. FILE WITH
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Electronically Filed

FCL 03/14/2016 11:24:09 AM
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565 (m“ » W
LISA LUZAICH

Chief Deputy District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #005056

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-Vs- CASE NO: 01C174954

ﬁg&lg;ORTER, DEPT NO: V1

Defendant.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: FEBRUARY 1, 2016
- TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 AM

THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable JUDGE ELISSA
CADISH, District Judge, on the 1st Day of February, 2016, the Petitioner not being present,
proceeding IN FORMA PAUPERIS, the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B.
WOLFSON, Clark County District Attorney, by and through LISA LUZAICH, Chief Deputy

District Attorney, and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs, transcripts, no
arguments of counsel, and documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the
following findings of fact and conclusions of law:

//

/l

//
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FINDINGS OF FACT
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
On April 26, 2001, the State of Nevada, by way of Information, charged Justin Porter

(hereinafter “Defendant”) with over 40 felony counts, including sexual assault, kidnapping,
murder, burglary, and robbery, related to 9 events over a 4-month period, involving 12 victims.
On May 2, 2001, an Amended Information was filed in open court to correct a typographical
error. On October 11, 2001, a Second Amended Information was filed reducing the total
charges to 38 counts. Counts 30, 31 and 32 alleged Burglary while in Possession of a Deadly
Weapon; Attempt Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; and Murder with Use of a Deadly
Weapon (Open Murder), respectively. These three counts involved a single victim.

On May 15, 2008, Defendant filed a Motion to Sever Counts 30-32 from the remainder
of the charges. On June 12, 2008, the State filed its Opposition. On June 18, 2008, the Court
granted Defendant’s Motion to Sever, and ordered the murder event be tried separately. The
State subsequently filed a Third Amended Information in the instant case on April 30, 2009,
charging Defendant with: Count 1 — Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon
(Felony —NRS 205..060, 193.165); Count 2 — Attempt Robbery With Use of a‘Deadly Weapon
(Felony — NRS 193.330, 200.380, 193.165), and Count 3 — Murder With Use of a Deadly
Weapon (Open Murder) (Felony — NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165).

On May 8, 2009, a jury found Defendant guilty on Count 3 of Second Degree Murder
with Use of a Deadly Weapon. Defendant was found not guilty of Counts 1 and 2.

On September 30, 2009, the Court sentence.d Defendant to the Nevada Department of
Corrections for 120 months to Life, plus a consecutive term of 120 months to Life for the use
of a deadly weapon, with 3,338 days credit for time served. The Judgment of Conviction was
filed on October 13, 2009. On October 29, 2009, Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal. On
November 8, 2010, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the Judgment of Conviction.
Remittitur issued December 3, 2010.

//
//
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On February 10, 2012, Defendant filed his first pro per Post-Conviction Petition for

 'Writ of Habeas Corpus. The State filed its Response and Motion to Dismiss on March 21,

2012. On April 23, 2012, the Court denied Defendant’s Petition as untimely. The Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order were filed on June 11, 2012. Defendant appealed the
denial of his first Petition on May 8, 2012, and on March 11, 2013, the Nevada Supreme Court
affirmed the denial. Remittitur issued on March 19, 2013.

On August 26, 2013, Defendant filed his second pro per Post-Conviction Petition for
Writ of ‘Habeas Corpus, and a separate Motion to Appoint Counsel. The State filed its
Response and Motion to Dismiss on January 3, 2014. On January 13, 2014, the Court denied
Defendant’s second Petition as time-barred. Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal from the
denial of his second Petition on February 7, 2014, and on June 11, 2014, the Nevada Supreme
Court affirmed the denial. Remittitur issued on July 15, 2014.

On October 26, 2015, Defendant filed the instant (his third) pro per Post-Conviction
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. The State filed its Response on January 26, 2016.

NRS 34.726(1) provides in relevant part that a petition that challenges the validity of a
judgment or sentence must be filed within one year after entry of the judgment of conviction
or, if an appeal has been taken from the judgment, within 1 year after the Supreme Court issues
its remittitur. The Nevada Supreme Court has specifically found that the district court has a
duty to consider whether the procedural bars apply to a post-conviction petition and not
arbitrarily disregard them. Here, this Court finds that Defendant’s Post-Conviction Petition is
beyond the one-year time bar. Defendant filed an appeal from his Judgment of Conviction.
The Nevada Supreme Court affirmed on November 8, 2010, and Remittitur issued on
December 3, 2010. Therefore, Defendant had until December 3, 2011 to file his Post-
Conviction Petition. The instant Petition was filed on October 26, 2015, almost four years too
late. Therefore, because it is procedurally barred by NRS 34.726(1) and Defendant, as
discussed below, failed to show good cause and prejudice, this Court finds that Defendant’s

Petition is dismissed.

/]
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Furthermore, NRS 34.810(2) provides in relevant part:

[a] second or successive petition must be dismissed if the judge or
justice determines that it fails to allege new or different grounds
for relief and that the prior determination was on the merits or, if
new and different grounds are alleged, the judge or justice finds
that the failure of the petitioner to assert those grounds in a prior
petition constituted an abuse of the writ.

In addition, meritless, successive, and untimely petitions clog the court system and
undermine the finality of convictions.” Lozada v. State, 110 Nev. 349, 358, 871 P.2d 944, 950
(1994).

On February 10, 2012, Defendant filed his first pro per Post-Conviction Petition for

Writ of Habeas Corpus where he alleged as good cause for his untimely Petition that he had a
low 1Q, and that he was only recently informed that the Nevada Supreme Céurt affirmed his
conviction. On April 23, 2012, this Court denied Defendant’s Petition as untimely because he
did not demonstrate sufficient good cause to overcome the time bar. On August 26, 2013,
Defendant filed his second pro per Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus where
he failed to state any sufficient facts upon which good cause might be found. On January 13,
2014, this Court denied Defendant’s second Petition as time-barred with no good cause
alleged. Defendant appealed both of these denials, and the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed
each of them, but did not address the merits of any claims as both Petitions were untimely.
Defendant had the opportunity to allege the new and different grounds in the instant 3rd
Petition in these previous petitions. Therefore, this Court finds that the present Petition is
successive and constitutes an abuse of the writ, and is hereby dismissed.

To show good cause for delay under NRS 34.726(1), a petitioner must demonstrate the
following: (1) “[t]hat the delay is not the fault of the petitioner,” and (2.) that the petitioner will
be “unduly prejudice[d]” if the petition is dismissed as untimely. Under the first requirement,
“a petitioner must show that an impediment external to the defense prevented him or her from
complying with the state procedural default rules.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71
P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (citing Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 886-87, 34 P.3d at 537; Lozada v. State,
110 Nev. 349, 353, 871 P.2d 944, 946 (1994); Passanisi v. Director, Dep't Prisons, 105 Nev.

4
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63, 66, 769 P.Zd 72,74 (1989). “An impediment external to the defense may be demonstrated
by a showing ‘that the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably available to counsel,

or that some interference by officials, made compliance impracticable.’” Id. (quoting Murray

v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478, 488, 106 S. Ct. 2639 (1986) (citations and quotations

omitted)). Clearly, any delay in filing of the petition must not be the fault of the
petitioner. NRS 34.726(1)(a). Once a petitioner has established cause, he must show actual
prejudice resultiﬁg from the errors of which he complains, i.e., “a petitioner must show that
errors in the proceedings underlying the judgment worked to the petitioner’s actual and
substantial disadvantage.” State v. Huebler, 128 Nev. Adv. 'Op. 19, 275 P.3d 91, 94-95 (Nev.
2012) (citing Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 959-60, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993)).

Here, this Court finds that Defendant has failed to demonstrate good cause or prejudice
to overcome the procedural bar. In the event that Defendént is alleging as good cause
ineffective assistance of counsel, this claim is without merit. Defendant claims that counsel
was ineffective for requesting confusing and improper jury instructions. However, Defendant
only offers a single conclusory sentence in support of his claim, and makes no showing of how
this was connected to his failure to file a post-conviction Petition within the one year deadline.

Defendant also contends that his appellate counsel failed to raise this issue on direct

appeal. The Nevada Supreme Court in Hathaway found that “a petitioner's reliance upon his

counsel to file a direct appeal is sufficient cause to excuse a procedural default if the petitioner
demonstrates: ‘(1) he actually believed his counsel was pursuing his direct appeal, (2) his belief
was objectively reasonable, and (3) he filed his state post-conviction relief petition within a
reasonable time after he should have known that his counsel was not pursuing his direct

appeal.”” Hathaway, 119 Nev. at 254, 71 P.3d at 507-08. Once again, Defendant only offers a

single conclusory sentence in support of this claim, and makes no showing of how this was
connected to his failure to file a post-conviction Petition within one year. Because Defendant

has failed to show good cause, this Court finds his Petition is dismissed.
//
//
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The court may also excuse a failure to show cause where prejudice from a failure to

consider the claim amounts to a “fundamental miscarriage of justice.” Mazzan v. Warden, 112

Nev. 838, 842, 921 P.2d 920, 922 (1996); Hogan, 109 Nev. at 959, 860 P.2d at 715-16. The

miscarriage of justice exception is narrow in scope and employed only in extraordinary

circumstances. Calderon v. Thompson, 523 U.S. 538, 559, 118 S. Ct. 1489, 1502-03

(1998). This standard can only be met where the petitioner makes a colorable showing that he
is actually innocent of the crime committed. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 887, 34 P.3d at 537; see
also Mazzan, 112 Nev. at 842, 921 P.2d at 922; Hogan, 109 Nev. at 954-55, 959, 860 P.2d at

712, 715~16. “To avoid application of the procedural bar to claims attacking the validity of
the conviction, a petitioner claiming actual innocence must show that it is more likely than not
that no reasonable juror would have convicted him absent a constitutional violation.”

Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 887, 34 P.3d at 537. “To be credible,” a claim of actual innocence must

be based on reliable evidence not presented at trial. Schlup v. Delo, 513 U.S. 298, 324, 115 S.

Ct. 851, 865 (1995). Given the rarity of such evidence, “in virtually every case, the allegation
of actual innocence has been summarily rejected.” Id. (internal quotation marks omitted).
Here, the Defendant does not argue actual innocence, nor is there any indication that he
is innocent. Defendant believes that because he was accused of felony murder, but was
acquitted of the underlying felonies, he was wrongfully convicted of second-degree murder.
In .order to demonstrate a fundamental miscarriage of justice, a defendant must make a
colorable showing of actual innocence —factual innocence, not legal innocence. Pellegrini,
117 Nev. at 887, 34 P.3d at 537; see Calderon v. Thompson, 523 U.S. 538, 559, 118 S. Ct.
1489, 140 L. Ed. 2d 728 (1998). Any claim Defendant is attempting to construct here is a legal

claim, as it does not have to do with him being innocent based on the facts. Accordingly, this
Court finds that Defendant cannot overcome the procedural bars on his actual innocence claim,
nor is there any newly discovered evidence for an actual innocence claim, thus his Petition is
dismissed.

This Court also denied Defendant’s request for counsel and an evidentiary hearing.

6
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ORDER
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Petition for Post-Conviction

Relief shall be, and is, denied.
DATED this IO day of Feb‘u%lﬁ

DISTKICT J UDGE

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney‘
Nevada Bar #O '__ 65 TS

"LISA LUZATI =1
Chief Deputy Dist:

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 22nd day of
FEBRUARY, 2016 by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

JUSTIN PORTER, BAC#1042442
HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON
P.O. BOX 650

INDIAN SPRINGS, NV 89018

/sf HOWARD CONRAD
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
Special Victims Unit

hjc/SVU
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Electronically Filed
03/22/2016 07:08:32 AM

NEO % t.%m-

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
JUSTIN D. PORTER,
Case No: 01C174954
Petitioner,
Dept No: VI
Vs,
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF FINDINGS OF
Respondent, FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND
ORDER

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on March 14, 2016, the court entered a decision or corder in this matter, a
true and correct copy of which 1s attached to this notice.

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish to appeal, yvou
must file a notice of appeal with the clerk of this court within thirty-three (33) days after the date this notice 1s

mailed to you. This notice was mailed on March 22, 2016.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CLERK OF THE COURT

Heather Ungermann, Deputy Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that on this 22 day of March 2016, I placed a copy of this Notice of Entry in:

1 The bin(s) located in the Regional Justice Center of:
Clark County District Attormey’s Office
Attormey General’s Office — Appellate Division-

M The United States mail addressed as follows:

Justin D. Porter # 1042449 Philip I. Kohn, Public Defender
P.O. Box 650 309 5. Third 5t., #226
Indian Springs, NV 89070 Las Vegas, NV 89155
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STEVEN B. WOLIFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

LISA LUZAICH

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005056

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintift,

....VS.....

JUSTIN PORTER,
#1682627

Defendant.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF

CASE NO:
DEPT NO:

Flectronically Filed
03/14/2016 11:24:.09 AM

Wi b b

CLERK OF THE COURT

01C174954
V1

DATE OF HEARING: FEBRUARY 1, 2016

LAW AND ORDER

TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 AM

THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable JUDGE ELISSA
CADISH, District Judge, on the 1st Day of February, 2016, the Petitioner not being present,
proceeding IN FORMA PAUPERIS, the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B.
WOLFSON, Clark County District Attorney, by and tﬁ:ough LISA LUZAICH, Chief Deputy
District Attorney, and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs, transcripts, no

arguments of counsel, and documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the

following findings of fact and conclusions of law:

//
1/
//
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FINDINGS OF FACT
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
On April 26, 2001, the State of Nevada, by way of Information, charged Justin Porter

(hereinafter “Defendant™) with over 40 felony counts, including sexual assault, kidnapping,
murder, burglary, and robbery, related to 9 events over a 4-month period, involving 12 victims.
On May 2, 2001, an Amended Information was filed in open court to correct a typographical
error. On QOctober 11, 2001, a Second Amended Information was filed reducing the total
charges to 38 counts. Counts 30, 31 and 32 alleged Burglary while in Possession of a Deadly
Weapon; Attempt Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon; and Murder with Use of a Deadly
Weapon (Open Murder), respectively. These three counts involved a single victim.

On May 15, 2008, Defendant filed a Motion to Sever Counts 30-32 from the remainder
of the charges. On June 12, 2008, the State filed its Opposition. On June 18, 2008, the Court
granted Defendant’s Motion to Sever, and ordered the murder event be tried separately. The
State subsequently filed a Third Amended Information in the instant case on April 30, 2009,
charging Defendant with: Count 1 — Burglary While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon
(Felony — NRS 205.060, 193.163); Count 2 — Attempt Robbery With Use of a'Deadly Weapon
(Felony — NRS 193.330, 200,380, 193.165), and Count 3 — Murder With Use of a Deadly
Weapon (Open Murder) (Felony -~ NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.165).

On May 8, 2009, a jury found Defendant guilty on Count 3 of Second Degree Murder
with Use of a Deadly Weapon. Defendant was found not guilty of Counts [ and 2.

On September 30, 2009, the Court sentence'd Defendant to the Nevada Department of
Corrections for 120 months to Life, plus a consecutive term of 120 months to Life for the use
of a deadly weapon, with 3,338 days credit for time served. The Judgment of Conviction was
filed on October 13, 2009. On October 29, 2009, Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal. On
November 8, 2010, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the Judgment of Conviction.
Remittitur issued December 3, 2010,

i
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On February 10, 2012, Defendant filed his first pro per Post-Conviction Petition for

 'Writ of Habeas Corpus. The State filed its Response and Motion to Dismiss on March 21,

2012. On April 23, 2012, the Court denied Defendant’s Petition as untimely. The Findings of
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order were filed on June 11, 2012, Defendant appealed the
denial of his first Petition on May 8, 2012, and on March 11, 2013, the Nevada Supreme Court
affirmed the denial. Remittitur issued on March 19, 2013.

On August 26, 2013, Defendant filed his second pro per Post-Conviction Petition for
Writ of ‘Habeas Corpus, and a separate Motion to Appoint Counsel. The State filed its
Response and Motion to Dismiss on January 3, 2014. On January 13, 2014, the Court denied
Defendant’s second Petition as time-barred. Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal from the
denial of his second Petition on February 7, 2014, and on June 11, 2014, the Nevada Supreme
Court affirmed the denial. Remittitur issued on July 15, 2014,

On October 26, 2015, Defendant filed the instant (his third) pro per Post-Conviction
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. The State filed its Response on January 26, 2016.

NRS 34.726(1) provides in relevant part that a petition that challenges the validity of a
judgment or sentence must be filed within one vear after entry of the judgment of conviction
or, if an appeal has been taken from the judgment, within 1 year after the Supreme Court issues
its remittitur. The Nevada Supreme Court has specifically found that the district court has a
duty to consider whether the procedural bars apply to a post-conviction petition and not
arbitrarily disregard them. Here, this Court finds that Defendant’s Post-Conviction Petition is
beyond the one-year time bar. Defendant filed an appeal from his Judgment of Conviction.
The Nevada Supreme Court affirmed on November 8, 2010, and Remittitur issued on
December 3, 2010. Therefore, Defendant had until December 3, 2011 to file his Post-
Conviction Petition. The instant Petition was filed on October 26, 2015, almost four years too
late. Therefore, because it is procedurally barred by NRS 34.726(1) and Defendant, as
discussed below, failed to show good cause and prejudice, this Court finds that Defendant’s

Petition is dismissed.

//
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Furthermore, NRS 34.810¢2) provides in relevant part:

[a] second or successive petition must be dismissed if the judge or
Justice determines that it fails to allege new or different grounds
for relief and that the prior determination was on the merits or, if
new and different grounds are alleged, the judge or justice finds
that the failure of the petilioner to assert those grounds in a prior
petition constituted an abuse of the writ.

In addition, meritless, successive, and untimely petitions clog the court system and
undermine the finality of convictions.” Lozada v. State, 110 Nev. 349, 358, 871 P.2d 944, 950
(1994).

On February 10, 2012, Defendant filed his first pro per Post-Conviction Petition for

Writ of Habeas Corpus where he alleged as good cause for his untimely Petition that he had a
low IQ, and that he was only recently informed that the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed his
conviction. On April 23, 2012, this Court denied Defendant’s Petition as untimely because he
did not demonstrate sufficient good cause to overcome the time bar. On August 26, 2013,
Defendant filed his second pro per Post-Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus where
he failed to state any sufficient facts upon which good cause might be found. On January 13,
2014, this Court denied Defendant’s second Petition as time-barred with no good cause
alleged. Defendant appealed both of these denials, and the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed
cach of them, but did not address the merits of any claims as both Petitions were untimely.
Defendant had the opportunity to allege the new and different grounds in the instant 3rd
Petition in these previous petitions. Therefore, this Court finds that the present Petition is
successive and constitutes an abuse of the writ, and is hereby dismissed.

To show good cause for delay under NRS 34.726(1), a petitioner must demonstrate the
following: (1) “[t]hat the delay is not the fault of the petitioner,” and (2') that the petitioner will
be “unduly prejudice[d]” if the petition is dismissed as untimely. Under the first requirement,
“a petitioner must show that an impediment external to the defense prevented him or her from
complying with the state procedural default rules.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev. 248, 252, 71
P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (citing Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 886-87, 34 P.3d at 537; Lozada v, State,
110 Nev. 349, 353, 871 P.2d 944, 946 (1994); Passanisi v. Director, Dep't Prisons, 105 Nev,

4
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63, 66, 769 ?.Zd 72,74 (1989). “An impediment external to the defense may be demonstrated
by a showing ‘that the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably available to counsel,

or that some interference by officials, made compliance impracticable.”” 1d. (quoting Murray

v. Carrier, 477 U.S. 478, 488, 106 S. Ct. 2639 (1986) (citations and quotations

omitted)). Clearly, any delay in filing of the petition must not be the fault of the
petitioner. NRS 34.726(1)(&). Once a petitioner has established cause, he must show actual
prejudice resulting from the errors of which he complains, i.e., “a petitioner must show that
errors in the proceedings underlying the judgment worked to the petitioner’s actual and
substantial disadvantage.” State v. Huebler, 128 Nev. Adv. Op. 19, 275 P.3d 91, 94-95 (Nev.
2012) (citing Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 959-60, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993)).

Here, this Court finds that Defendant has failed to demonstrate good cause or prejudice
to overcome the procedural bar. In the event that Defendént is alleging as good cause
ineffective assistance of counsel, this claim is without merit. Defendant claims that counsel
was ineffective for requesting confusing and improper jury instructions. However, Defendant
only offers a single conclusory sentence in support of his claim, and makes no showing of how
this was connected to his failure to file a post-conviction Petition within the one year deadline.

Defendant also contends that his appellate counsel failed to raise this issue on direct

appeal. The Nevada Supreme Court in Hathaway found that “a petitioner's reliance upon his
counsel to file a direct appeal is sufficient cause to excuse a procedural default if the petitioner
demonstrates: ‘(1) he actually believed his counsel was pursuing his direct appeal, (2) his belief
was objectively reasonable, and (3) he filed his state post-conviction relief petition within a
reasonable time after he should have known that his counsel was not pursuing his direct

appeal.”” Hathaway, 119 Nev. at 254, 71 P.3d at 507-08. Once again, Defendant only offers a

single conclusory sentence in support of this claim, and makes no showing of how this was
connected to his failure to file a post-conviction Petition within one year. Because Defendant

has failed to show good cause, this Court finds his Petition is dismissed.
/f
4
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The court may also excuse a failure to show cause where prejudice from a failure to
consider the claim amounts to a “fundamental miscarriage of justice.” Mazzan v. Warden, 112

Nev. 838, 842, 921 P.2d 920, 922 (1996); Hogan, 109 Nev, at 959, 860 P.2d at 715-16. The

miscarriage of justice exception is narrow in scope and employed only in extraordinary

circumstances. Calderon v. Thompson, 523 U.S. 538, 559, 118 S. Ct. 1489, 1502-03

(1998). This standard can only be met where the petitioner makes a colorable showing that he
is actually innocent of the crime committed. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 887, 34 P.3d at 537; see
also Mazzan, 112 Nev. at 842, 921 P.2d at 922; Hogan, 109 Nev. at 95455, 959, 860 P.2d at

712, 715-16. “To avoid application of the procedural bar to claims attacking the validity of
the conviction, a petitioner claiming actual innocence must show that it is more likely than not
that no reasonable juror would have convicted him absent a constitutional violation.”
Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 887, 34 P.3d at 537. “To be credible,” a claim of actual innocence must
be based on reliable evidence not presented at trial. Schlup v, Delo, 513 U.S. 298, 324, 115 S.

Ct. 831, 865 (1995). Given the rarity of such evidence, “in virtually every case, the allegation
of actual innocence has been summarily rejected.” Id, (internal quotation marks omitted).
Here, the Defendant does not argue actual innocence, nor is there any indication that he
1s innocent. Defendant believes that because he was accused of felony murder, but was
acquitted of the underlying felonies, he was wrongfully convicted of second-degree murder.
In hnrder to demonstrate a fundamental miscarriage of justice, a defendant must make 2
colorable showing of actual innocence —factual innocence, not /egal! innocence. Pellegrini,
117 Nev. at 887, 34 P.3d at 537; see Calderon v. Thompson, 523 U.S. 338, 559, 118 S. Ct.
1489, 140 L. Ed. 2d 728 (1998). Any claim Defendant is attempting to construct here is a legal

claim, as it does not have to do with him being innocent based on the facts. Accordingly, this
Court finds that Defendant cannot overcome the procedural bars on his actual innocence claim,
nor is there any newly discovered evidence for an actual innocence claim, thus his Petition is
dismissed.

This Court also denied Defendant’s request for counsel and an evidentiary hearing.
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THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Petition for Post-Conviction

Relief shall be, and is, denied.
DATED this 10 day of Fe%u%l&

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County DlStI‘lCt Attcmey N

ORDER

 F Gl

TRICT JUDGE"™ svi

[TSA TUZAICH 7

Chief Deputy Dis fric
Nevada ar #005056
CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 22nd day of
FEBRUARY, 2016 by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

| hje/SVU

JUSTIN PORTER, BAC#1042442
HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON
P.O. BOX 650

INDIAN SPRINGS, NV 89018

/st HOWARD CONRAD

Secretary for the District Attorney's Otfice
Special Victims Unit
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Electronically Filed
9/11/2019 1:02 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLER@ OF THE COUE
L)

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
VS.

JUSTIN D. PORTER, aka JUG
CAPRI PORTER,

Defendant.

CASE#: 01C174954
DEPT. VI

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JACQUELINE M. BLUTH,
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 26, 2019

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING: SEVERE COUNTS -
PER ORDER FILED ON JULY 3, 2008

APPEARANCES:

For the State:

For the Defendant:

LISA LUZAICH, ESQ.
Chief Deputy District Attorney

ADAM L. GILL, ESQ.

RECORDED BY: De’AWNA TAKAS, COURT RECORDER

Page 1

Case Number: 01C174954

AA 0213



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Las Vegas, Nevada, Wednesday, June 26, 2019

[Hearing began at 10:16 a.m.]

THE COURT: Okay. 01C17494 -- 54 State of Nevada versus
Justin Porter. Who's present in custody with Mr. Gill. Ms. Luzaich on
behalf of the State. So --

MR. GILL: Could we approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yeah. Somebody help me understand what’s
happening here.

[Bench conference - not transcribed]

THE COURT: Okay. So, Mr. Porter, so here’s the issue, is --
why this is on today --

THE DEFENDANT: Excuse me, Your Honor, with all due
respect, | never -- that a -- speak with my lawyer. And | know that | have
a right to speak with my lawyer when it comes to matter of my defense.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: And --

MR. GILL: Like, right now?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, like, right now. Anytime that court
realizes -- recognize that | could speak to you at any time.

[Colloquy between Mr. Gill and Defendant]

MR. GILL: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Gill --

MR. GILL: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- does Andrea Simmons work for you?

MR. GILL: Yes, Your Honor, she’s present in the courtroom in
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the back row.

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. So, Mr. Porter, --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: -- the reason why this is on is just so -- for
clarification -- obviously this case has been going on a long time, which
I’'m sure you’re well aware; right?

THE DEFENDANT: Very much aware.

THE COURT: So there’s been a couple -- Judge Cadish was
the judge for a long time, and then when she left for the Supreme Court
there were two senior judges sitting before | took the bench.

THE DEFENDANT: Well, ma’am --

THE COURT: Wait, no, my turn. So at that point in time --
now this is my case. So I'm going to oversee it. | just needed to
understand what counts had been already been tried --

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: -- and what counts are still out there.

THE DEFENDANT: Well, personally, Judge McGroarty was
the first judge.

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Then Lee Gates, and then --

THE COURT: Judge Cadish.

THE DEFENDANT: -- Cadish.

THE COURT: Got it.

THE DEFENDANT: As far as | explained to my lawyer -- he’s

my lawyer. He’s to aid me in my defense. And what | wanted to do was
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different from what he wanted to do. And, | think, right now what he’s
trying to do is not for the best of my interest, because if he’s my counsel
then what | ask him to do for me for my defense then, | think, he must
assist me with it.

THE COURT: Well that’s actually not the law. So there’s a lot
of --

THE DEFENDANT: Well it -- according to the --

THE COURT: Oh, okay --

THE DEFENDANT: -- system of --

THE COURT: -- Mr. Porter let --

THE DEFENDANT: -- of --

THE COURT: -- me tell you how this going roll --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: -- between you and I. When I’'m talking, you're
going to listen. And you’re not going to keep interpreting me, because
that’s not how | do it.

THE DEFENDANT: | want to speak to the Judge.

THE COURT: And he’s my Marshall, and when --

THE DEFENDANT: | understand.

THE COURT: -- you get out of line. He’s going to get close to
you. So --

THE DEFENDANT: I'm not --

THE COURT: -- listen up.

THE DEFENDANT: -- out of line, ma’am.

THE COURT: If you --
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THE MARSHAL: Stop interrupting.

THE COURT: -- want to represent yourself, that is your
choice, and you can do so. But Mr. Gill isn’t just your errand boy who
does whatever you want. There are many, many decisions that are
completely up to him.

MR. PORTER: But this --

THE COURT: And you keep acting like he’s going to aid you.
That’s not how this goes. There are --

THE MARSHAL: Stop talking.

THE COURT: -- decisions that --

THE DEFENDANT: | have a --

THE COURT: -- as an attorney --

THE DEFENDANT: -- right to talk too.

THE COURT: There are decisions as an attorney -- strategic
decision that he’s going to make. There are definite rights that you
have, like, right to testify, those are things that are up to you.

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: So if you wish to represent yourself, that’s fine.

THE DEFENDANT: Right. Yes, ma’am, it's my defense I'm
the -- life blood of the law when it comes to -- my defense it’s -- not my
attorney that suffers the consequences. But the court should recognize,
that | am the defendant, will be the one that suffer the consequences.
Not the court.

THE COURT: | am aware of that.

THE DEFENDANT: Oh, okay.
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THE COURT: And | just need you to know --

THE DEFENDANT: And --

THE COURT: -- what the law is.

THE DEFENDANT: -- | understand, ma’am. Anytime there’s

a conflict between what'’s lawful for me and what my counsel feel is

lawful for him, then there’s a conflict of interest.

THE COURT: You’re not getting another attorney, because --
THE DEFENDANT: | didn’t -

THE COURT: -- you've already --

THE DEFENDANT: -- ask for another attorney, ma’am.
THE MARSHAL: Stop interpreting the Judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: I'm just --

THE COURT: So --

THE DEFENDANT: -- explaining that --

THE COURT: -- here the deal --

THE DEFENDANT: -- she asked me a question. | have a

right to answer it.

THE COURT: Mr. Porter.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Would you like to represent yourself?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. So you’re going to sit down and at the

end of this calendar we’ll do what's referred to as a Faretta canvas --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am --
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THE COURT: -- so we can --

THE DEFENDANT: -- I'm fully --

THE COURT: -- go forward.

THE DEFENDANT: -- aware.

THE COURT: Great. So have a seat.

Okay, Mr. Gill --

MR. GILL: Do you need me --

THE COURT: -- anything else?

MR. GILL: No, Your Honor. Do you need me back for that
Faretta canvas?

THE COURT: Yes, please.

MR. GILL: [just have to run to JC 7, and Herndon starts at
11, but | will be back -- I'll communicate with your department then.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. LUZAICH: Could you give us just a guestimate as when?
Just a guestimate, --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MS. LUZAICH: -- please.

MR. GILL 11?

MS. LUZAICH: Well Judge Herndon starts at 11, so maybe a
few minutes after?

MR. GILL: Yeah, but he --

THE COURT: No, like 11:15.

MR. GILL: Okay.

MS. LUZAICH: Okay.
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THE COURT: All right, thank you.

MS. LUZAICH: Thank you.

MR. GILL: Thank you, Your Honor.

[Hearing concluded at 10:26 a.m.]
[Hearing began at 11:04 a.m.]

THE COURT: Okay, we’re back on in State of Nevada versus
Justin Porter, 01C174954, page 4. Mr. Porter is present in custody, Mr.
Gill on his behalf. Ms. Luzaich on behalf of the State.

Mr. Porter, earlier you referenced that you wanted to represent
yourself. And per the law | have to do what is referred to as Faretta
canvas in order to do so. Are you ready to proceed with the Faretta
canvas?

THE DEFENDANT: Ma’am, pardon me for a second, don’t
mean to be rude --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: -- but -- yes. But also at the same time |
would like to also put on the record according to Faretta versus
California that once | assert that | would like to defend myself and this
knowingly and intelligently waive that | don’t need counsel that the courts
recognize that is a right under the 6™ amendment to be able to represent
myself as long as it's knowingly and intelligently.

THE COURT: Yep.

THE DEFENDANT: So as far as the Faretta canvas goin,
continue.

THE COURT: Okay. That sounds great.
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So you have made a request to proceed without a lawyer
representing your interests?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you have the right to
have a lawyer represent you and that the court has appointed a lawyer
for you, at no cost, if you cannot afford a lawyer?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Have you thought this matter through and are
you certain that you wish to proceed without a lawyer?

THE DEFENDANT: Accurately, all the way through.

THE COURT: Are you currently under the influence of any
medications, alcohol or drugs at this time?

THE DEFENDANT: Of course not, ma’am.

THE COURT: Do any of these things affect your
understanding of the proceedings that are happening today?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: Have you ever experienced any mental health
issues?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: Have you ever had any competency issues?

THE DEFENDANT: Not so far.

THE COURT: Do you have any physical health issues that
would prevent you from understanding the proceedings that are
happening here today?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma’am.
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THE COURT: Are you a United States citizen?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Do you understand that your current lawyer,
Mr. Gill, has experience in handling criminal matters, and, in particular,
handing criminal jury trials?

THE DEFENDANT: With all do, yes, respect to Mr. Adam, yes
ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you understand that you have a --
constitutional right to an attorney to advise and represent you at all
times?

THE DEFENDANT: That's under the 6™ amendment.

THE COURT: Yep. An attorney is required to do everything
that an attorney can honestly do to help you. The attorney will
investigate your case, talk to witnesses, study the law, and defend you
at trial. No one can take that right away from you. And | understand that
you understand; right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Do you understand that a defendant who
represents himself may impart to the jury a negative feeling since a
lawyer is not present to handle your case with you?

THE DEFENDANT: Absolutely.

THE COURT: Have you ever represented yourself before in a
criminal action?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have any educational
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background in legal matters?

THE DEFENDANT: No, I'm layman.

THE COURT: Okay. And just give me an idea of your
educational background?

THE DEFENDANT: As far as Faretta right now, the accused -

THE COURT: Oh, no, I'm sorry. | don’t mean about that. |
mean, like, how far did you go in high school?

THE DEFENDANT: | went to the 10" grade, but | took the
GED test in prison.

THE COURT: And passed it?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you have a general understanding of
the -- English language?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Do you have any legal training other than
what’ve taught yourself within the system?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma’am.

THE DEFENDANT: Are you familiar with the Eighth Judicial
District Court Rules?

THE DEFENDANT: So far, yes ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you understand that there are rules
controlling the way a criminal case proceeds through the system and the
way that the criminal trial, in fact, does proceed?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.
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THE COURT: Okay. Do you understand that you will be
bound by the same rules as anyone else who would be involved in a
similar matter as your attorney?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you will be held to the
same standard as any lawyer who might appear in a similar matter
representing a client?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Are you -- familiar with the Rules of Evidence
that are used in the State of Nevada?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am. Every --

THE COURT: Do you -- do you understand that these rules
control what evidence may be introduced at any trial?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: And that you will be required to follow these
rules in the same way as any other person, or attorney, who would
appear in court?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. So explain to me what that means to
you that you --

THE DEFENDANT: But if -

THE COURT: -- you’re gonna -- go ahead.

THE DEFENDANT: First of all evidence is something that’s
obtained by the government through forensic, whatever, -- way -- that

the officers deemed -- need to be necessary to receive, or if through the
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courts, possible, that the courts recognize that it's --

THE COURT: Admissible?

THE DEFENDANT: Admissible, yes ma’am. Thank you,
correct words for me.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you understand that the rules we
follow may make it difficult for you to ask questions in a way that you
might wish to ask a question? So --

THE DEFENDANT: Of course, ma’am.

THE COURT: --let me --

THE DEFENDANT: Of course.

THE COURT: -- give you an example. So in law school we
learn the rules of evidence, for instance, hearsay. So, you know, let's
say Witness A is on the stand and you want to ask Witness A what
Witness B said because it's important. Do you understand that there are
rules --

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- like the hearsay rules that would prevent you
from doing that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: Some hearsay is also not -- is in
admissible in some, is not dependent on if it's wrote, or a statement.

THE COURT: Yep. Okay. Since you are not --

MS. LUZAICH: Well --

THE DEFENDANT: Reading?
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MS. LUZAICH: -- reading versus statement doesn’t make --

THE DEFENDANT: Well --

MS. LUZAICH: -- a difference.

THE DEFENDANT: -- and if it's on paper -- if it's already been
deemed to be evidence that’s -- of in importance that someone has
spoken on the record. And for instance, if there is no witness and
somebody may have had [indiscernible] them not being able to show up
to court then the court can use that. Then don’t become hearsay.

MS. LUZAICH: Okay.

THE COURT: So there are certain -- yeah. So there are
certain exemptions to the hearsay rule, which are found under the
Nevada Revised Status, under the hearsay rule. Which say -- | think
rule 51 --

THE DEFENDANT: And also in the federal rule, as well.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. LUZAICH: The federal rule, just so he’s clear. The
federal rules do not apply here.

THE DEFENDANT: Well federal rules --

MS. LUZAICH: We are not in federal court.

THE DEFENDANT: -- always apply to every 50 sates.

MS. LUZAICH: No, they don't.

THE COURT: So in Eighth Judicial District Court the federal
rules of evidence do not apply.

THE DEFENDANT: In this --

THE COURT: The Nevada Revises Status under NRS
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Chapter 51 will have the hearsay rules. They're very --

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: They're very similar to the federal rules, but
you would definitely want to study those; okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: So like | was explaining, since there are rules
of Rules of Evidence, you may not know the appropriate way to frame a
question, like an attorney would, but you understand --

THE DEFENDANT: | will learn.

THE COURT: -- that? Okay, you’re going to learn; all right.
Do you understand that the court cannot and will not function as your
lawyer?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: And that | cannot give you any legal advice or
help?

THE DEFENDANT: Of course.

THE COURT: | have to treat you just like | would treat a
prosecutor or a defense attorney.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Do you understand that the fact that you may
lack personal knowledge of the Court Rules, Procedure, and the Rules
of Evidence will not be a reason for me to ignore these rules that I'm still
have to make sure you’re bound by those?

THE DEFENDANT: And the Supreme Court, as well, too

ma’am.
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THE COURT: Yes. And you’re -- you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you understand that you may lose --
sorry go back. Do you understand that if you represent yourself, you will
give up the right to later claim that you did not have effective and proper
legal counsel?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you may lose an
appeal on evidence issues or any part of the trial because you do not
know how to make the proper --

THE DEFENDANT: Objections.

THE COURT: -- objection? And you’re okay with that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: All right. Now | need to pull up -- do either one
of you, at this time, have a copy of the current, either -- indictment or
information?

THE DEFENDANT: Oh, I'm fully I'm aware of them -- the
information --

MR. GILL: He might, Judge. | --

THE DEFENDANT: -- information.

MR. GILL: -- don’t on me.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. LUZAICH: | didn’t bring with me, Judge. | apologize.

THE COURT: That’s all right.

THE COURT: Is --
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THE DEFENDANT: | --

THE COURT: --it --

THE DEFENDANT: -- actually -- have one in my -- in my legal
materials in my room.

THE COURT: Okay. That's --

MS. LUZAICH: That’s gonna be -- and | apologize. There’s
gonna need to be a next in order amended filed, because the murder
incident has already been tried and | have not generate an amended
since then.

THE COURT: Okay. So in the information it looks to me like
you’re charged with multiple counts. | need to put them on the record.

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: Burglary while in possession of a deadly
weapon; first degree kidnapping with use of a deadly weapon; sexual
assault with use of a deadly weapon; robbery with use of a deadly
weapon; first degree kidnapping with use of deadly weapon with
substantial bodily harm; --

THE DEFENDANT: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: --sexual assault with use of deadly weapon
with substantial bodily harm; an attempt murder with use of a deadly
weapon; first degree arson with use of deadly weapon; first degree
kidnapping with use of a deadly weapon, victim 65 years of age or older;
sexual assault with use of a deadly weapon, victim 65 years of age or
older; robbery with use of a deadly weapon, victim 65 years of age or

older; battery with intent to commit a crime, victim 65 years of age or
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older; attempt robbery with use of a deadly weapon. And then, | believe,
the murder with use of a deadly weapon, and battery with use of a
deadly weapon were for the previous case.

MS. LUZAICH: Correct.

THE DEFENDANT: Yep.

MS. LUZAICH: Well same case but the severed out --

THE COURT: Sorry. Severed --

MS. LUZAICH: -- parts.

THE COURT: -- our counts.

MS. LUZAICH: Correct.

THE COURT: And you understand that those are the charges
against you?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: So do you understand the elements of each of
those crimes?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. So talk to me about the elements of
burglary while in possession of a deadly weapon.

THE DEFENDANT: Well burglary -- while in possession of a
deadly weapon is staten that | burglarized a dwelling with -- not saying
committin, | mean, a sayin that I'm guilty but --

THE COURT: | know.

THE DEFENDANT: -- while in commission of -- havin a
weapon. While havin a -- firearm, or any type of deadly weapon. A

weapon that could be used to harm, hurt.
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THE COURT: Sure. And so, burglary, when you say
burglarized it means?

THE DEFENDANT: | didn’t say | burglarized.

THE COURT: No, so -- just so you know. These aren’t an
admission in anyway.

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: We’'re just talking about, hypothetically, to
charges; --

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: -- okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Just clearing it up.

THE COURT: That’s all right. So stating that you, allegedly, -

THE DEFENDANT: | got it.

THE COURT: -- entered a dwelling with the intent --

THE DEFENDANT: Intent.

THE COURT: --to commit a crime, or a felony, or a --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: -- larceny. That -- those are the elements.
And, obviously, like you said with deadly weapon. That you had a
deadly weapon in your hands or that you came --

THE DEFENDANT: Let’s not say we -- me.

THE COURT: But -- that’'s what we're going to have to this,
because --

THE DEFENDANT: All right.
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THE COURT: -- we're just talking about the elements of the
charges you’re charged with.

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: But | want the record to clearly reflect at no
time is Mr. Porter making any --

THE DEFENDANT: Admission.

THE COURT: -- admission; okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Let’s talk about first degree kidnapping with
use of a deadly weapon. Talk to me about the elements of that.

THE DEFENDANT: Well elements of kidnapping with use of a
deadly weapon is, taking by force to either harm, in any type of way,
murder, Kill, sexual assault, and all the beyond --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: -- and [indiscernible] above.

THE COURT: So -- but yes, you basically have a -- it doesn’t
always have to be a force --

THE DEFENDANT: Pullem.

THE COURT: -- you can either seize that person --

THE DEFENDANT: Yep.

THE COURT: -- confine them, inveigle, entice. But you’re
general understanding of taking that individual, moving them with the
intent to rob them, commit sexual assault, that is kidnapping.

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: All right. So the next charge would be sexual
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assault with use of a deadly weapon. Talk to me about you're
understanding in regards to the --

THE DEFENDANT: Taking --

THE COURT: --element.

THE DEFENDANT: -- advantage of, in a sexual manner
without the consent of the individual.

THE COURT: That’s right. And that includes -- or the actual
definition would be penetration.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: Allright. So let’s talk about your understanding
of the elements of robbery.

THE DEFENDANT: Taken from an individual, victim,
belonging of theirs with --

THE COURT: No, you're right.

THE DEFENDANT: I'm just throwed off from all the other
stuff.

THE COURT: But with force.

THE DEFENDANT: With force, yes.

THE COURT: Or attempted force.

THE DEFENDANT: Attempted force, yes.

THE COURT: Talk to me about your understating -- what is
substantial bodily harm?

THE DEFENDANT: The harming of someone by either force -
- brutal force, you know, hitting, beaten, --

THE COURT: And so when you have substantial bodily harm
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you have what'’s referred to as either, like, a permanent scar --

THE DEFENDANT: Scar, yeah permanent --

THE COURT: -- prolonged --

THE DEFENDANT: -- scar.

THE COURT: -- physical pain, things like --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: -- that; all right?

THE DEFENDANT: Injury.

THE COURT: Talk to me about your understanding of what
attempt murder is.

THE DEFENDANT: Attempt murder is to attempt to Kkill
someone.

THE COURT: But failing to do --

THE DEFENDANT: Failing --

THE COURT: -- so.

THE DEFENDANT: -- to do so. Yeah.

THE COURT: What about first degree arson?

THE DEFENDANT: First degree arson -- | don’t -- burning a
dwelling with the malice -- thought of doing it before doing it, while doing
it.

THE COURT: Okay. | think that, you know, victims 65 years
of age or older, is probably pretty self --

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- explanatory; right? The victim --

THE DEFENDANT: It's an --
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THE COURT: -- has to be --

THE DEFENDANT: -- enhancement.

THE COURT: That's right.

THE DEFENDANT: It's an enhancement.

THE COURT: What about battery with intent to commit a
crime? Talk to me about your understanding of that.

THE DEFENDANT: As you say, injuring someone -- with
intent to take something from them.

THE COURT: Yeah, or to commit a crime.

THE DEFENDANT: Or to commit a crime.

THE COURT: All right. Just making sure we get all of the

charges. All right. And | -- you know | think -- did we already do -- nope

never mind, sorry.

All right. So -- now do you understand the sentencing
parameters for each of those?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, a lot of time.

THE COURT: So, in regards to --

THE DEFENDANT: Robbery is a 2 to -- no burglary is a 2
a, | think it’s, correct 2 to 5?

THE COURT: Burglary, | believe, a 1 to 10 --

THE DEFENDANT: 1 to 10?

THE COURT: --ora2to 10.

THE DEFENDANT: 1to 10, 2 to 10.

THE COURT: And then when that’s done with a possession

of deadly --
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THE DEFENDANT: Weapon --

THE COURT: -- weapon --

THE DEFENDANT: It's an enhancement.

MR. GILL: I’'m sorry; it'sa 2 to 101 to 10, on the deadly --

THE DEFENDANT: 2to 10 1 to 10.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GILL: Is that correct?

MS. LUZAICH: Well back in 1999 --

MR. GILL: That’s also --

MS. LUZAICH: -- burglary was a 1 to 5.

MR. GILL: That’s fair.

MS. LUZAICH: And burglary in possession of a weapon was
a little more than 1 to 5, | just don’t remember how much.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GILL: That’s also true.

THE COURT: What about first degree kidnapping with use of
a deadly weapon. Do you understand --

THE DEFENDANT: It's a life -- life in prison sentence.

THE COURT: What about the sexual assaults?

THE DEFENDANT: That could be depending on, | think it
was, matters involved, it could be life imprisonment.

THE COURT: So in the regards to the sex assault -- there
doesn’t have to be malice involved.

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: But in the 90s, Ms. Luzaich, with the sex
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MS. LUZAICH: 10 to life, plus 10 to life.

THE DEFENDANT: 10 to life. That’s 10 to life.

THE COURT: Okay. What's your understanding -- you talked
about robbery, | think, you talked about robbery first before you talked
about the burglary. But what’s your understanding of robbery?

THE DEFENDANT: My understanding of robbery -- of time

sentencing frame?

10

1"

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE COURT: Time.

THE DEFENDANT: Robbery is basically 2 to -- no, no, no 4 to

10 -- could be 4 to 10 the sentencing --

MS. LUZAICH: 2to --

THE DEFENDANT: -- structure --

MS. LUZAICH: -- 15.

THE COURT: 2to 15.

THE DEFENDANT: 2 to --

MS. LUZAICH: 2to --

THE DEFENDANT: -- 15 --

MS. LUZAICH: --15.

THE DEFENDANT: -- okay.

MS. LUZAICH: With deadly weapon --
THE DEFENDANT: 2 to 15 with --

MS. LUZAICH: -- equal and consecutive --
THE DEFENDANT: -- the deadly weapon?
MS. LUZAICH: --2to 15.
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THE DEFENDANT: But it could also, well most people |
know, take deals for 4 to 10 so.

THE COURT: Oh, | see what you're saying.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: On the men with the deadly weapon
enhancement you always have to add that --

THE DEFENDANT: Enhancement. Yeah with the deadly
weapon it's anywhere from 1 to 20 years now.

MS. LUZAICH: No, it's an equal and consecutive, --

THE DEFENDANT: Equal and consecutive.

MS. LUZAICH: -- because the law applies back then.

THE DEFENDANT: Oh. Back then --

THE COURT: Okay?

THE DEFENDANT: -- among the 2000 law.

THE COURT: That’s okay. So attempt murder with use of
deadly weapon, do you know the sentencing range in regards to that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. Yeah.

THE COURT: Attempt murder -- tell me about it.

THE DEFENDANT: Is it, if 'm correct, it's a2 to 5. No, no,
no, no, no, no, no, no, no, no, no, it's -- ranges from different --

THE COURT: 2 to 20.

THE DEFENDANT: 2 to 20 in a different number.

THE COURT: With the deadly weapon of --

THE DEFENDANT: With the deadly weapon enhancement --

THE COURT: -- equal and consecutive.
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THE DEFENDANT: -- another 22 -- 2 to 20 consecutive

because | fall under the old law enhancement.

THE COURT: And you also understand that any time where

you a have victim 65 years of age or older like you've --

THE DEFENDANT: That enhancement --

THE COURT: -- been saying --

THE DEFENDANT: -- is added.

THE COURT: --it's an enhancement; --

THE DEFENDANT: It's an enhancement.

THE COURT: -- right?

THE DEFENDANT: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: We’ve done all the -- battery with intent to

commit a crime, are you understanding -- do you know the charge --

sorry, the sentencing structure for that one?

THE DEFENDANT: Sentencing structure -- I'm not familiar

with it completely. But --

or older?

THE COURT: Ms. Luzaich on a battery with intent victim 65

MS. LUZAICH: 1to 5, plus1to5 --

THE DEFENDANT: 1 to 5 plus.

MS. LUZAICH: --in 99.

THE COURT: All right. An attempt robbery with use of a

deadly weapon, are you familiar with that structure?

THE DEFENDANT: If I'm correct, itisa 1 -- to 5 too as well,

no,no,no1to--3--1to4.
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MS. LUZAICH: 1 to 10.

THE DEFENDANT: 1 to 10?

THE COURT: It did.

THE DEFENDANT: That’s that same as a manslaughter.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MS. LUZAICH: Same as a voluntary, yep.

THE DEFENDANT: Voluntary manslaughter.

THE COURT: With deadly weapon enhancement.

THE DEFENDANT: Enhancement.

THE COURT: So -- the point in, you know, in going over all
this is that, you understand if you're found guilty of one or more of those
crimes, the court can sentence to those guidelines and can even do it
concurrently or consecutively, one after --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: -- the other.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am. And, but, I'm also aware
that -- in the Anderson -- versus Boston, being that a juvenile -- commit a
crime at -- under the age of 18, that they’ll eligible for parole when
there’s one -- murder there’s 20 years, and there’s two or more murders
-- | mean, when there’s one murders 20 years -- when there’s more than
one murder -- two or more murders it doesn’t apply in any offense that
didn’t resolve in a homicide is 15 years.

THE COURT: Okay. And so do you understand the total
amount at sentences that would available to the court --

THE DEFENDANT: Well -- also in the statute is says,
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regardless of what the courts deem the sentence to be it must be.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you know the defenses that you can
present to each of those crimes we’ve talked about?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: And do you understand that there may be
certain affirmative defenses or mitigating evidence and that -- your lack
of knowledge of their existence or your lack of knowledge of the
appropriate procedure for introducing evidence on these issues will not
be grounds for an appeal, if you do not address the appropriate issues?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am, and | plan on addressin’em.

THE COURT: Do you understand that an attorney may be
aware of ways of defending these particular charges that may not occur
to you since you are not a lawyer?

THE DEFENDANT: | understood that from the beginning
when | choose to dismiss counsel.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you know what lesser included
offenses are?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am. When | can get a -- found
guilty of, for instance, instead a -- higher then offense that | could’ve had
received.

THE COURT: Okay. So are, like, there any lesser included
offenses to the crimes that you could think of?

THE DEFENDANT: As of right now, | can I think of one that |
was found guilty of that | didn’t get to proffer my jury instruction on.

THE COURT: Okay. So, like, if we think of a, maybe a
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kidnapping, could you think of a lesser included?

THE DEFENDANT: A lesser included restraining -- yeah, |

find that out, because when we did that | didn’t realize | was --

THE COURT: So, like, let’s think of --
THE DEFENDANT: A detained for battery instead of a

kidnapping it could be just battery.

THE COURT: Or, like, in a battery with intent to commit --
THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, battery.

THE COURT: -- a crime.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: It could just be battery; --

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- all right? And -- but you understand that |

can’t give you advice, and you’re okay with that?

THE DEFENDANT: Of course, ma’am. I'm fine with it.
THE COURT: Do you know what mitigation is?

THE DEFENDANT: Mitigation? No, ma’am. I'm --
THE COURT: So --

THE DEFENDANT: -- litigat'en?

THE COURT: -- mitigation is is --

THE DEFENDANT: Nothing.

THE COURT: -- if you could present your -- any factors -- let’s

say we go to sentencing; right?

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: And the State presents a bunch of factors of
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why you should get this.

THE DEFENDANT: Awe.

THE COURT: You have the right to present mitigation, so --

THE DEFENDANT: Right, --

THE COURT: -- things --

THE DEFENDANT: -- right, right.

THE COURT: -- that would make your sentence less; --

THE DEFENDANT: Right, right, right.

THE COURT: -- all right?

THE DEFENDANT: | have a couple of those that | need to
ask -- add to the situation right now.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you understand that, if you represent
yourself, you are on your own?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am. | understand.

THE COURT: And | can't tell you or advise you as to how you
should try your particular case?

THE DEFENDANT: Fully.

THE COURT: Do you know what a jury voir dire is? When we
pull it -- select the jury?

THE DEFENDANT: That’s when you choose -- chose a jury --

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: -- that conducive to my, you know, trial or
-- | shouldn’t use that word, let’s just say, that'd be a pulled for the
purpose of a trial.

THE COURT: All right. And do you know how to go about the
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process of selecting a jury?

THE DEFENDANT: I’'m familiar with it ma’am.

THE COURT: All right. And do you know the difference
between opening and closing arguments and statements?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am. The --

THE COURT: Do --

THE DEFENDANT: -- defense gets one opening statement
and the DA has opening and closing. But she gets the two shots at it.
THE COURT: At the -- during closing arguments.

THE DEFENDANT: During closing arguments.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you know how to admit evidence?

THE DEFENDANT: Exhibit.

THE COURT: And do you know how to object to evidence?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, when -- when they say it is --
inadmissible.

THE COURT: All right.

THE COURT: Do you know the State’s burden of proof?

THE DEFENDANT: Beyond a reasonable doubt.

THE COURT: Do you know what the -- presumption of
innocence means?

THE DEFENDANT: To believe someone is -- well, I'm a let
you explain that one to me.

THE COURT: Innocent until proven guilty.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, just innocent until proven guilty. |

don’t want to say the wrong words.
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THE COURT: That’s all right. Do you know how to submit
mitigation evidence at sentencing, if you are convicted?

THE DEFENDANT: [ believe so, ma’am.

THE COURT: All right. Do you understand that you must
proceed by asking questions of the witnesses that will appear before the
court?

THE DEFENDANT: Of course, yes.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you can’t make
statements to the witnesses but you could only ask them questions
concerning the facts in this case?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: You cannot make statements that are not
questions and you will not be permitted to simply argue with the
witnesses. Unless --

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: -- you decide to testify on your own behalf, you
will not be permitted to tell the jury matters that you wish them to
consider as evidence other than through the making of an opening
statement and a closing argument. Do you understand this?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am. Yes, ma’am, fully.

THE COURT: Do you understand that if you decide to testify
you will be giving up your right to remain silent and you would be giving
up your right not to incriminate yourself?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: If you decide to testify on your own behalf, you
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